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Independent Auditors’ Report

Based on a report originally issued in Korean

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Korea Development Bank

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying separate financial statements of Korea Development Bank (the “Bank”), which
comprise the separate statements of financial position as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 and the separate statements of
comprehensive income, the separate statements of changes in equity and the separate statements of cash flows for the
years then ended, and notes to the separate financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying separate financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the separate
financial position of the Bank as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and its separate financial performance and its separate
cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
Republic of Korea (“Korean IFRS”). .

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Korean Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Bank in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Republic of Korea that are relevant to our
audit of the separate financial statements and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
ethical requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Other Matter

Auditing standards and their application in practice vary among countries. The procedures and practices used in the
Republic of Korea to audit such financial statements may differ from those generally accepted and applied in other
countries.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the separate financial statements in accordance
with Korean IFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the separate financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going concem basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the separate financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Korean Standards
on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these separate financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Korean Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the separate financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.



¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a
going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the separate financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the separate financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of

the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

/14&74\ W

Seoul, Korea
March 28, 2023

This report is effective as of March 28, 2023, the audit report date. Certain subsequent events or circumstances, which
may occur between the audit report date and the time of reading this report, could have a material impact on the
accompanying separate financial statements and notes thereto. Accordingly, the readers of the audit report should
understand that the above audit report has not been updated to reflect the impact of such subsequent events or
circumstances, if any.

A member of Nexia International .
Nexia International is a leading worldwide network of independent accounting and consulting firms, providing
comprehensive portfolio of audit, accountancy, tax and advisory services.



Korea Development Bank

Separate Statements of Financial Position

December 31, 2022 and 2021

(In millions of won)

Assets
Cash and due from banks
Securities measured at FVTPL

. Securities measured at FVOCI
Securities measured at amortized cost
Loans measured at FVTPL
Loans measured at amortized cost
Derivative financial assets
Investments in subsidiaries and associates
Property and equipment, net
Investment property, net
Intangible assets, net
Defined benefit assets
Current tax assets
Assets held for sale
Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at FVTPL
Deposits
Borrowings
Debentures
Derivative financial liabilities
Provisions
Deferred tax liabilities
Current tax liabilities
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Equity
Issued capital
Capital surplus

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Retained earnings

(Regulatory reserve for credit losses of W247,252 million and W482 885 million as

of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively)

(Required reversal of regulatory reserve for credit losses of W35,257 million and

W235,632 million as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively)

(Planned reversal of regulatory reserve for credit losses of W35,257 million and

W235,632 million as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively)

Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

December December

Notes 31,2022 31, 2021
4454649 W 11,538,806 11,975,767
5,45,46,49 . 11,951,906 9,818,811
6,39,45,46,49 37,684,919 37,875,136
7,39,45,46,49 6,355,884 2,968,877
8,45,46,49 541,811 644,412
9,45,46,49 198,045,603 170,763,394
10,45,46,47,49 9,794,455 5,305,572
11,48 27,992,331 28,710,062
12,48 812,173 872,157
13,48 81,713 82,860
14,48 118,489 147,699
21 87,770 9,353
) 128,218 2,841
16 - 1,371,052
15,45,46,49 7,711,217 5,873,907
W 312,845,295 276,421,900
17,45,46,49 W 1,469,724 2,067,144
18,45,46,49 68,326,656 52,792,121
19,45,46,49 25,429,244 22,063,777
20,45,46,49 158,711,896 145,365,330
10,45,46,47,49 11,317,002 4,757,841
22 1,448,030 1,567,530
37 3,465,176 3,957,522
15,513 254,882
23,45,46,49 6,993,681 7,092,896
277,176,922 239,919,043
1,24 23,151,559 21,886,559
24 2,475,310 2,479,010
24 2,819,333 . 4,773,474
24 7,222,171 7,363,814
35,668,373 36,502,857
W 312,845,295 - 276,421,900

See accompanying notes to the separate financial statements.




Korea Development Bank

Separate Statements of Comprehensive Income
Years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

(In millions of won, except earnings per share information)
Interest income

Interest expense

Net interest income

Net fees and commission income

Dividend income

Net gain (loss) on securities measured at FVTPL
Net gain on financial liabilities measured at FVTPL
Net loss on securities measured at FVOCI

Net gain (loss) on derivatives

Net foreign currency transaction gain (loss)

Other operating income (expense), net
Non-interest income, net

Provision for credit losses
General and administrative expenses
Operating income

Reversal of impairment loss (impairment loss) on investments in
subsidiaries and associates

Other non-operating income

Other non-operating expense

Non-operating expense, net

Profit before income taxes
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

(Profit for the year adjusted for regulatory reserve for credit losses:
W500,238 million and W2,697,478 million for the years ended December 31,
2022 and 2021, respectively)

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
Items that are or may be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss:
Net loss on securities measured at FVOCI
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
Valuation gain on cash flow hedge
Net loss on hedges of net investments in foreign operations

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

Net gain (loss) on securities measured at FVOCI

Fair value changes on financial liabilities designated at fair value due
to credit risk

Remeasurements of defined benefit liabilities

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per share
Basic and diluted earnings per share (in won)

See accompanying notes to the separate financial statements.

Notes 2022 2021
25 W 6,846,735 4,125,276
25 (5,102,920 (2,466,667
48 1,743,815 1,658,609
26 453,909 346,706
27 857,502 1,259,645
28 (39,423) 135,448
29 465,099 149,880
30 (57,194) (27,921)
31 121,439 (202,091)
32 (300,890) 154,367
33 (349,827) 1,738,616
1,150,615 3,554,650
34 260,361 847,357
35,48 876,371 815,746
48 1,757,698 3,550,156
(1,168,617) 363,055
36 13,906 14,530
36 (10,328) (272,379)
(1,165,039) 105,206
592,659 3,655,362
37 127,678 1,193,516
24 464,981 2,461,846
24
(483,138) (111,768)
93,126 99,912
3,923 1,365
(50,090) (56,620)
(436,179) (67,111)
(1,434,848) 2,777,436
90,220 6,246
53,131 36,106
(1,291,497) 2,819,788
(1,727,676) 2,752,677
W (1,262,695) 5,214,523
38 W 104 570




Korea Development Bank

Separate Statements of Changes in Equity
Years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

(In millions of won)
Balance at January 1, 2021

Profit for the year

Net gain on securities measured at
FVOCI

Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations

Valuation gain on cash flow hedge

Net loss on hedges of net investments in
foreign operations

Fair value changes on financial
liabilities designated at fair value due
to credit risk

Remeasurements of defined benefit
liabilities

Total comprehensive income for the
year

Dividends
Paid in capital increase
Transaction with owners

Balance at December 31, 2021
Balance at January 1, 2022

Profit for the year

Net gain on securities measured at
FVOCI

Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations

Valuation gain on cash flow hedge

Net loss on hedges of net investments in
foreign operations

Fair value changes on financial
liabilities designated at fair value due
to credit risk

Remeasurements of defined benefit
liabilities

Total comprehensive income for the
year

Dividends
Paid in capital increase
Transaction with owners

Balance at December 31, 2022

-

See accompanying notes to the separate financial statements.

Accumulated
other

Issued Capital comprehensive Retained Total

capital surplus income earnings equity
W 20,765,729 2,484,398 2,064,371 5,068,032 30,382,530
- - - 2,461,846 2,461,846
- - 2,622,094 43,574 2,665,668
- - 99,912 - 99,912
- - 1,365 - 1,365
- - (56,620) - (56,620)
- - 6,246 - 6,246
- - 36,106 - 36,106
- - 2,709,103 2,505,420 5,214,523
- - - (209,638) (209,638)
1,120,830 (5,388) - - 1,115,442
1,120,830 (5,388) - (209,638) 905,804
W 21,886,559 2,479,010 4,773,474 7,363,814 36,502,857
W 21,886,559 2,479,010 4,773,474 7,363,814 36,502,857
- - - 464,981 464,981
- - (2,144,451) 226,465 (1,917,986)
- - 93,126 - 93,126
- - 3,923 - 3,923
- - (50,090) - (50,090)
- - 90,220 - 90,220
- - 53,131 - 53,131
- - (1,954,141) 691,446 (1,262,695)
- - - (833,089) (833,089)
1,265,000 (3,700) - - 1,261,300
1,265,000 (3,700) - (833,089) 428211
W 23,151,559 2,475,310 2,819,333 7,222,171 35,668,373




Korea Development Bank

Separate Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

(In millions of won)

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year
Adjustments for:

Income tax expense

Interest income

Interest expense

Dividend income

Loss (gain) on valuation of securities measured at FVTPL
Gain on disposal of securities measured at FVTPL

Net gain on financial liabilities measured at FVTPL

Loss on disposal of securities measured at FVOCI
Impairment loss on securities measured at amortized cost
Net loss (gain) on loans measured at FVTPL

Loss on valuation of derivatives
Net gain on fair value hedged items

Loss (gain) on foreign exchange translations
Gain on disposal of investments in subsidiaries and associates
Reversal of impairment loss (impairment loss) on investments in

subsidiaries and associates
Provision for loan loss allowance

Increase (reversal) of provision for other assets

Increase of provision for payment guarantees

Reversal of provision for unused commitments

Reversal of financial guarantee provision

Increase (reversal) of provision for possible losses from lawsuits

Reversal of provision for restoration
Increase of other provisions

Defined benefit costs

Depreciation of property and equipment
Impairment loss on assets held for sale

Gain on disposal of property and equipment

Loss on disposal of intangible assets
Gain on disposal of assets held for sale
Depreciation of investment property
Amortization of intangible assets

Gain on redemption of debentures

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Due from banks

Securities measured at FVTPL

Loans measured at FVTPL

Loans measured at amortized cost
Derivative financial instruments

Other assets

Financial liabilities measured at FVTPL
Deposits

Defined benefit liabilities (assets)

Other liabilities

Income taxes refund (paid)
Interest received

Interest paid

Dividends received

Net cash used in operating activities

(Continued)

Notes 2022 2021

464,981 2,461,846

37 127,678 1,193,516

25 (6,846,735) (4,125,276)

25 5,102,920 2,466,667

27 (857,502) (1,259,645)

28 52,935 (144,635)

' (120,455) (6,654)

29 (465,099) (149,880)

30 57,194 27,921

7 50 149

33 78,954 (1,895,878)

1,993,887 1,255,411

31 (1,528,187) (497,269)
32 289,321 (163,901)

33 (5,424) (90,009)

1,168,617 (363,055)

34 410,450 855,548

34 (579) 1,076

22 136,989 133,641

22 (256,820) (137,830)

22 (29,679) (5,078)

22 (1,492) 1,408

22 (2,008) (1,820)

- 8,266

21 70,092 39,994

12 71,584 70,860

- 258,401

36 (740) (1,482)

36 2 -

- (3,608)

13 2,084 2,209

14 54,262 53,837

@) -

(497,705) (2,477,116)

(1,054,373) (856,356)

560,407 146,996

23,647 27,980

(24,241,420) (16,678,716)

13,948 144,735

(1,116,960) (1,050,940)

30,721 290,136

15,482,874 6,871,809

(77,192) (50,093)

(845,996) 68,970

(11,224,344) (11,085,479)

(243,693) 264,756

6,230,685 4,110,377

(4,424,200) (2,556,079)

855,259 1,263,418

(8,839,017) (8,018,277)




Korea Development Bank |

Notes to the Separate Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

(In millions of won)

Cash flows from investing activities
Net increase of securities measured at FVTPL
Disposal of securities measured at FVOCI
Acquisition of securities measured at FVOCI
Redemption of securities measured at amortized cost
Acquisition of securities measured at amortized cost
Disposal of property and equipment
Acquisition of property and equipment
Disposal of intangible assets
Acquisition of intangible assets
Disposal of investments in subsidiaries and associates
Acquisition of investments in subsidiaries and associates
Disposal of assets held for sale

Net cash used in investing.activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Increase of financial liabilities measured at FVTPL
Decrease of financial liabilities measured at FVTPL
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Proceeds from issuance of debentures
Repayment of debentures
Decrease in lease liabilities
Dividends
Paid in capital increase

Net cash provided by financing activities

Effects from changes in foreign currency exchange rate for cash

and cash equivalents held
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

See accompanying notes to the separate financial statements.

Notes 2022 2021
W (2,590,301) (1,497,404)
6 12,325,062 37,451,107
6 (14,118,389) (36,914,523)
7 1,522,000 700,000
7 (4,895,925) (2,888,991)
12 67,505 9,697
12 (14,768) (36,321)
14 1,521 858
14 (25,993) (13,883)
1,845,131 884,296
(939,632) (929,733)
- 87,502
(6,823,789) (3,147,395)
125,000 319,690
(165,302) (79,143)
49,384,998 44,507,510
(46,137,184) (41,404,496)
134,409,386 117,504,007
(119,518,136) (110,135,030)
23 (27,893) (25,020)
(833,089) (209,638)
696,300 1,115,442
17,934,080 11,593,322
147,619 243,849
2,418,893 671,499
9,453,576 8,782,077
43 W 11,872,469 9,453,576




Korea Development Bank

Notes to the Separate Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

1. Reporting Entity

Korea Development Bank (the “Bank™) was established on April 1, 1954, in accordance with The Korea
Development Bank Act to finance and manage major industrial projects.

The Bank is engaged in the banking industry under The Korea Development Bank Act and other applicable statutes,
and in the fiduciary in accordance with the Financial Investment Services and Capital Markets Act.

Korea Finance Corporation (KoFC), the former ultimate parent company, and KDB Financial Group Inc.
(KDBFQG), the former immediate parent company, were established by spin-offs of divisions of the Bank as of
October 28, 2009. KoFC and KDBFG were merged into the Bank, effective as of December 31, 2014. Issued capital
is W23,151,559 million with 4,630,311,768 shares of issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2022 and 100%
of the Bank’s shares are owned by the government of the Republic of Korea.

The Bank’s head office is located in 14, Eunhaeng-ro (Yeouido-dong), Yeongdeungpo-gu, Seoul and its service
network as of December 31, 2022 is as follows:

Domestic Overseas

Representative
Head Office Branches Branches Subsidiaries offices Total

KDB 1 - 60 11 7 7 86

2.  Basis of Preparation

(1) Application of accounting standards
These separate financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Korean International Financial
Reporting Standards (“K-IFRS”) enacted by the Act on External Audit of Stock Companies.

(2) Changes and disclosures of accounting policies

(i) New and amended standards adopted
The Bank newly applied the following amended and enacted standards for the annual period beginning on January
1, 2022. The nature and the impact of each new standard or amendment are described below:

Amendments to K- IFRS 1116 ‘Lease’ - Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions etc. beyond June 30, 2021

The application of the practical expedient, a lessee may elect not to assess whether a rent concession occurring as
a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic is a lease modification, is extended to lease payments originally
due on or before 30 June 2022. A lessee shall apply the practical expedient consistently to eligible contracts with
similar characteristics and in similar circumstances. The amendment does not have a significant impact on the
separate financial statements.

Amendments to K-IFRS 1103 ‘Business Combination’ — Reference to the Conceptual Framework

The amendments update a reference of definition of assets and liabilities to qualify for recognition in revised
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting. However, the amendments add an exception for the recognition of
liabilities and contingent liabilities within the scope of K-IFRS 1037 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets’, and K-IFRS 2121 ‘Levies’. The amendments also confirm that contingent assets should not be
recognized at the acquisition date. The amendment does not have a significant impact on the separate financial
statements.

Amendments to K-IFRS 1016 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ - Proceeds before intended use

The amendments prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while the entity is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, the entity
will recognize and disclose the proceeds from selling such items, and the costs of producing those items, as profit
or loss. The amendment does not have a significant impact on the separate financial statements.



Korea Developmeht Bank

Notes to the Separate Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

Amendments to K-IFRS 1037 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’ — Onerous Contracts:
Cost of Fulfilling a Contract ,

The amendments clarify that the direct costs of fulfilling a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling
the contract and an allocation of other costs directly related to fulfilling contracts when assessing whether the
contract is onerous. The amendment does not have a significant impact on the separate financial statements.

Annual improvements to K-IFRS 2018-2020
The amendment does not have a significant impact on the separate financial statements.

- K-IFRS 1101 ‘First time Adoption of Korean International Financial Reporting Standards’ — Subsidiaries that
are first-time adopters

- K-IFRS 1109 ‘Financial Instruments’ — Fees related to the 10% test for derecognition of financial liabilities
The amendment clarifies that in applying the ‘10 per cent’ test to assess whether to derecognise a financial
liability, an entity includes only fees paid or received between the entity (the borrower) and the lender,
including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender on the other’s behalf.

- K-IFRS 1116 ‘Leases’ — Lease incentives ’

- K-IFRS 1041 ‘Agriculture’ — Measuring fair value



Korea Development Bank

Notes to the Separate Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

2.  Basis of Preparation, Continued

(ii) Change of accounting policies

The Bank has changed the following accounting policy for its annual reporting period commencing January 1, 2022.

The Bank had classified due from banks with restriction to use, such as reserve requirement deposits, as due from
banks measured at amortized cost rather than cash and cash equivalents; however, following the IFRS
Interpretations Committee's decision that cash and cash equivalents include restricted demand deposits, some
classified due from financial institutions with restriction to use, such as reserve requirement deposits, the Bank has
retrospectively classified these accounts as cash and cash equivalents from January 1, 2022. The comparative
separate financial statements have been restated to reflect the changes made to retrospective application.

The application of these accounting policy changes has no effect on the separate statements of financial position as
of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the separate statements of comprehensive income for the years ended

December 31, 2022 and 2021.

The effects on the consolidated statements of cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, are as

follows:

<Increase (decrease) by cash flow statement line item>

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Increase (decrease) in due from banks W (3,219,178) 1,316,120
Increase in effects from changes in foreign
currency exchange rate for cash and cash
equivalents held 13,560 18,438
Increase in cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year 4,387,441 3,052,883
Increase in cash and cash equivalents at end of
the year 1,181,823 4,387,441
< Cash flow statement for year ended December 31, 2022>
Prior to
accounting policy  After accounting Increase
; change policy change (decrease)
Due from banks W 2,164,805 (1,054,373) (3,219,178)
Effects from changes in foreign currency
exchange rate for cash and cash equivalents held 134,059 147,619 13,560
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the
year 5,066,135 9,453,576 4,387,441
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 10,690,646 11,872,469 1,181,823
< Cash flow statement for year ended December 31, 2021>
Prior to
accounting policy  After accounting Increase
change policy change (decrease)
Due from banks W (2,172,476) (856,356) 1,316,120
Effects from changes in foreign currency
exchange rate for cash and cash equivalents held 225,411 243,849 18,438
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the
year 5,729,194 8,782,077 3,052,883
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 5,066,135 9,453,576 4,387,441
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2.

Basis of Preparation, Continued

(iii) New standards and interpretations issued but not effective

The following new standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards have been issued but not
effective for annual periods beginning after January 1, 2022, and the Bank has not early adopted them. The nature
and the impact of each new standard, amendment and enactments are described below:

Amendments to K-IFRS 1001 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ - Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current

The amendments clarify that liabilities are classified as either current or non-current, depending on the substantive
rights that exist at the end of the reporting period. Classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will
exercise right to defer settlement of the liability or the management’s expectations thereof. Also, the settlement of
liability includes the transfer of the entity’s own equity instruments; however, it would be excluded if an option to
settle the liability by the transfer of the entity’s own equity instruments is recognized separately from the liability
as an equity component of a compound financial instrument. The amendments should be applied for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2023, and earlier application is permitted. The Bank does not expect that these
amendments have a significant impact on the separate financial statements.

Issuance of K-IFRS 1117 Insurance Contracts

K-IFRS 1117 Insurance Contracts will replace K- IFRS 1104 Insurance Contracts. This standard requires an entity
to estimate future cash flows of an insurance contract and measure insurance liabilities using discount rates applied
with assumptions and risks at the measurement date and recognize insurance revenue on an accrual basis including
services (insurance coverage) provided to the policyholder by each annual reporting period. In addition, investment
components (refunds due to termination and maturity) repaid to a policyholder even if an insured event does not
occur, are excluded from insurance revenue, and net insurance income and net investment income are presented
separately to enable users of the information to understand the sources of net income. This standard should be
applied for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023, and earlier application is permitted for
entities that applied K-IFRS 1109 Financial Instruments. The Bank is scheduled to apply this standard for annual
reporting period beginning on January 1, 2023. The Bank does not expect that these applications have a significant
impact on the separate financial statements.

Amendments to K-IFRS 1001 Presentation of Financial Statements — Accounting Policy Disclosure

The amendments require an entity to define and disclose their material accounting policy information. IFRS Practice
Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements was amended to explain and demonstrate how to apply the concept of
materiality. The amendments should be applied for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023,
and earlier application is permitted. The Bank does not expect that these amendments have a significant impact on
the separate financial statements.

Amendments to K-IFRS 1008 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The amendments introduce the definition of accounting estimates and clarify how to distinguish changes in
accounting estimates from changes in accounting policies. The amendments should be applied for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023, and earlier application is permitted. The Bank does not expect that
these amendments have a significant impact on the separate financial statements.

Amendments to K-IFRS 1012 Income Taxes — Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities Arising from a Single
Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the deferred tax recognition exemption so that it no longer applies to
transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. The
amendments should be applied for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023, and earlier
application is permitted. The Bank does not expect that these amendments have a significant impact on the separate
financial statements.
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2.  Basis of Preparation, Continued

Amendments to K-IFRS 1001 Presentation of Financial Statements - Disclosure of gains or losses on valuation of
financial liabilities with exercise price adjustment conditions

The amendments require disclosures about gains or losses on valuation occurred for the reporting period (but are
limited to those included in profit or loss) for the conversion options or warrants (or financial liabilities with
warrants), if all or part of the financial instrument whose exercise price is adjusted due to the issuers' stock price
fluctuations, are classified as financial liabilities according to paragraph 11 of K-IFRS 1032 Financial Instruments:
Presentation. The amendments should be applied for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023,
and earlier application is permitted. The Bank does not expect that these amendments have a significant impact on
the consolidated financial statements.

(3) Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following material items in
the statement of financial position: ‘

- Derivative financial instruments measured at fair value

- Financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss

- Financial instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

- Fair value hedged financial instruments with changes in fair value, due to hedged risks, recognized in profit or
loss

- Liabilities for defined benefit plans, which are recognized as net of the total present value of defined benefit
obligations less the fair value of plan assets.

(4) Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Korean won (“W”), which is the Bank’s functional currency and the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Bank operates.
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2.

" Basis of Preparation, Continued

(5) Use of estimates and judgments _

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with K-IFRS requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Management’s estimates of outcomes may differ from actual outcomes if
management’s estimates and assumptions based on management’s best judgment at the reporting date are different
from the actual environment.

Estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated and any change in an accounting estimate is recognized
prospectively by including it in profit or loss in the period of the change, if the change affects that period only.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year:

(i) Fair value of financial instruments

Financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss and other comprehensive income, and derivative
instruments are recognized and measured at fair value. If the market for a financial instrument is not active, fair
value is determined either by using a valuation technique or independent third-party valuation service. Valuation
techniques include using recent arm's length market transactions between knowledgeable, willing parties, if
available, referencing to the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash
flow analysis and option pricing models.

Financial instruments, which are not actively traded in the market and those with less transparent market prices,
will have less objective fair values and require broad judgment on liquidity, concentration, uncertainty in market
factors and assumptions in price determination and other risks.

Diverse valuation techniques are used to determine the fair value of financial instruments, from generally accepted
market valuation models to internally developed valuation models that incorporate various types of assumptions
and variables.

(ii) Credit losses allowance

The Bank tests impairment and recognizes loss allowances on financial assets classified at amortized cost, debt
instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income and recognizes provisions for payment
guarantee, financial guarantee and unused commitments. Accuracy of allowances and provisions for credit losses
is dependent upon estimation of expected cash flows of the borrower for individually assessed allowances of loans,
and upon assumptions and methodology used for collectively assessed allowances for groups of loans, guarantees
and unused loan commitments.

The pandemic of COVID-19 has a negative impact on the global economy despite of the Korean government’s
financial and economic stabilization packages. It may have a negative impact on the financial position and financial
performance of the Bank due to the increase of the expected credit losses on specific portfolios and the potential
losses on financial assets. The detail of credit risk exposures by industry affected by the pandemic of COVID-19
as of December 31, 2022 is disclosed in Note 49. (2) and the exposures by industries could be changed according
to economic fluctuations.

Taking these circumstances into account comprehensively, the Bank recalculated the forward-looking information
used to estimate the expected credit loss in accordance with K-IFRS 1109 'Financial Instruments' as of December -
31, 2022. During the 12-month period since the previous year ended, there have been changes in forward-looking
information that affect expected credit losses. It is predicted that major economic factors, such as the unemployment
rate and economic growth rate, will deteriorate due to the impact of COVID-19. To reflect these changes, the Bank
recalculated the forward-looking information by means of increasing the probability of recession used in generating
future economic scenarios and will continue to monitor the forward-looking information on a quarterly basis.
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Basis of Preparation, Continued

(iii) Deferred taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset
is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date. Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Actual income taxes in the future may not be
identical to the recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities.

(iv) Defined benefit liabilities

The Bank operates a defined benefit plan. Defined benefit liability is calculated by annual actuarial valuations as
of the reporting date. To perform the actuarial valuations, assumptions for discount rates, future salary increases
and others are required to be estimated. Defined benefit plans contain significant uncertainties in estimations due
to its long-term nature. '

(6) Approval date for the separate financial statements

The separate financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on March 28, 2023, which
will be submitted for approval to the shareholders’ meeting to be held on March 29, 2023.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies applied by the Bank in preparation of its separate financial statements are
included below. The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in
these separate financial statements.

(1) Investments in subsidiaries and associates

The accompanying financial statements are separate financial statements in accordance with K-IFRS 1027
‘Separate Financial Statements’ and investments in subsidiaries and associates are accounted for at cost, not by
performance and net asset reported by the investee. Dividends received from subsidiaries and associates are
recognised as income as of the time the right to receive the dividends is established.

(2) Business combination of entities under common control

The assets and liabilities acquired under business combinations under common control are recognised at the
carrying amounts recognised previously in the consolidated financial statements of the ultimate parent. The
difference between consideration transferred and carrying amounts of net assets acquired is recognised as part of
share premium,

(3) Operating segments

The Bank makes decisions regarding allocation of resources to segments and categorizes segments, based on
internal reports reviewed periodically by the chief operating decision maker, to assess performance. Information on
segments reported to the chief operating decision maker includes items directly attributable to segments as well as
those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items mainly comprise corporate assets (such as the
Bank Headquarters), head office expenses, and income tax assets and liabilities. The Bank recognises the CEO as
the chief operating decision maker. ‘

(4) Foreign exchange

(i) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the Bank, at exchange rates of the
dates of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are
translated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary
items is the difference between amortized cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the period, adjusted
for effective interest and payments during the period, and the amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the
exchange rate at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are measured at fair value are translated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date
that the fair value was determined.

Foreign currency differences arising on transactions and translations of monetary items are recognised in profit or
loss, except for differences arising on the translation of a financial instruments designated as hedges of the net
investment in foreign operations, or cash flow hedge, which are recognised in other comprehensive income.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in other comprehensive income, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income. Conversely, when a gain or loss on a non-monetary
item is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss shall be recognised in profit or
loss.

(ii) Foreign operations )
If the presentation currency of the Bank is different from a foreign operation’s functional currency, the financial
statements of the foreign operation are translated into the presentation currency using the following methods:

Unless the functional currency of foreign operations is in a state of hyperinflation, assets and liabilities of foreign
operations are translated at the closing exchange rate at the end of the reporting period. Revenues and expenses on
the statement of comprehensive income are translated at the exchange rates of the date of transaction. Foreign
currency differences that arise from translation are recognized as other comprehensive income, and the disposal of
a foreign operation is re-categorized as profit or loss as of the moment of the disposal profit or loss is recognized.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation, and any adjustments in fair value to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities due to such acquisition, are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation.
Therefore, such are expressed in the functional currency of the foreign operations and, alongside other assets and
liabilities of the foreign operation, translated at the closing exchange rate.

In the case of the disposal of a foreign operation, cumulative amounts of exchange difference regarding the foreign
operation, recognized separately from other comprehensive income, are re-categorized from assets to profit or loss
as of the disposal profit or loss is recognized. :

(iii) Foreign exchange of net investment in foreign operations

Monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation, with none or little possibility of being settled in
the foreseeable future, are considered a part of the net investment in the foreign operation. Therefore, the exchange
difference is recognised as comprehensive income or loss in the financial statement and re-categorized to profit or
loss as of the disposal of the related net investment.

(5) Recognition and measurement of financial instruments

(i) Initial recognition

The Bank recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in its separate statement of financial position when the
Bank becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. A regular way purchase or sale of financial
assets is recognized and derecognized using trade date accounting.

The Bank classifies financial assets as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income, or financial assets at amortized cost on the basis of the Bank’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. The
Bank classifies financial liabilities as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, or financial liabilities
at amortized cost.

At initial recognition, a financial asset or financial liability is measured at its fair value plus or minus, in the case
of a financial asset or financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.

(ii) Subsequent measurement
After initial recognition, financial instruments are measured at amortized cost or fair value based on classification
at initial recognition.

Amortized cost

The amortized cost is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial recognition
minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of
any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any loss
allowance.

Fair value

Fair values, which the Bank primarily uses for the measurement of financial instruments, are the published price
quotations based on market prices or dealer price quotations of financial instruments traded in an active market
where available. These are the best evidence of fair value. A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active
market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, an entity in the same
industry, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm's length basis. .

If the market for a financial instrument is not active, fair value is determined either by using a valuation technique
or independent third-party valuation service. Valuation techniques include using recent arm's length market
transactions between knowledgeable, willing parties, if available, referencing to the current fair value of another
instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models.
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The Bank uses valuation models that are commonly used by market participants and customized for the Bank to
determine fair values of common over-the-counter (“OTC”) derivatives such as options, interest rate swaps and
currency swaps which are based on the inputs observable in markets. For more complex instruments, the Bank uses
internally developed models, which are usually based on valuation methods and techniques generally used within
the industry, or a value measured by an independent external valuation institution as the fair values if all or some
of the inputs to the valuation models are not market observable and therefore it is necessary to estimate fair value
based on certain assumptions.

If the valuation technique does not reflect all factors which market participants would consider in setting a price,
the fair value is adjusted to reflect those factors. Those factors include counterparty credit risk, bid-ask spread,
liquidity risk and others.

The chosen valuation technique makes maximum use of market inputs and relies as little as possible on entity-
specific inputs. It incorporates all factors that market participants would consider in setting a price and is consistent
with economic methodologies applied for pricing financial instruments. Periodically, the Bank calibrates the
valuation technique and tests its validity using prices of observable current market transactions of the same
instrument or based on other relevant observable market data.

(iii) Derecognition
Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognized financial asset or financial liability from the statement of
financial position. The Bank derecognizes a financial asset or a financial liability when, and only when:

Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognized when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire or
the financial assets have been transferred and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
assets are also transferred, or all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are neither substantially
transferred nor retained and the Bank has not retained control. If the Bank neither transfers nor disposes of
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets, the Bank continues to recognize the
financial asset to the extent of its continuing involvement in the financial asset.

If the Bank transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the Bank continues to recognize the transferred asset
in its entirety and recognize a financial liability for the consideration received.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are derecognized from the statement of financial pos1t10n when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

(iv) Off3etting
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the separate statements of financial position
where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a

net basis or realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously.

(6) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with original maturmes of three months or less from the date of
acquisition that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, including cash on hand, deposits
held at call with banks and other highly liquid short-term investments with original maturities of three months or
less.
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Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(7) Non-derivative financial assets

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss '

Any non-derivative financial asset classified as held for trading or not classified as financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income or financial assets measured at amortized cost is categorized under financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The Bank may designate certain financial assets upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss when
the designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred
to as 'an accounting mismatch') that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognizing the
gains and losses on them on different bases.

After initial recognition, a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss is measured at fair value and gains or
losses arising from a change in the fair value are recognized in profit or loss. Interest income and dividend income
from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are also recognized in profit or loss.

(ii) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

The Bank classifies financial assets as financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income if they
meet the following conditions: 1) debt instruments that are a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and consistent with representing solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding or 2) equity instruments, not held for trading with the
objective of generating a profit from short-term fluctuations in price or dealer’s margin, designated as financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income.

After initial recognition, a financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income is measured at fair
value. Gain and loss from changes in fair value, other than dividend income and interest income amortized using
effective interest method and exchange differences arising on monetary items which are recognized directly in profit

or loss, are recognized as other comprehensive income in equity.
+ A

g

At-disposal of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, cumulative gain or loss is
recognized as profit or loss for the reporting period. However, cumulative gain or loss of equity instrument
designated as fair value through other comprehensive income are not recycled to profit or loss at disposal.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the closing rate. Exchange differences resulting from changes in amortized cost are recognized in profit or loss,
and other changes are recognized as equity.

(iii) Financial assets measured at amortized cost

A financial asset, which are held within the business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and consistent with representing solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are classified as a financial asset at amortized cost. Financial assets at amortized cost are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method after initial recognition and interest
income is recognized using the effective interest method.
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(8) Expected credit loss of financial assets

The Bank measures expected credit loss and recognizes loss allowance at the end of the reporting period for
financial assets measured at amortized cost and fair value through other comprehensive income with the exception
of financial asset measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The expected credit loss (“ECL”) is the weighted average amount of possible outcomes within a certain range,
reflecting the time value of money, estimates on the past, current and future situations, and information accessible
without excessive cost of effort.

The Bank uses the following three measurement techniques in accordance with K-IFRS:

- General approach: for financial assets and off-balance-sheet unused credit line that are not applied below two
approaches

- Simplified approach: for receivables, contract assets and lease receivables

- Credit-impaired approach: for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets

The general approach is applied differently depending on the significance of the increase of the credit risk. If, at the
reporting date, the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, an
entity shall measure the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit
losses. If the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, an entity
shall measure the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses
at each reporting date.

The Bank applies the simplified approach to 1) trade receivables and contract assets that do not have a significant
financing component or 2) trade receivables, contract assets and lease receivables upon determining the Bank’s
accounting policies as the application of the simplified approach. The approach requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognized from initial recognition of the financial assets. Under credit-impaired approach, the Bank shall only
recognize the cumulative changes in lifetime expected credit losses since initial recognition as a loss allowance for
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets.

The following non-exhaustive list of information may be relevant in assessing changes in credit risk:

- Significant changes in internal price indicators of credit risk as a result of a change in credit risk since inception

- Other changes in the rates or terms of an existing financial instrument that would be significantly different if the
instrument was newly originated or issued at the reporting date

- An actual or expected significant change in the financial instrument’s external credit rating

- An actual or expected internal credit rating downgrade for the borrower or decrease in behavioural scoring used
to assess credit risk internally

- An actual or expected significant change in the operating results of the borrower

- Past due information

(i) Forward-looking information
The Bank uses forward-looking information, when it determines whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition and measures expected credit losses.

The Bank assumes the risk component has a certain correlation with the business cycle, and calculates the expected
credit loss by reflecting the forward-looking information with macroeconomic variables on the measurement inputs.

Forward looking information used in calculation of expected credit loss is derived after comprehensive

consideration of a variety of factors including scenario in management planning, worst-case scenario used for stress
testing, third party forecast, and others.
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(ii) Measuring expected credit losses on financial assets at amortized cost

The amount of the loss on financial assets at amortized cost is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate. The Bank estimates expected future cash flows for financial assets that are individually
significant (individual assessment of impairment).

For financial assets that are not individually significant, the Bank collectively estimates expected credit loss by
grouping loans with homogeneous credit risk profile (collective assessment of impairment).

Individual assessment of impairment

Individual assessment of impairment losses is calculated using management's best estimate on present value of
expected future cashflows. The Bank uses all the available information including operating cash flow of the
borrower and net realizable value of any collateral held.

Collective assessment of impairment

Collective assessment of loss allowance involves historical loss experience along with incorporation of forward-
looking information. Such process incorporates factors such as type of collateral, product and borrowers, credit
rating, size of portfolio and recovery period and applies probability of default on a group of assets and loss given
default by type of recovery method. Also, the expected credit loss model involves certain assumption to determine
input based on loss experience and forward-looking information. These models and assumptions are periodically
reviewed to reduce gap between loss estimate and actual loss experience.

The expected credit loss for financial assets measured at amortized cost is recognized as the loss allowance, and
whén the financial asset is determined to be irrecoverable, the carrying amount and loss allowance are decreased.
If financial assets previously written off are recovered, the loss allowance is increased and the difference is
recognized in the current profit or loss.

(iii) Measuring expected credit losses on financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Measuring method of expected credit losses on financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
is équal to the method of financial assets at amortized cost, except for changes in loss allowances that are recognized
as. other comprehensive income. Amounts recognized in other comprehensive income for sale or repayment of
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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(9) Derivative financial instruments including hedge accounting

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value at the inception of the contract and re-estimated
at fair value subsequently. The recognition of profit or loss due to changes in fair value of derivative instruments is
as described below:

(i) Hedge accounting

Derivative financial instruments are accounted differently depending on whether hedge accounting is applied, and
therefore, are classified into trading purpose derivatives and hedging purpose derivatives.

Upon the transaction of hedging purpose derivatives, two different types of hedge accounting are applied; a fair
value hedge, and a cash flow hedge. A fair value hedge is a hedge of the exposure to changes in fair value of a
recognised asset or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment, or an identified portion of such an asset, liability
or firm commitment, that is attributable to a particular risk and could affect profit or loss. A cash flow hedge is a
hedge of the exposure to variability in cash flows that (i) is attributable to a particular risk associated with a
recognised asset or liability (such as all or some future interest payments on variable rate debt) or a highly probable
forecast transaction and (ii) could affect profit or loss.

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the Bank formally documents the relationship between the hedged item
and the hedging instrument, including the nature of the risk, the objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge,
and the method that will be used to assess the effectiveness of the hedging relationship.

Fair value hedge

For designated and qualifying fair value hedges, the change in the fair value of a hedging derivative is recognised
in profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income. Meanwhile, the change in the fair value of the hedged
item, attributable to the risk hedged, is recorded as part of the carrying value of the hedged item and is also
recognised in profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income. When the hedge no longer meets the criteria
for hedge accounting, the hedge relationship is terminated. For hedged item recorded at amortized cost, the
difference between the carrying value of the hedged item on termination and the face value is amortized over the
remaining term of the original hedge using the EIR.

Cash flow hedge

For designated and qualifying cash flow hedges, the effective portion of gain or loss on the hedging instruments is
initially recognised directly in equity. The ineffective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is
recognised immediately in the statement of comprehensive income. When the hedged cash flow affects the profit
or loss in statement of comprehensive income, the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recorded in the
corresponding income or expense line in profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income. When a hedge
no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains
in equity and is recognised when the hedged forecasted transaction is ultimately recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income. When a forecasted transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain and loss
that was reported in equity is immediately transferred to profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income.

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations

The Bank designates non-derivative financial instruments as hedging instruments for foreign currency risk arising
from net investments in foreign operations and recognises the portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument
that is determined to be an effective hedge in other comprehensive income. The cumulative amounts recognised in
other comprehensive income relating to both the foreign exchange differences arising on translation of the results
and financial position of the foreign operation and the gain or loss on the hedging instrument that is determined to
be an effective hedge of the net investment are reclassed from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment
when the Bank disposes of the foreign operation.

(ii) Trading purpose derivatives
For trading purpose derivatives transaction, changes in the fair value of derivatives are recognised in net income.

(10) Day one profit or loss recognition

For financial instruments classified as level 3 on the fair value level hierarchy measured using assess variables not
observable in the market, the difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction price, which
is equivalent to Day one profit or loss, is amortized by using the straight-line method over time.
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(11) Property and equipment

The Bank’s property and equipment are recognised at the carrying amount at historical costs less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Historical costs include the expenditures directly related to the
acquisition of assets.

Subsequent costs are recognised in the carrying amount of assets or, if appropriate, as separate assets if the
probabilities future economic benefits associated with the assets will flow into the Bank and the costs can be
measured reliably; the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecogmsed Furthermore, any other repairs or
maintenances are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method to the amount of
residual value less acquisition cost over the following estimated useful lives:

Type Useful lives (years)
Buildings . 20~ 50
Structure 10~40
Movable property 4

Property and equipment are impaired when the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount. The Bank assesses
residual value and economic life of its assets at each reporting date and adjusts useful lives when necessary. Any
gain or loss arising from the disposal of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in non-operating income (expense) in the statement of
comprehensive income.

(12) Investment property

The Bank classifies property held for rental income or benefits from capital appreciation as investment property.
Investment property is measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
cost model is applied. Subsequent to initial recognition, an item of investment property is carried at its cost less any
accurnulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment loss.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. The difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income in the period of de-recognition. Reclassification to other account is made if there is a change
in use of corresponding investment property.

Depreciation of investment property is calculated using the straight-line method over its estimated useful lives as

follows:

] Type Useful lives (years)
Buildings 20 ~50
Structure 10~ 40
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(13) Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably, and the probabilities future economic
benefits from the asset will flow into the Bank are high. Separately acquired intangible assets are recognised at the
acquisition cost, and subsequently, the cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment is

recognised as the carrying amount.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the four-year to 30-year period of useful economic lives using
the straight-line. method. At the end of each reporting period, the Bank reviews intangible assets for any evidence
that indicate impairment, and upon the presence of such evidence, the Bank estimates the amount recoverable and
recognises the loss accordingly.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized but are tested for impairment annually. Furthermore,
the Bank reviews such intangible assets to determine whether it is appropriate to consider these assets to have
indefinite useful lives. If in the case the Bank concludes an asset is not qualified to be classified as non-finite,
prospective measures are taken to consider such an asset as finite.

(14) Leases

The Bank recognizes a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments at the commencement date of the lease. The Bank elected not to
apply the requirements to the short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

Right-of-use asset .

The right-of-use asset is measured at its cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
loss with adjustments reflected arising from remeasurements of the lease liability. The cost of the right-of-use asset
comprise the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee
and any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentive received. The right-of-
use asset is depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis from the
commencement date of the lease.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date, the lease liability is measured at present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at that date. Lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease
incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, amounts expected to be payable
by the lessee under resndual value guarantees, the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise that option, and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognized as an expense in the period in which the event or condition that triggers those payments occurs.

‘When measuring the present value, the lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If
such implicit rate cannot be readily determined, the Bank uses the Bank’s incremental borrowing rate. The lease
liability is subsequently increased by.the amount of interest expenses recognized on the lease liability and reduced
by the lease payments made.

Short-term lease and lease of low-value assets

The Bank does not apply the requirements of lessee accounting to short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
The Bank recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as expenses on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.
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(15) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Bank tests for any evidence of impairment in assets and reviews whether the impairment has taken place by
estimating the recoverable amount, at the end of each reporting period. The recoverable amount is the higher of the
fair value less cost and value in use of an asset.

Except for impairment losses in respect of goodwill which are never reversed, an impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. The reversal is limited so that
the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceeds the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years.

(16) Assets held for sale

Non-current assets, or disposal groups comprlsmg assets and llab111t1es that are expected to be recovered primarily
through sale rather than through continuing use, are classified as held for sale. To be classified as held for sale, the
asset (or disposal group) must be available for immediate sale in its present condition and its sale must be highly
probable. The assets or disposal group that are classified as assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell.

The Bank recognizes an impairment loss for any initial or subsequent write-down of an asset (or disposal group) to
fair value less costs to sell, and a gain for any subsequent increase in fair value less costs to sell, up to the cumulative
impairment loss previously recognized.

Non-current assets that are classified as held for sale or part of a disposal group classified as held for sale are not
depreciated (or amortized).

(17) Non-derivative financial liabilities

The Bank classifies non-derivative financial liabilities into financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or
other financial liabilities, in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and the definitions of
financial liability. The Bank recognizes these financial liabilities in the statement of financial position when the
Bank becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial liability.

(i) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated at FVTPL upon initial recognition. Financial liabilities and derivatives are classified as
financial instruments held for trading if they are acquired for repurchasing soon. Financial liabilities are classified
as financial liabilities at FVTPL upon initial recognition, if the profit or loss from the liabilities indicates to be more
purpose-appropriate to be recognised as profit or loss. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are designated at fair value in
subsequent measurements, and any related un-realized profit or loss is recognised as profit or loss. In addition, for
the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of
that liability, the Bank present this change in other comprehensive income, and does not recycle this other
comprehensive income to profit or loss, subsequently.

(ii) Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost are recognised at fair value less cost less transaction cost upon initial
recognition, and subsequently at amortized costs. The difference between the proceeds (net of transaction cost) and
the redemption value is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income over the periods of the liabilities
using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of a loan facility are recognised as transaction costs of the loan, if the probability
that some or all the facility will be drawn down is high. If, however, there is not enough evidence to conclude a
draw-down of some or all the facility will occur, the fee is capitalized as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortized over the period of the facility to which it relates.
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(18) Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits that are due to be settled wholly before 12 months after the
end of the period in which the employees render the related service. When an employee has rendered service to the
Bank during an accounting period, the Bank recognises the undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for that service. .

(ii) Retirement benefits: defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Bank pays fixed contrlbutlons into a separate fund.

The Bank is no longer responsible for any foreseeable future liability after a certain amount or percentage of money
is set aside for defined contribution plans. If the pension plan allows for early retirement, payments are recognised
as employee benefits. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for service before the end of the
reportlng period, the Bank recognises that excess as an asset to the extent that the prepayment will lead to a reduction
in future payments or a cash refund.

(iii) Retirement benefits: defined benefit plans

The Bank classifies all the pensions as defined benefit plans except defined contribution plans. The Bank’s net
obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.
The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit
credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the

- benefits will be paid and have terms to maturity like the terms of the related pension liability.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liabilities (assets), which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return
on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised
immediately in other comprehensive income. :

(19) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation because of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

(20) Financial guarantees

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer (the Bank) to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in accordance
with the original or changed terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantees are initially recognized in the financial
statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Bank’s liabilities
under such guarantees are measured at the higher of:

"- The amount determined in accordance with K-IFRS 1109 ‘Financial Instruments’ anci

- The initial amount recognized, less, when appropriate, cumulative amortization recognized in accordance with -~
K-IFRS 1115 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’.
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(21) Securities under resale or repurchase agreements

Securities purchased under agreements to resell are recorded as other loans and receivables and the related interest
from these securities is recorded as interest income; securities sold under agreements to repurchase are recorded as
other borrowings, and the related interest from these securities is recorded as interest expense.

(22) Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognized in profit or loss using the effective interest method. The effective
interest method measures the amortized costs of financial instruments and allocates the interest income or expense
during the related period.

Upon the calculation of the effective interest rate, the Bank estimates future cash flows by taking into consideration
all contractual terms of the financial instrument, but not future credit loss. The calculation also reflects any fees or
points paid or received, transaction costs and any related premiums or discounts. In the case that the cash flow and
expected duration of a financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, the effective interest rate is calculated by
the contractual cash flow during the contract period.

Once an impairment loss has been recognized on a financial asset or a group of similar assets, subsequent interest
income is recognized on the interest rate that was used to discount future cash flow for measuring the impairment
loss.

(23) Fees and commission income
Fees and commission income and expense are classified as follows according to related regulations:

(i) Fees and commission from financial instruments

Fees and commission income and expense that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial asset or
liability are included in the measurement of the effective interest rate. It includes those related to evaluation of the
borrowers’ financial status, guarantee, collateral, other agreements and related evaluation as well as business
transaction, rewards for activities, such as document preparation and recording and setup fees incurred during
issuance of financial liabilities. However, when financial instruments are classified as financial instruments at fair
value through profit or loss, fees and commission are recognized as revenue upon initial recognition.

(ii) Fees and commission from services

Fees and commission income charged in exchange for services to be performed during a certain period of time such
as asset management fees, consignment fees and assurance service fees are recognized as the related services are
performed. When a loan commitment is not expected to result in the draw-down of a loan and K-IFRS 1039
‘Financial Instrument: Recognition and Measurement’ is not applied for the commitment, the related loan
commitment fees are recognized as revenue proportionally to time over the commitment period.

(iii) Fees and commission from significant transaction

Fees and commission from significant transactions, such as trading stocks and other securities, negotiation and
mediation activities for third parties, for instance business transfer and takeover, are recognized when transactions
are completed. '

(24) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized upon the establishment of the Bank’s right to receive the payment.
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(25) Income tax expense

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax. Current income tax and deferred income tax are
recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that the tax arises from a transaction or event, which is recognized
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, or a business combination.

The Bank recognizes deferred income tax liabilities for all taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates, except to the extent that the Bank can control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
The Bank recognizes deferred income tax assets for all deductible temporary differences arising from investments
in associates, to the extent that it is probable that the temporary difference will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the reporting
period when the assets are realized, or the liabilities settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred income tax assets and liabilities reflects the income tax effects that would follow
from the manner in which the Bank expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

The carrying amount of a deferred incorne tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the benefit of part or
all of that deferred income tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred income tax assets'and liabilities are off-set only if the Bank has a legally enforceable right to off-set the
related current income tax assets and liabilities, and the assets and liabilities relate to mcome tax levied by the same
tax authority and are intended to be settled on a net basis.

(26) Accounting for trust accounts

The Bank, for financial reporting, differentiates trust assets from identifiable assets according to the Financial
Investment Services and Capital Markets Act. Furthermore, the Bank receives trust fees from the application,
management and disposal of trust assets, and appropriates such amounts for fees from trust accounts.

Meanwhile, in the case the fee from an unspecified principal or interests guaranteed money in trust does not meet
the principal or interest amount, even after appropriating deficit with trust fees and special reserve, the Bank fills
in the remaining deficit in the trust account and appropriates such amounts for losses on trust accounts.

(27) Regulatory reserve for credit losses

When the total sum of allowance for possible credit losses is lower than the amount prescribed in Article 29(1) of
the Regulations on Supervision of Banking Business, the Bank records the difference as regulatory reserve for credit
losses at the end of each reporting period.

In the case that the existing regulatory reserve for credit losses exceeds the amount needed to be set aside at the

reporting date, the surplus may be reversed. Furthermore, in the case that undisposed deficit exists, regulatory
reserve for credit losses is saved from the time the undisposed deficit is disposed.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(28) Earnings per share

The Bank represents its diluted and basic earnings per common share in the separate statement of comprehenswe
income. Basic earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing net profit attributable to shareholders of the Bank
by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the reporting period. Diluted earnings per
share is calculated by adjusting net profit attributable to common shareholders of the Bank, considering dilution
effects from all potential common shares, and the weighted average number of common shares outstanding.

(29) Corrections of errors

Prior period errors shall be corrected by retrospective restatement in the first set of financial statements authorised
for issue after their discovery except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine either the period-specific

effects or the cumulative effect of the error.

Cash and Due from Banks

(1) Cash and due from banks as of December 31,2022 and 2021 are as follows:

December 31, 2021

December 31, 2022
Cash W 70,525 55,083
Due from banks in Korean won:
* Due from Bank of Korea 3,360,908 5,673,412

;Other due from banks in Korean won 570,295 334,272

3,931,203 6,007,684
Due from banks in foreign currencies / off-
shores 7,537,078 5,913,000

" W 11,538,806 11,975,767
(2) Restricted due from banks as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

g December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Reserve deposit W 1,181,823 4,387,441
Deposit of monetary stabilization account 2,470,000 1,500,000
Others 405,682 518,886

W 4,057,505 6,406,327
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5.

Securities Measured at FVTPL

(1) Details of securities in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are

as follows:

Securities denominated in Korean won:
Stocks W
Equity investments
Beneficiary certificates
Government and public bonds
Financial bonds
"Others

Securities denominated in foreign currencies/off-
shores:
Stocks
Equity investments
Beneficiary certificates
Debt securities

Securities denominated in Korean won:
Stocks . W
Equity investments
Beneficiary certificates )
Government and public bonds
Financial bonds
Others

Securities denominated in foreign currencies/off-:
shores:
Equity investments
Beneficiary certificates
Debt securities

December 31, 2022

Fair value

(Carrying

Face value Acquisition cost amounts)
- 1,800,273 1,666,930
- 719,153 " 839,331
- 7,467,720 7,665,755
648,000 611,954 623,264
403,000 401,715 - 401,127
10,470 10,470 10,392
1,061,470 11,011,285 11,206,799
- 13,407 13,784
- 66,367 109,011
- 649,641 622,312
- 729,415 745,107
1,061,470 11,740,700 11,951,906

December 31, 2021

Fair value

(Carrying

Face value Acquisition cost amounts)
- 1,011,501 884,330
- 451,937 490,230
- 6,559,758 6,835,319
632,000 605,809 606,007
165,000 ' 164,048 163,787
50,470 50,659 50,436
847,470 8,843,712 9,030,109
- 37,157 62,286
- 671,071 673,050
53,348 52,985 53,366
53,348 761,213 788,702
900,818 9,604,925 9,818,811




Korea Development Bank

Notes to the Separate Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021
(In millions of won)

5.  Securities Measured at FVTPL, Continued

(2) Equity securities with disposal restrictions in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as of December
31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

December 31, 2022
Number of Carrying
Company shares . amount Restricted period
National Happiness Fund 34,066 W 28,873 Undecided
December 31, 2021
Number of Carrying
Company ‘ shares amount Restricted period
National Happiness Fund 34,066 W 47,647 Undecided
Shinhan Metal Co., Ltd. 7,692 - Until December 31, 2022
41,758 W 47,647

6. Securities Measured at FVOCI

(1) Details of securities measured at FVOCI as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

. December 31, 2022
_ ' Fair value
(Carrying
Face value Acquisition cost amounts)
Securities denominated in Korean won:
Stocks and equity investments W - 10,857,462 11,145,371
Government and public bonds 2,345,000 2,325,251 2,283,060
. Financial bonds 2,690,000 2,673,516 2,657,525
" “wCorporate bonds 7,086,079 7,083,618 6,781,202
" Others 1,828,729 1,828,729 5,723,053
13,949,808 24,768,576 - 28,590,211
Securities denominated in foreign currencies/off-
shores:
Equity securities - 495 1,631
Debt securities _ 9,808,493 9,976,279 9,093,077
9,808,493 9,976,774 9,094,708
Loaned securities:
Debt securities - - -
W 23,758,301 34,745,350 37,684,919
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6. Securities Measured at FVOCI, Continued

Securities denominated in Korean won:
Stocks and equity investments
Government and public bonds
Financial bonds
Corporate bonds
Others

Securities denominated in foreign currencies/off-
shores:
Equity securities
Debt securities

Loaned securities:
Debt securities

W

December 31, 2021

Fair value

(Carrying

Face value Acquisition cost amounts)
- 10,202,849 10,473,759
1,160,000 1,158,713 1,157,222
1,820,000 1,820,839 1,817,298
8,444,966 8,445,272 8,343,980
2,137,849 2,137,850 8,399,919
13,562,815 23,765,523 30,192,178
- 7,594 6,955
7,179,340 7,393,555 7,258,363
7,179,340 7,401,149 7,265,318
420,000 416,002 417,640
21,162,155 31,582,674 37,875,136

Equity instruments that are acquired due to debt-to-equity swap, investment in kind and investment in ventures and
small and medium-sized enterprises are designated as measured at FVOCI. The realized pre-tax income and loss
on disposal of equity securities for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are the amount of W-312,364
million of gain and W60,102 million of gain, respectively, which is directly recognized in retained earnings.

(2) Changes in securities measured at FVOCI for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

2022 2021
Beginning balance W 37,875,136 34,141,325
Acquisition : 14,683,389 36,914,523
Disposal (12,076,298) (37,413,898)
Change due to amortization (5,575) (46,622)
Change in fair value (3,318,776) 3,559,286
Reclassification 19,125 -
Foreign exchange differences 494,413 574,339
Others (*) 13,505 146,183
Ending balance W 37,684,919 37,875,136

(*) For the year ended December 31, 2022, others represent the increase in securities measured at FVOCI including
shares of FADU Inc., TETOS Co., Ltd. and others acquired through exercise of conversion rights of the
convertible bonds and shares of Boowon Industry Co., Ltd., ENTECHNOLOGIES Co., Ltd. and others acquired
in accordance with the rehabilitation plan under the Debtor Rehabilitation and Bankruptcy Act. For the year
ended December 31, 2021, others represent the increase in securities measured at FVOCI including shares of
DAE SUN SHIPBUILDING & ENGINEERING CO., LTD., HEUNG-A SHIPPING CO., LTD. and others
acquired in accordance with the workout plan decided by the Council of Financial Creditors, shares of Woongjin
Energy Co., Ltd. and others acquired in accordance with the rehabilitation plan under the Debtor Rehabilitation
and Bankruptcy Act. and shares of L&F CO., LTD., NKMAX Co., Ltd., KASA NETWORK PTE. LTD. and
others acquired through exercise of conversion rights of the convertible bonds.
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6.  Securities Measured at FVOCI, Continued

(3) Equity securities with disposal restrictions in securities measured at FVOCI as of December 31, 2022 and 2021
are as follows:

December 31, 2022
Number of Carrying
Company (*1) shares amount Restricted period
UAMCO.,, Ltd. 113,050 W 188,721 Undecided
High Gain Antenna Co., Ltd. 18,138 270 Undecided
Kumbho Tire Co., Inc. 21,339,320 71,167 Until July 6, 2023 (*2)
Daehan Shipbuilding Co., Ltd. 231,459 2,871 Until August 31, 2023
21,701,967 W 263,029

(*1)The Bank sold all of its shares in HEUNG-A SHIPPING CO., LTD. and K Shipbuilding Co., Ltd. for the year
ended December 31, 2022.
(*2) From July 6, 2021, 50% of the shares may be sold every year.

December 31, 2021
Number of Carrying :
. Company ' shares amount Restricted period

UAMCO., Ltd. 113,050 W 176,628 Undecided
High Gain Antenna Co., Ltd. 18,138 ‘ 273 Undecided
DNGYV.,, Co. Ltd. (*2) 500,000 1 Undecided
HEUNG-A SHIPPING CO., LTD. 3,019,800 8,153 Until July 11, 2022
K Shipbuilding Co., Ltd. 1,115,242 1,258 Until August 3, 2022
WOOJEON CO,, LTD. 591,118 1 Until November 12, 2022
Kumbho Tire Co., Inc. 21,339,320 98,374 Until July 6, 2023 (*)
POSCO Plantec Co., Ltd. 1,838,744 1,806 Until December 31, 2023 or

' listing date

28,535,412 W 286,494

(*) From July 6, 2021, 50% of the shares may be sold every year.
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6.

Securities Measured at FVOCI, Continued

(4) Changes in the loss allowance in relation to securities measured at FVOCI for the years ended December 31,

2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Beginning balance

. Transfer to 12-month expected credit

loss
Transfer to lifetime expected
credit losses:
Transfer to non credit-impaired
debt securities
Transfer to credit-impaired
debt securities
Provision for loss allowance
Disposal
Foreign currency translation, etc.
Ending balance

Beginning balance

Transfer to 12-month expected credit
loss -

Transfer to lifetime expected
credit losses:

- Transfer to non credit-impaired

debt securities
Transfer to credit-impaired
debt securities
Provision for loss allowance
Disposal
Foreign currency translation, etc.
Ending balance

W

W

2022
Lifetime expected credit loss
12-month
expected credit Non credit- Credit-
loss Impaired impaired Total

11,661 3,120 71,668 86,449

157 (157) - -

(1,127) 1,127 - -
(1,511) 532 (139) (1,118)
(642) - - (642)

2,503 (2,224) 1,211 1,490

11,041 2,398 72,740 86,179

2021
Lifetime expected credit loss
12-month
expected credit Non credit- Credit-
loss Impaired impaired Total

9,671 1,209 70,398 81,278

400 (400) - -

(1,786) 1,786 - -

2,472 1,469 . 822 4,763
(423) - - (423)

1,327 (944) 448 831

11,661 3,120 71,668
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7.  Securities Measured at Amortized Cost

(1) Securities measﬁred at amortized cost as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Securities denominated in Korean won:
Government and public bonds W
Financial bonds
Corporate bonds

Less: loss allowance

Securities denominated in Korean won:
Government and public bonds W
Financial bonds
Corporate bonds

-Less: loss allowance .
I W

December 31, 2022
Amortized cost Fair value
2,964,285 2,964,285
2,961,887 2,961,788
429,921 429,811
6,356,093 6,355,884
(209)
6,355,884 6,355,884
December 31, 2021
Amortized cost Fair value
1,437,496 1,437,496
1,079,249 1,079,204
452,290 452,177
2,969,035 2,968,877
{158) ’
2,968,877 2,968,877

(2) Changes in securities measured at amortized cost for the years ended December 31,2022 and 2021 are as follows:

" Beginning balance W
Acquisition
Redemption
Change due to amortization
Impairment loss
Ending balance W

2022 2021
2,968,877 785,264
4,895,925 2,888,991
(1,522,000) (700,000)
13,132 (5,229)
(50) (149)
6,355,884 2,968,877
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8. Loans Measured at FVTPL

(1) Loans measured at FVTPL as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Fair value Fair value
(Carrying ‘ (Carrying
Amortized cost amounts) Amortized cost amounts)
Loans in Korean won:
Privately placed corporate bonds W . 459,064 - 541,811 471,645 644,412

(2) Gains (losses) related to loans measured at FVTPL for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as

follows:
2022 ' 2021
Transaction gains (losses) on loans measured at FVTPL
Transaction gains W 8,100 1,860,411
Transaction losses (8,709 (9,692)
) (609) 1,850,719
Valuation gains (losses) on loans measured at FVTPL
Valuation gains . 9,294 83,760
Valuation losses (88,248) (4,349)
(78,954) 79,411
W (79,563) ' 1,930,130
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9. Loans Measured at Amortized Cost

(1) Loans measured at amortized cost and loss allowance for loan as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Loans in Korean won:
Loans for working capital

Loans for facility development

Loans for households
Inter-bank loans

Loans in foreign currencies:
Loans
Inter-bank loans
Off-shore loans

Other loans:

Bills bought in foreign currency

Advances for customers on
. acceptances and guarantees

Privately placed corporate bonds

Others

Less:
Loss allowance for loan
Present value discount

Deferred loan origination costs

and fees

December 31, 2022

December 31, 2021

Amortized cost Fair value Amortized cost Fair value

W 69,723,242 68,263,234 64,913,903 63,346,107
60,391,588 58,443,101 56,414,412 55,263,451
183,676 175,347 206,579 204,895
3,037,471 2,746,516 2,827,972 . 2,639,400
133,335,977 129,628,198 124,362,866 121,453,853
27,770,598 27,462,025 22,276,205 21,974,270
4,296,005 4,281,978 2,391,409 2,390,650
20,961,290 20,421,515 16,990,941 16,581,263
53,027,893 52,165,518 41,658,555 40,946,183
2,275,189 2,252,927 2,581,399 2,579,637
8,954 1,286 17,416 7,068
2,227,012 2,191,115 1,039,406 1,022,432
11,157,205 11,000,638 5,257,538 5,130,169
15,668,360 15,445,966 8,895,759 8,739,306
202,032,230 197,239,682 174,917,180 171 ,139,342

(3,997,231) (4,154,330)

(10,620) (15,881)

21,224 16,425
W 198,045,603 170,763,394
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9. Loans Measured at Amortized Cost, Continued

(2) Changes in loss allowance for loan for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

2022
Lifetime expected credit losses
12-month ]
expected credit Non credit- Credit-
loss impaired impaired Total
Beginning balance W 342,959 2,242,499 " 1,568,872 4,154,330
. Transfer to 12-month expected credit '

loss 23,391 (12,442) (10,949) -
Transfer to lifetime expected

credit losses:

Transfer to non credit-impaired '

loans (184,211) 206,209 (21,998) -
Transfer to credit-impaired loans (71,631) (198,640) 270,271 -
- Provision for (reversal of) loss '

allowance 177,224 - 95,349 137,877 410,450
Write-offs - - (85,067) (85,067)
Recovery - - 20,783 20,783
Sale - - (148,285) (148,285)
Debt-to-equity swap - - (355,903) (355,903)
Foreign currency translation - 2,941 41,538 12,165 " 56,644
Other (1,419 (33,677) (20,625) (55,721)
Ending balance W 289,254 2,340,836 1,367,141 3,997,231

2021
Lifetime expected credit losses
12-month
expected credit Non credit- Credit-
loss impaired impaired Total

Beginning balance W 640,094 1,398,461 1,737,936 3,776,491
Transfer to 12-month expected credit

loss 629 - (629) - -
Transfer to lifetime expected :

credit losses: .

Transfer to non credit-impaired

loans (2,108,521) 2,108,521 - -

Transfer to credit-impaired loans (1,400,818) (3,526) 1,404,344 -
Provision for (reversal of) loss ‘

allowance 3,235,702 (1,312,045) (1,068,109) 855,548
Write-offs - - (33,671) (33,671)
Recovery - - 57,778 57,778
Sale - - (195,397) (195,397)
Debt-to-equity swap - - (402,680) (402,680)
Foreign currency translation 15,036 7,947 39,620 62,603
Other (39,163) 43,770 29,051 33,658
Ending balance W 342,959 2,242,499 1,568,872 4,154,330
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9.

Loans Measured at Amortized Cost, Continued

(3) Gains (losseé) related to loans measured at amortized cost for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are
as follows:

2022 2021
Provision for allowance for loan losses W (410,450) (855,548)
Gains on disposal of loan 27,820 32,025
W (382,630) '(823,523)

(4) Changes in net deferred loan origination costs and fees for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as
follows:

2022 2021
Beginning balance w 16,425 9,003
New deferrals 18,817 * 21,189
Amortization (14,018) (13,767)
Ending balance W 21,224 ' 16,425
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10.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Bank’s derivative financial instruments consist of tradihg derivatives and hedging derivatives, depending on
the nature of each transaction. The Bank enters into hedging derivative transactions mainly for the purpose of
hedging risk related to changes in fair values of the underlying assets and liabilities.and future cash flows.

The Bank enters into trading derivative transactions such as futures, forwards, swaps and options for arbitrage
transactions by speculating on the future value of the underlying asset. Derivatives held-for trading transactions
include contracts with the Bank’s clients and its liquidation position. .

For the purpose of hedging the exposure to the variability of fair values and cash flows of funds in Korean won by
changes in interest rate, the Bank mainly uses interest swaps or currency swaps. The main counterparties are foreign
financial institutions and local banks. In addition, to hedge the exposure to the variability of fair values of bonds in
foreign currencies by changes in interest rate or foreign exchange rate, the Bank mainly uses interest swaps or
currency swaps.

The Bank applies net investment hedge accounting by designating non-derivative financial instruments as hedging
instruments and any gain or loss on the hedging instruments relating to the effective portion of the hedge is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve.

Gains and losses on the hedging instrument accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve are reclassified
to profit or loss on the disposal or partial disposal of the foreign operation.
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10.

Derivative Financial Instruments, Continued

(1) The notional amounts outstanding for derivative contracts and the carrying amounts of the derivative financial
instruments as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

. December 31, 2022
Notional amounts Carrying amounts
Buy Sell Asset Liability
Trading purpose derivative financial
instruments:
Interest rate
Futures - 1,232,323 - -
Forwards - 50,000 1,384 C-
Swaps 294,150,122 294,150,122 1,573,784 2,088,963
Options 7,881,911 14,728,387 473,586 536,364
302,032,033 310,160,832 2,048,754 2,625,327
Currency
Forwards 50,944,418 37,554,484 2,432,523 1,307,942
Swaps 58,740,494 74,899,023 5,225,899 6,174,071
Options 330,066 329,052 1,991 6,452
i 110,014,978 112,782,559 7,660,413 7,488,465
Stock
Options 48,904 493,689 12,762 6,003
Allowance and other adjustments - - (112,903) (1,447)
412,095,915 423,437,080 9,609,026 10,118,348
Hedging purpose derivative financial
instruments:
Interest rate (*)
Swaps 31,141,774 31,141,774 48,881 542,268
Currency
Swaps 10,217,257 10,417,222 136,596 660,189
Allowance and other adjustments - - (48) (3,803)
41,359,031 41,558,996 185,429 1,198,654
453,454,946 464,996,076 9,794,455 11,317,002

(*) The expected maximum period for which derivative contracts, applied the cash flow hedge accounting, are
exposed to risk of cash flow fluctuation is until April 29, 2025.
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10. Derivative Financial Instruments, Continued

December 31, 2021

Notional amounts Carrying amounts
Buy Sell Asset Liability
Trading purpose derivative financial '
instruments:
Interest rate
Futures W - 702,640 - -
Swaps 244,579,384 244,578,686 864,321 488,956
Options 8,369,912 - 14,664,094 305,022 377,850
252,949,296 259,945,420 1,169,343 866,806
Currency
Futures 17,783 - - -
Forwards 68,100,960 53,060,246 1,771,579 1,134,731
Swaps 57,834,161 70,349,339 1,919,679 2,499,896
Options 377,494 375,834 889 578
126,330,398 123,785,419 3,692,147 3,635,205
Stock
Options 53,753 50,736 10,068 221
Allowance and other adjustments - - (94,686) (854)
379,333,447 383,781,575 4,776,872 4,501,378
Hedging purpose derivative financial :
instruments:
Interest rate (*)
Swaps 23,795,059 23,795,059 330,758 45,989
Currency
Swaps 9,073,004 9,076,498 198,077 214,502
Allowance and other adjustments - - (135) (4,028)
32,868,063 32,871,557 528,700 256,463
W 412,201,510 416,653,132 5,305,572 4,757,841

(*) The expected maximum period for which derivative contracts, applied the cash flow hedge accounting, are
exposed to risk of cash flow fluctuation is until April 29, 2025.

* (2) The notional amounts outstanding for the hedging instruments by period as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are

as follows: :

December 31, 2022

Within 1 1~3 3~12 1~5 Over 5
month months months years years Total
Interest rate:
Notional amounts
outstanding W - 1,629,878 4,135,405 20,411,219 4,965,272 31,141,774
Currency:
Notional amounts
outstanding W 310,198 175,155 2,851,071 5,790,132 1,090,701 10,217,257
December 31, 2021
Within 1 1~3 3~12 1~5 Over 5
month months months years years Total
Interest rate:
Notional amounts '
outstanding W 224,896 1,271,477 1,279,617 17,395,158 3,623,911 23,795,059
Currency:
Notional amounts
outstanding W - 17,178 2,412,941 5,159,516 1,483,369 9,073,004
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10. Derivative Financial Instruments, Continued

(3) Details of the balances of the hedging instruments by risk type as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

December 31, 2022
Notional amounts Balances Changes
in fair value
Buy Sell Assets Liabilities for 2022
Cash flow hedge '
accounting:
Interest rate risk:
Swaps 88,711 88,711 - - 5,044
. Fair value hedge
accounting:
Interest rate risk:
Swaps 31,053,063 31,053,063 48,881 542,268 (1,570,665)
Currency risk
Swaps 10,217,257 10,417,222 136,596 660,189 (610,843)
41,270,320 41,470,285 185,477 1,202,457 (2,181,508)
' 41,359,031 41,558,996 185,477 1,202,457 (2,176,464)
) December 31, 2021
Notional amounts Balances Changes
in fair value
Buy Sell Assets Liabilities for 2021
Cash flow hedge
accounting:
Interest rate risk:
*Swaps 82,985 82,985 - - 2,035
Fair value hedge
W accounting:
oo | Interest rate risk:
' Swaps 23,712,074 23,712,074 330,758 45,989 (599,697)
Currency risk:
Swaps 9,073,004 9,076,498 198,077 214,502 (494,535)
32,785,078 32,788,572 528,835 260,491 (1,094,232)
32,868,063 32,871,557 528,835 260,491 (1,092,197)

42



Korea Development Bank

Notes to the Separate Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021 -
(In millions of won)

10.

Derivative Financial Instruments, Continued

.(4) Details of the balances of the hedged items by risk type as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

December 31, 2022
Change in value of .Changes Cash flow
Carrying amounts the hedged item in fair value hedge
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities for 2022 reserve
Cash flow hedge
accounting:
Interest rate risk:
Debt debentures W - 88,711 - - - 7,240
Fair value hedge :
accounting:
Interest rate risk:
Securities measured at
FVOCI 3,932,336 - 3 14,591) - (313,189) -
Debt debentures - 25,497,582 - (1,900,489) 1,890,055 -
Other liabilities
(Deposits, etc.) - 107,660 - (19,0700 = 22,323 -
3,932,336 25,605,242 (314,591) (1,919,559) 1,599,189 -
Currency risk:
Debt debentures - 9,816,395 - (89,179) 611,221 -
3,932,336 35,421,637 (314,591) (2,008,738) 2,210,410 -
W 3932336 35,510,348 (314,591) (2,008,738) 2,210,410 7,240
December 31, 2021
Change in value of Changes Cash flow
Carrying amounts the hedged item in fair value hedge
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities for 2021 reserve
Cash flow hedge
accounting:
Interest rate risk:
Debt debentures W - 82,985 - - - 1,930.
Fair value hedge
accounting:
Interest rate risk:
Securities measured at
FVOCI 2,779,027 - (125,411) - (52,225) -
Debt debentures - 21,621,572 - (2,068) 643,184 -
Other liabilities
(Deposits, etc.) - 121,593 - 3,043 9,589 -
2,779,027 21,743,165 (125,411) 975 600,548 -
Currency risk:
Debt debentures - 9,012,029 - 170,860 504,818 -
2,779,027 30,755,194 (125,411) 171,835 1,105,366 -
W 2,779,027 ° 30,838,179 (125,411 171,835 1,105,366 1,930

(5) Details of hedge ineffectiveness recognized in profit or loss from derivatives for the years ended December 31,
2022 and 2021 is as follows:

Interest rate risk
Currency risk

2022 2021
W 28,524 851
378 10,283
W 28,902 11,134
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10. Derivative Financial Instruments, Continued

(6) The summary of the amounts that have affected the statement of comprehensive income as a result of applying
cash flow hedge accounting for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 is as follows:

2022
Change in the value of the
hedging instrument Hedge ineffectiveness Amount reclassified from
recognized in other recognized in profit or other comprehensive
comprehensive income loss (*) income to profit or loss (*)
Interest rate risk W 5,311 (267) -
(*) Recognized in gains or losses related to hedging purpose derivatives.
2021
Change in the value of the
hedging instrument Hedge ineffectiveness ~ Amount reclassified from
recognized in other recognized in profit or other comprehensive
comprehensive income loss (*) income to profit or loss (*)
Interest rate risk W 1,883 152 -

(*) Recognized in gains or losses related to hedging purpose derivatives.

(7) Details of net investments in foreign operations for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

2022 :
Other comprehensive income for hedges of
Changes in fair value net investments in foreign operations
Currency (foreign exchange risk) W 67,754 (96,874)
) 2021
Other comprehensive income for hedges of
Changes in fair value net investments in foreign operations
- Currency (foreign exchange risk) W 78,095 (29,120)

(8) Details of hedging instruments in hedge of net investments in foreign operations as of December 31, 2022 and
2021 are as follows:

December 31, 2022
Change in the value of Hedge
the hedging instrument  ineffectiveness
recognized in other recognized in
Changes in fair  comprehensive income  profit or loss for
Carrying amount _ value for 2022 for 2022 2022
Debentures in foreign .
currencies . W 1,097,225 (67,754) (67,754) -
December 31, 2021
Change in the value of Hedge
the hedging instrument  ineffectiveness
recognized in other recognized in
Changes in fair  comprehensive income  profit or loss for
Carrying amount _ value for 2021 for 2021 2021
Debentures in foreign
currencies W 1,006,263 (78,095) (78,095) -
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11.

Investments in Subsidiaries and Associates

(1) Investments in subsidiaries and associates as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Subsidiaries:
KDB Asia Ltd.
KDB Bank Europe Ltd. (*1)
KDB Ireland Ltd.
KDB Bank Uzbekistan Ltd.
Banco KDB Do Brazil S.A. (*2)
PT KDB Tifa Finance Tbk
KDB Silicon Valley LLC
KDB OCCASIO I, L.P.
KDB Synergy, L.P.
KDB Investment Co., Ltd.
KDB Biz Co., Ltd.
KDB Capital Corporation

Daewoo Shipbuilding & Marine Engineering

Co., Ltd. (*3)
Daehan Shipbuilding Co., Ltd. (*4)
Korea BTL Financing 1
Korea Railroad Financing 1
Korea Education Financing
KDB Infrastructure Investment Asset
Management Co., Ltd.
KDB Investment PEF No.1 (*5)
KDB Consus Value PEF (*6)
KDB-IAP OBOR PEF (*7)
Green Initiative 2nd Private Equity Fund
KDBC Co-investment Private Equity Fund
KDB Asia PEF
KDB Small Medium Mezzanine PEF

Corporate Liquidity Assistance Agency Co., Ltd.

Associates:
Korea Electric Power Co., Ltd
Korea Tourism Organization
Korea Infrastructure Financing 2 Co.
Korea Ocean Business Corporation
Korea Real Estate Board
HMM Co., Ltd. (*8)
GM Korea Company (*9)
HANIJIN KAL (*10)
Korean Air Lines Co., Ltd. ]
Shinbundang Rallroad Co., Ltd. (*1 1)
Troika Resources Investment PEF (*12)
Others (*13)
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December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
332,907 332,907
125,452 137,452

62,389 62,389
47,937 47,937
39,761 36,234
85,288 85,288
118,615 118,615
22,096 -
19,872 -
70,000 70,000
1,500 1,500
597,290 597,290
1,129,769 -
129,136 142,782
78,715 84,553
40,697 45,553
16,843 16,843

- 1,448,893

170,462 157,388
72,987 -
12,627 -
84,112 62,597
44,350 49,540
1,000,000 1,000,000
4,302,805 4,497,761
16,921,067 16,921,067
337,286 337,286
212,808 212,991
631,777 631,777
58,492 58,492
1,974,499 2,736,835
376,454 382,736
352,761 500,000
330,477 -

- 30,999

- 2,304
2,493,905 2,397,814
23,689,526 24,212,301
27,992,331 28,710,062
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11.

Investments in Subsidiaries and Associates, Continued

(*1) The Bank recognized impairment losses amounting to W11,999 million and W7,207 million for the years ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, due to a decrease in value in use resulting from the decline in
expected cash flows from the shares held by the Bank.

(*2) The Bank recognized reversal of impairment losses amounting to W-3,527 million and W4,965 million for the
years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, due to an increase in value in use resulting from the
enhancement of expected cash flows from the shares held by the Bank.

(*3) The Bank and Hyundai Heavy Industries Co., Ltd. (“Hyundai Heavy Industries”) made the investment contract
(hereinafter, “the contract”) with an investment in kind on March 8, 2019. For the year ended December 31,
2022, the European Commission did not approve the merger between Korea Shipbuilding & Marine
Engineering Co., Ltd. and Daewoo Shipbuilding & Marine Engineering on January 13, 2022. As a result of the
disapproval, the contract’s precondition including governmental permission of different countries was not
satisfied and the Bank and Korea Shipbuilding & Marine Engineering Co., Ltd. cancelled this contract on
March 8, 2022. The Bank’s shares of Daewoo Shipbuilding & Marine Engineering Co., Ltd. were transferred
from assets held for sale to investments in subsidiaries and the Bank recognized W241,283 million of
impairment losses considering a decrease in the recoverable value due to a decline in the fair value of the
shares.

(*4) On May 20, 2022, Daehan Shipbuilding Co., Ltd. (“Daehan Shipbuilding’’) and KHI consortium entered into
an investment contract (hereinafter, “the contract”) to increase the paid-in capital for the purpose of allowing

. KHI consortium to acquire the status of a major shareholder of Daehan Shipbuilding. In order to facilitate the

. smooth transfer of the major shareholder status from the Bank to KHI consortium, the Bank converted the
‘equity of Daehan Shipbuilding for the year ended December 31, 2022. KHI consortium completed payment
-for the shares on August 31, 2022, and Dachan Shipbuilding was subsequently excluded from the Bank’s
subsidiaries.

(*5) For the year ended December 31, 2022, the sale of Daewoo Engineering & Construction Co., Ltd., the Bank’s
sub-subsidiary, was completed and the carrying amount of KDB Investment PEF No.l decreased through
reduction of paid-in capital. The Bank recognized a reversal of impairment losses amounting to W444,642
million for the year ended December 31, 2021 based on the expected cash flows to be received through the
disposal of Daewoo Engineering & Construction Co., Ltd.

(*6) The Bank recognized a reversal of impairment losses amountmg to W13,047 million due to an increase in value
in use resulting from the enhancement of expected cash flows from the shares held by the Bank for the year
ended December 31, 2022. However, the Bank recognized a impairment losses amounting to W372 million
for the year ended December 31, 2021. In April 2022, the Bank cancelled the agreement of purchase and sale
of shares with JC Partners due to the expiration of the transaction closing date.

(*7) The Bank recognized impairment losses amounting to W:6,086 million for the year ended December 31, 2021,
due to a decline in net asset values resulting from a decrease in fair value of assets held as objective evidence
of impairment.

(*8) The Bank recognized impairment losses amounting to W-762,335 million for the year ended December 31,
2022, due to a decrease in recoverable amount resulting from the decrease in expected cash flow from the
shares held by the Bank.

(*9) For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Bank recognized impairment losses amounting to W6,281
million and W-54,194 million due to a decrease in value in use resulting from the deterioration of operating
cash flows.

(*10) For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Bank recognized impairment losses amounting to. W147,239
million due to a decrease in value in use resulting from the deterioration of operating cash flows.

(*11) For the year ended December 31, 2022, Shinbundang Railroad Co., Ltd. was excluded from the Bank’s
associates due to the loss of significant influence.

(*12) The Bank recognized a reversal of impairment losses amounting to W93 million for the year ended December
31, 2022, due to an increase in recoverable amount resulting from the enhancement of expected cash flows
from the shares held by the Bank. However, the Bank recognized a impairment losses amounting to W-32
million for the year ended December 31, 2021. Troika Resources Investment PEF was liquidated for the year
ended December 31, 2022.

(*13) The Bank recognized impairment losses amounting to W 16,174 million for AJU PRIVATE EQUITY FUND
NO.2 and 14 other companies for the year ended December 31, 2022, The Bank recognized impairment losses
amounting to W16,461 million for AYU PRIVATE EQUITY FUND NO.2 and 19 other companies for the year
ended December 31, 2021.
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11. Investments in Subsidiaries and Associates, Continued

(2) The market value of marketable investments in subsidiaries and associates as of December 31, 2022 and 2021
are as follows: '

Market value Carrying amounts
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2022 2021 2021 2021

Korea Electric Power Co., Ltd. W 4,604,929 4,668,299 16,921,067 16,921,067

. HMM Co., Ltd. 1,978,446 2,722,261 1,974,499 2,736,835

HANJIN KAL : 264,477 433,616 352,761 500,000

Korean Air Lines Co., Ltd. 280,906 - 330,477 -

KG Dongbu Steel Co., Ltd. (*) - 15,966 - - 9,268
Daewoo Shipbuilding & Marine

Engineering Co., Ltd. 1,132,039 - 1,129,769 -

(*) KG Dongbu Steel Co., Ltd. is excluded from the Bank’s subsidiaries due to the disposal of shares for the year
ended December 31, 2022.
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‘11. Investments in Subsidiaries and Associates, Continued

(3) The key financial information of subsidiaries and associates invested and ownership ratios as of December 31,
2022 and 2021 are as follows:

; December 31, 2022
Total
compre-
hensive = Owner-
Fiscal Operating . Netincome  income ship
Country  year end Industry Assets Liabilities Equity revenue (loss) (loss) (%)
Subsidiaries:
KDB Asia (HK) Ltd. Hong Kong December Finance 3,660,944 3,029,336 631,608 218,171 53,881 75,373 100.00
KDB Bank Europe

Ltd. Hungary December Finance 1,197,124 1,082,057 115,067 101,071 7,415 (4,360) 100.00
KDB Ireland Ltd. Ireland December Finance 985,414 861,265 124,149 54,874 7,036 11,258 100.00
KDB Bank

Uzbekistan Ltd. Uzbekistan December Finance 981,301 874,872 106,429 55,269 25,765 23,614 86.32
Banco KDB Do : :

Brazil S.A. Brazil December Finance 481,207 386,159 95,048 84,252 27,132 33,709 100.00
PT KDB Tifa

Finance Tbk Indonesia December Finance 130,098 41,343 88,755 13,738 5,284 2,639 84.65
KDB Silicon Valley

LLC USA . December Finance 126,606 1,522 125,084 2,237 (1,055) 7,105 100.00
KDB OCCASIO 11,

L.P. USA  December Finance 60,554 49 495 11,059 20 (16,446) (15,908) 90.00
KDB Synergy, L.P. USA  December Finance 19,643 - 19,643 - (596) (328) 100.00
Daewoo

Shipbuilding &

Marine Engineering

Co., Ltd. Korea  December Manufacturing 12,235,665 11,490,693 744972 5,805,906 (1,744,778) (1,472,612) 55.68
Sam Woo Heavy

Industries Co., Ltd.

*1) Korea  December Manufacturing 268,614 264,893 3,721 121,249 (10,237) (9,681) 100.00
KDB Capital Specialized

Corporation Korea  December Credit Finance 8,792,535 7,427,546 1,364,989 542,270 135,968 136,090 99.92
Korea BTL Semi- Financial

Financing 1 (*2) Korea annually investment 329,286 215 329,071 14,607 11,773 11,773  41.67
Korea Railroad Semi- Financial '

Financing 1 (*2) Korea annually investment 158,318 9 158,309 7,492 (3,569) (3,569) 50.00
Korea Education Semi- Financial

Financing (*2) Korea annually investment 95,445 7 95,438 9,675 9,442 9,442 50.00
KDB Infrastructure

Investment Asset

Management Co., Asset

Ltd. Korea  December management 70,706 10,403 60,303 39,151 19,057 - 19,104 84.16
KDB Investment

Co., Ltd. Korea  December Finance 152,004 19,866 132,138 84,468 54,032 54,034 100.00
KDB Biz Co., Ltd. Korea  December Services 6,899 3,238 3,661 26,291 325 624 100.00
KDB Consus Value Financial
PEF Korea December investment 18,595,875 19,958,869 (1,362,994) 4,379,434 429,868 (1,315,065) 68.20
KDB-IAP OBOR Financial )

PEF (*3) Korea December investment 58,878 60,084 (1,206) - (1,024) (1,017) 33.52
KDB Asia PEF (*3) Korea  December  Financial

investment 194,389 172 194,217 1 (494) 20,532 50.00
KDB Small Medium Financial

Mezzanine PEF Korea  December investment 96,666 122 96,544 4,620 3,432 3,432 66.67
Green Initiative 2nd Financial
Private Equity Fund Korea December investment 190,404 5,316 185,088 2 (5,795) (5,795) 38.00
KDBC Co-
investment Private Financial
Equity Fund Korea  December investment 17,522 27 17,495 - (544) (544) 70.00
Corporate Liquidity
Assistance Agency Financial
Co., Ltd. Korea December investment 3,280,515 2,215,553 . 1,064,962 90,631 32,625 32,625 100.00
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11.

Associates:

Korea Electric
Power Co., Ltd.

Korea Tourism
Organization

Korea Infrastructure
Financing 2 Co.

Korea Ocean
Business
Corporation

Korea Real Estate
Board

GM Korea Company
(*4)

HMM Co., Ltd.

HANJIN KAL (*4)

Korean Air Lines
Co., Ltd. (*4)

Investments in Subsidiaries and Associates, Continued
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December 31, 2022
Total
compre-
hensive  Owne
. Fiscal Operating  Net income income ship
Country _year end Industry Assets Liabilities Equity revenue (loss) (loss) (%)
Electricity
Korea  December Generation 234,804,994 192,804,738 42,000,256 71,257,863 (24,429,108) (23,182,239) 32.9
Culture and
Korea  December Tourism
administration 1,201,900 393,608 808,292 737,973 (28,798) . (8,610) 43.5
Financial
Korea  December investment 829,121 65,397 763,724 62,465 19,105 19,105 26.6
Korea  December Finance 11,782,946 4,393,822 7,389,124 324,012 (1,986,514) (1,915,571) 21.7:
Korea December  Appraisal 288,236 49,791 238,445 215,197 11,583 19,805 30.6!
Korea  December Manufacturing 5,916,955 4,503,620 1,413,335 9,013,561 282,760 282,760 17.0:
Korea  December Foreign cargo .
transportation 25,973,455 5,285,543 20,687,912 18,582,770 10,085,271 10,655,184 20.6
Korea  December Holding
compnay 3,915,078 1,339,021 2,576,057 200,336 659,568 851,925 10.5:
Air passenger
Korea  December transportation 28,997,701 19,705,241 9,292,460 14,096,095 1,728,363 2,268,959  3.3.
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11. Investments in Subsidiaries and Associates, Continued
December 31, 2021
Total
compre-
hensive  Owner-
Fiscal Operating  Net income income ship
Country _year end Industry Assets Liabilities Equity revenue (loss) (loss) (%)
Subsidiaries:
KDB Asia (HK) Ltd. Hong Kong December Finance 3,958,732 3,402,497 556,235 130,854 42,651 84,868 100
KDB Bank Europe
Ltd. Hungary December Finance 1,113,228 993,801 119,427 46,211 4,333 8,031 100
KDB Ireland Ltd. Ireland  December Finance 698,808 585,918 112,890 22,318 5,156 13,790 100
KDB Bank
Uzbekistan Ltd. Uzbekistan December Finance 838,100 755,286 82,814 28,400 10,340 16,928 86.32
Banco KDB Do .
Brazil S.A. Brazil December Finance 369,396 308,057 61,339 49,441 1,649 2,773 100
PT KDB Tifa :
Finance Tbk Indonesia December Finance 116,553 30,437 86,116 9,137 169 2,657 84.65
KDB Silicon Valley
LLC USA December Finance 119,648 1,669 117,979 24 (552) (552) 100
Daewoo '
Shipbuilding &
Marine Engineering
Co., Ltd. Korea  December Manufacturing 10,623,210 8,405,627 2,217,583 4,486,586 (1,699,829) (1,650,289) 55.68
Sam Woo Heavy
Industries Co., Ltd.
*D Korea  December Manufacturing 253,430 240,028 13,402 87,589 9,176) (8,939) 100
Daehan Shipbuilding
Co., Ltd. (*1) Korea  December Manufacturing 701,881 991,844 (289,963) 763,270 (136,391)  (135,624) 70.04
KDB Capital Specialized
Corporation Korea  December Credit Finance 7,513,809 6,217,165 1,296,644 555,801 232,376 183,742 99.92
Korea BTL Semi- Financial '
Financing 1 (*2) Korea annually  investment 361,684 237 361,447 12,709 10,819 10,819 41.67
Korea Railroad Semi- Financial -
Financing 1 (*2) Korea annually  investment 178,399 110 178,289 7,172 3,806 3,806 50
Korea Education Semi- Financial
Financing (*2) Korea annually  investment 98,376 6 98,370 3,877 2,039 2,039 50
KDB Infrastructure
Investment Asset
Management Co., Asset
Ltd. Korea  December management 68,612 11,373 57,239 37,483 18,851 18,936 84.16
KDB Investment
Co., Ltd. Korea  December Finance 81,468 2,687 78,781 10,535 4,084 4,177 100
KDB Biz Co., Ltd. Korea  December Services 7,478 4,441 3,037 25,580 260 737 100
KDB Investment Financial
PEF No.1 Korea  December investment 11,017,597 8,043,123 2,974,474 - 205,231 232,737  99.40
KDB Consus Value Financial .
PEF Korea  December investment 19,680,738 19,633,413 47,325 5 14,301 (385,890) 68.20
KDB Sigma PEF II Korea  December  Financial
investment 629 12 617 39 (2,314) (2,314) 60
KDB-IAP OBOR Financial
PEF (*3) Korea  December investment 55,046 55,235 (189) - (74,212) (70,569) 33.52
KDB Asia PEF (*3) Korea  December  Financial
investment 130,757 102 130,655 - (2,669) 11,441 50
KDB Small Medium Financial
Mezzanine PEF Korea  December investment 105,256 144 105,112 81,216 69,808 70,597 66.67
Corporate Liquidity
Assistance Agency . Financial
Co., Ltd. Korea  December investment 3,947,608 2,915,271 1,032,337 83,857 29,628 29,628 100
Components and
Materials M&A Financial
PEF Korea December investment 793 25 768 2 (15,695) (15,695) 83.33

50



Korea Development Bank

Notes to the Separate Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

(In millions of won)

11. Investments in Subsidiaries and Associates, Continued A

Associates:
Korea Electric
Power Co., Ltd.

Korea Tourism’
Organization

Korea Infrastructure
Financing 2 Co.
Korea Ocean
Business
Corporation

Korea Real Estate
Board

GM Korea Company

HANJIN KAL (*4)

Troika Resources
Investment PEF
. (*5)
Shinbundang
Railroad Co., Ltd.
(*6)
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December 31, 2021
Total
compre-
hensive  Owne
Fiscal Operating  Net income income ship
Country _year end Industry Assets Liabilities Equity revenue (loss) (loss) (%)
Electricity . .
Korea December Generation 211,108,870 145,797,021 65,311,849 60,574,819 (5,315,055) (4,754,046) 32.9
Culture and )
Korea  December Tourism -
administration 1,130,031 312,593 817,438 465,281 (71,016) (59,751) 43.5:
Financial .
Korea  December investment 851,153 51,177 799,976 70,165 40,891 40,891 26.6
.Korea  December Finance 15,040,759 5,845,062 9,195,697 5,499,512 4,187,673 4,207,691 22.1°
Korea December  Appraisal 275,447 53,495 221,952 198,950 9,517 12,646  30.64
Korea  December Manufacturing 5,013,939 3,496,897 1,517,042 6,973,860 (166,475)  (166,475) 17.0.
Korea  December Foreign cargo ’
transportation 17,876,100 7,517,806 10,358,294 13,794,148 5,337,056 5,696,643 20.6¢
Korea  December Holding .
compnay 3,754,742 1,930,524 1,824,218 395,278 17,234 46,260 10.6¢
Financial
Korea  December investment 5,745 1,417 4,328 286 118 118 549
Korea  December Other 637,906 1,000,785 (362,879) 100,586 (235,161)  (235,161) 10.9¢
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11.

Investments in Subsidiaries and Associates, Continued

(*1) The Bank consolidates the investees which were subsidiaries of Daewoo Shipbuilding & Marine Engineering
Co., Ltd. as the Bank has had control over the investees through the commencement of the administrative
proceeding since the past. '

(*2) The investees are financed by the Bank and managed by KDB Infrastructure Investments Asset Management
Co., Ltd. They were included in the scope of consolidation even though the Bank holds less than half of the
voting rights because the Bank is exposed to variable returns and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee.

(*3) Although the Bank’s shareholding in the investee is less than 50%, it controls the investee since it is exposed,
or has right to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee.

(*4) Although the Bank’s shareholding is less than 20%, the Bank has significant influence considering the right to
elect the investees’ directors and the Bank classifies the companies as associates.

(*5) Although the Bank’s shareholding in Troika Resources Investment PEF is above 50%, the Bank as joint
managing member does not have the ability to direct the relevant activities unilaterally. Troika Resources
Investment PEF was liquidated for the year ended December 31, 2022.

(*6) The Bank had significant influence over the associate as of December 31, 2021 because the shareholding is
above 20% upon the consideration of shares owned by the Bank’s subsidiaries. For the year ended December
31, 2022, Shinbundang Railroad Co., Ltd. was excluded from the Bank’s associates due to the loss of
significant influence.
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12. Property and'Eguipment
Changes in property and equipment for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

2022
Foreign
January 1, Acquisition/ Reclassifi- exchange December 31,
. 2022 depreciation Disposal cation differences 2022
Acquisition cost:
Land W 302,959 - (585) (415) - 301,959
Buildings and structures 628,393 1,062 (1,979) 188 - 627,664
Leasehold improvements 40,637 4,005 (930) 1,366 . (222) 44,856
Vehicles - 769 - (78) - - 28 719
Equipment 59,812 2,980 : (2,696) - 60 60,156
Construction in progress - 34 2,546 - (2,580) - ' -
Right-of-use assets (Real
estate) 162,089 59,073 - (98,426) - 3,299 126,035
Right-of-use assets (Vehicles) 1,447 2,928 (2,422) - - 24 7,977
Right-of-use assets (Others) 29 98 @31 - 3) 93
Others 154,052 4,175 (559) - 62 157,730
1,356,221 76,867 (107,706) (1,441) 3,248 1,327,189
Accumulated depreciation: : '
Buildings and structures (*) 217,027 17,260 - (504) - 233,783
Leasehold improvements 34,621 3,068 (780) - (518) 36,391
Vehicles B 616 72 (78) - 18 628
Equipment ~ 45,395 4,507 (2,258) - 84. 47,728
Right-of-use assets (Real -
estate) 48,501 31,274 (34,909) - 1,102 45,968
Right-of-use assets (Vehicles) 4,279 2,287 (2,434) - 22 4,154
Right-of-use assets (Others) 29 11 (31) - - 9
Others ‘ 128,212 13,105 (451) - 105 140,971
. 478,680 71,584 (40,941) . (504) 813 509,632
Accumulated impairment losses:
Land 3,023 - - - - 3,023
Buildings and structures 2,361 - - - - 2,361
5,384 - - - - 5,384
W 872,157 5,283 (66,765) 937) 2,435 812,173

(*) The amounts include government grants.
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12.

Property and Equipment, Continued

Acquisition cost:

Land

" Buildings and structures

Leasehold improvements

Vehicles

Equipment

Construction in progress

Right-of-use assets (Real
estate)

Right-of-use assets (Vehicles)

Right-of-use assets (Others)

Others

Accumulated depreciation:

W

Buildings and structures (*)

Leasehold improvements

Vehicles

Equipment

Right-of-use assets (Real
estate)

. Right-of-use assets (Vehicles)

Right-of-use assets (Others)
Others

- Accumulated impairment losses:

Land
Buildings and structures

W

2021
Foreign
January 1, Acquisition/ Reclassifi- exchange December 31,
2021 depreciation Disposal cation differences 2021

305,836 - (62) (2,815) - 302,959
600,627 3,024 (693) 25,435 - 628,393
42,180 3,296 (5,614) 54 721 40,637
734 - ’ - - 35 769
54,528 6,966 (2,653) 851 120 59,812
13,615 15,058 - (28,639) - 34
81,203 113,480 (24,847) - (7,747) 162,089
5,989 2,106 (705) - 57 7,447

27 - - - 2 29
179,109 7977 (33,238) - 204 154,052
1,283,848 151,907 (67,812) (5,114) (6,608) 1,356,221
200,349 18,077 (289) (1,110) - 217,027
36,025 3,030 (5,085) - 651 34,621
533 64 - - 19 616
44197 3,178 (2,125) - 145 45,395
39,533 27,208 (18,667) - 427 48,501
2,604 2,087 447) - 35 4,279

24 4 - - 1 29
143,817 17,212 (32,984) - 167 128,212
467,082 70,860 (59,597 (1,110) 1,445 478,680
3,023 - - - - 3,023
2,361 - - - - 2,361
5,384 - - - - 5,384
811,382 81,047 (8,215) (4,004) (8,053) 872,157

.=-(*) The amounts include govemmént grants.

54



Korea Development Bank

Notes to the Separate Financial Statements

December 31, 2022 and 2021
(In millions of won)

13. Investment Property

Changes' in investment property for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Acquisition cost:
Land
Buildings and structures

Accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and structures

Accumulated impairment losses:

Land
Buildings and structures

Acquisition cost:
Land
Buildings and structures

Accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and structures

Accumulated impairment losses:

Land
Buildings and structures

2022
Acquisition/ December 31,
January 1, 2022 depreciation Reclassification 2022
W 60,593 - 415 61,008
58,388 - 1,026 59,414
118,981 - 1,441 120,422
33,146 2,084 504 35,734
1,197 o . 1,197
1,778 - - 1,778
2,975 - - 2,975
W 82,860 (2,084) 937 81,713°
2021
Acquisition/ December 31,
January 1, 2021 depreciation Reclassification 2021
W 57,778 - 2,815 60,593
56,089 - 2,299 58,388
113,867 - 5,114 118,981
29,827 2,209 ' 1,110 33,146
1,197 - - 1,197
1,778 - - 1,778
2,975 - - 2,975
W 81,065 (2,209) 4,004 82,860

The fair value of the Bank’s investment property, as determined based on valuation by an independent appraiser,
amounts to W99,084 million and W97,983 million as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. Additionally,
fair value of investment in property is classified as level 3 according to the fair value hierarchy in Note 45.
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14. Intangible Assets

2022
X Foreign
January 1, exchange December
2022 Acquisition Disposal  Amortization _differences 31, 2022
Development
expense W 119,775 12,163 - (44,363) 18 87,593
Equipment usage
right 472 - - (49) 29 452
Other deposits
. provided 11,922 920 (1,523) - 470 11,789
Others 15,530 12,910 - (9,850) 65 18,655
W 147,699 25,993 (1,523) (54,262) 582 118,489
2021
Foreign
January 1, exchange December
2021 Acquisition Disposal  Amortization _differences 31,2021
Development
expense W 155,479 8,293 - (44,011) 14 119,775
Equipment usage
right 482 - - (45) 35 472
Other deposits
provided 11,940 818 (858) - 22 11,922
Others 20,516 4,772 - (9,781) 23 15,530
W 188,417 13,883 (858) (53,837) 94 147,699
15. Other Assets
Other assets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Accounts receivable W 2,747,057 3,460,334
Unsettled domestic exchange receivables 3,747,333 1,794,806
Accrued income 914,618 408,168
Guarantee deposits 315,563 217,682
Financial guarantee asset 25,826 20,127
Prepaid expenses 18,374 15,969
Advance payments 9,036 8,889
Others 12,102 29,635
7,789,909 5,955,610
Allowance for credit losses (75,323) (80,071)
Present value discount (3,369) (1,632)
W 7,711,217 5,873,907

Changes in intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

The carrying amounts of financial assets included in other assets above amounted to W7,676,612 million and
W5,836,048 million as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, and their fair value amounted to W-7,674,324
million and W.5,835,448 million as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

56



Korea Development Bank

Notes to the Separate Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021
(In millions of won)

16.

Assets Held for Sale

Assets held for sale as of December 31, 2021 are as follows:

2021
Fair value less )
Acquisition cost costs to sell Carrying amount Impairment loss
Assets held for sale: ,
Investments in subsidiaries (*1) W 2,244 664 1,371,052 1,371,052 . 258,428
Investments in associates (*2) - ) - - 27N
W 2,244 664 1,371,052 . 1,371,052 258,401

(*1) As the Bank and Hyundai Heavy Industries Co., Ltd. (“Hyundai Heavy Industries”) made the investment
contract (hereinafter, “the contract”) with an investment in kind on March 8, 2019 and proceeded with the sale
for attracting investment in Daewoo Shipbuilding & Marine Engineering Co., Ltd. (“Daewoo Shipbuilding &
Marine Engineering”) of the Bank’s subsidiary, the Bank classified the shares of Daewoo Shipbuilding &
Marine Engineering as assets held for sale. The European Commission did not approve the merger between
Korea Shipbuilding & Marine Engineering Co., Ltd. and Daewoo Shipbuilding & Marine Engineering on
January 13, 2022. As a result of the disapproval, the contract’s precondition including governmental permission
of different countries was not satisfied and the Bank and Korea Shipbuilding & Marine Engineering Co., Ltd.
cancelled this contract on March 8, 2022. For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Bank’s shares of Daewoo
Shipbuilding & Marine Engineering Co., Ltd. were excluded from assets held for sale.

(*2) For the year ended December 31, 2021, the sale of the share of Hanjin Heavy Industries & Construction Co.,
Ltd., the Bank’s associate, has been completed.
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17. Financial Liabilities Measured at FVTPL

(1) Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Debentures W 1,131,310 1,636,163
Deposits 338,414 430,981
W 1,469,724 2,067,144

Changes in fair value of structured debentures and deposits which hedge accounting are applied, are recognized in
profit or loss, but structured debentures with no hedge accounting applied to, are measured at amortized costs.
Therefore, such structured debentures and deposits, not applied to hedge accounting, have been designated at
FVTPL to eliminate mismatch in measurements of accounting profit and loss.

(2) The difference between the carrying amount and contractual cash flow amount of financial liabilities measured
at fair value through profit or loss as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Carrying amount W 1,469,724 2,067,144
Contractual cash flow amounts 2,101,133 2,110,955
Difference W (631,409) (43,811)

+
4 -
s
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18." Deposits

Deposits as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Amortized cost Fair value Amortized cost Fair value
Deposits in Korean won:
Demand deposits W 123,617 123,617 86,428 86,428
Time and savings deposits 54,389,265 54,328,886 41,041,409 41,005,081
Certificates of deposit 757,471 758,937 342,105 341,901
55,270,353 55,211,440 41,469,942 41,433,410
Deposits in foreign currencies:
Demand deposits 1,312,008 1,312,057 1,536,950 1,536,950
Time and savings deposits 3,955,130 3,949,240 4,411,690 4,410,697
Certificates of deposit 6,187,960 6,195,534 4,341,640 4,322,711
: 11,455,098 11,456,831 10,290,280 10,270,358
Off-shore deposits in foreign
currencies: ,
Demand deposits 835,904 835,904 670,777 670,777
Certificates of deposit 765,301 + 765,794 361,122 360,884
. 1,601,205 1,601,698 1,031,899 1,031,661
W 68,326,656 68,269,969 52,792,121 52,735,429
19. Borrowings
(1) Borrowings as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:
December 31, 2022
Minimum Maximum
interest rate (%)  interest rate (%) Amortized cost Fair value
Borrowings in Korean won - 3.23 W 4,551,011 4,507,549 .
Borrowiggs in foreign currencies 0.06 6.57 14,220,220 14,148,918
" Off-shore borrowings in foreign
currencies 0.16 5.16 5,205,830 5,157,170
Others 0.05 3.25 1,452,656 1,453,711
25,429,717 25,267,348
Deferred borrowing costs (473)
w 25,429,244
December 31, 2021
Minimum Maximum
interest rate (%) interest rate (%) Amortized cost Fair value
Borrowings in Korean won - 3.15 W 4,329,798 4,318,893
Borrowings in foreign currencies - 5.31 13,265,326 13,260,468
Off-shore borrowings in foreign - ‘
currencies 3.35 2,300,131 2,298,068
Others 0.01 3.29 2,168,670 2,167,736
22,063,925 22,045,165
Deferred borrowing costs ~ (148) ‘
W 22,063,777
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19. Borrowings, Continued

(2) Borrowings in Korean won before adjusting for gains and losses on deferred borrowing costs as of December
31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows: .

Annual December 31, December 31,
Lender Classification interest rate (%) 2022 2021
Ministry of Economy and ~ Borrowings from ‘
Finance . government fund (*) 294~323 W 93,155 108,932
Korea SMEs and Startups ~ Borrowings from small and
Agency medium enterprise
promotion fund 0.66 ~2.91 57,569 61,240
Ministry of Culture, Sports Borrowings from tourism
and Tourism promotion fund 0.09~2.44 3,182,920 3,005,749
Korea Energy Agency Borrowings from fund for
rational use of energy 0.25~1.85 268,659 282,178
Local governments Borrowings from local
small and medium
enterprise promotion fund 0.00~3.23 27,167 27,658
The Bank of Korea Borrowings from Bank of
o Korea 0.25~1.75 375,350 378,160
Others Borrowings from
petroleum enterprise fund '
and others 0.00 ~3.15 546,191 465,881
W 4,551,011 4,329,798

(*) Borrowings from government fund are subordinated borrowings.
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19. Borrowings, Continued

(3) Borrowings and off-shore borrowings in foreign currencies before adjusting for gains and losses on deferred
borrowing costs as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

' Annual December 31, December 31,
, Lender Classification interest rate (%) 2022 2021
Mizuho and others Bank loans from foreign  3M Libor + 0.29 ~
funds 6M Libor +0.24 W 1,394,030 355,650
Ministry of Strategy and Exchange equalization '
Finance fund borrowings in 3M Libor + 0.65 ~ ’
foreign currencies 3M Libor + 0.74 120,761 199,792
Central Bank of the
Republic Uzbekistan and  Off-shore short term
others borrowings 0.16~5.16 3,682,012 1,292,571
China Development Bank  Off-shore long term
and others borrowings 2.34~3.36 1,523,818 1,007,560
Others Short-term borrowings
in foreign currencies 0.06 ~ 6.57 12,150,612 11,775,597
Long term borrowings :
in foreign currencies 0.10~5.41 554,817 934,287

W 19,426,050 15,565,457
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20.

Debentures

Debentures as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

December 31, 2022
Minimum Maximum
interest rate (%) interest rate (%) Amortized cost Fair value
Debentures in Korean won:
Debentures 0.88 - 6.60 W 121,351,724 118,883,372
Discount on debentures (334,416)
Valuation adjustment for
fair value hedges 419,107
120,598,201
Debentures in foreign
currencies:
Debentures 0.05 10.87 20,910,800 21,072,312
Discount on debentures : (37,691)
Premium on debentures 91
Valuation adjustment for ‘
fair value hedges (1,000,475)
. 19,872,725
Off-shore debentures:
Debentures - 11.15 18,859,840 18,272,508
Discount on debentures (48,784)
Valuation adjustment for
fair value hedges (570,086)
18,240,970
W 158,711,896 158,228,192
December 31, 2021
Minimum Maximum
interest rate (%) _ interestrate (%) _Amortized cost Fair value
Debentures in Korean won:
Debentures h 0.75 6.60 W 109,608,752 109,390,833
Discount on debentures (75,224)
Valuation adjustment for
fair value hedges (89,080)
109,444,448
Debentures in foreign
currencies:
Debentures - 10.87 19,488,365 20,634,957
Discount on debentures (40,580)
Premium on debentures 1,338
Valuation adjustment for
fair value hedges 143,805
19,592,928
Off-shore debentures:
Debentures - - 7.00 16,242,288 16,420,828
Discount on debentures (28,401)
Valuation adjustment for
fair value hedges 114,067
16,327,954 :
W 145,365,330 146,446,618
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21.

Defined Benefit Liabilities (Assets)

The Bank implements a defined benefit retirement pension plan based on employee compensation benefits and
service periods. The plan assets are in trusts with Kookmin Bank, Samsung Life Insurance Co., Ltd., etc.

(1) Details of defined benefit liabilities (assets) as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Present value of defined benefit liabilities

Fair value of plan assets

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
"W 354,703 391,015
(442,473) (400,368)
W (87,770) (9,353)

(2) Changes in defined benefit liabilities (assets) for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Beginning balance

Current service costs

Interest expense (income)

Past service costs

Remeasurements of defined
benefit liabilities:
Demographic assumption
Financial assumption
Experience adjustment

Payments from the plan
Contributions to the plan
Ending balance

Beginning balance

Current service costs

Interest expense (income)

Remeasurements of defined
benefit liabilities:
Demographic assumption
Financial assumption
Experience adjustment

Payments from the plan
Contributions to the plan
Ending balance

2022
Present value of -
defined benefit Fair value of plan Defined benefit
obligation assets liabilities (assets)
391,015 (400,368) (9,353)
35,998 - 35,998
11,796 (12,065) (269)
34,363 - 34,363
6,171 - 6,171
(83,170) 7,484 (75,686)
(1,802) - (1,802)
(78,801) 7,484 (71,317)
(39,657) (37,524) (77,181)
an - an
354,703 (442,473) (87,770)
2021
Present value of
defined benefit Fair value of plan Defined benefit
obligation assets liabilities (assets)
415,529 (364,983) 50,546
39,382 - 39,382
9,850 (9,238) 612
(44,008) 5,540 (38,468)
(11,332) - (11,332)
(55,340) 5,540 - (49,800)
(18,406) 18,313 (93)
- (50,000) (50,000)
391,015 (400,368) (9,353)
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21.

Defined Benefit Liabilities (Assets), Continued

(3) Fair value of plan assets for each type as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Quoted market Unquoted Quoted market Unquoted
prices market prices prices market Prices
Due from banks W - 442,473 - 400,368

(4) Defined benefit costs recognized in profit or loss for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

2022 2021
Current service costs W 35,998 39,382
Interest expense, net (269) 612
Past service costs 34,363 -
W 70,092 39,994

(5) The principal actuarial assumptions used as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Discount rate (%) 5.35 3.03
Future salary increasing rate (%) 5.50 5.54

(6).The present value sensitivity of defined benefit obligation as changes in principal actuarial assumptions as of
December 31, 2022 is as follows:

Sensitivity
i 1% increase in assumption 1% decrease in assumption
Discount rate 8.09% decrease 9.36% increase
Future salary increasing rate 9.25% increase 8.15% decrease

(7) The weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation is 9.63 years and 11.63 years as of December 31,
2022 and 2021, respectively. There are no expected contributions to the plans for the next reporting period as of
December 31, 2022.
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22. Provisions

(1) Details of provisions as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Provision for unused commitments W 431,390 667,101
Provision for financial guarantee 42,741 72,420 .
Provision for payment guarantees 953,425 757,621
Provision for possible losses from lawsuits 239 1,731
Provision for restoration 14,206 14,620
Other provision 6,029 54,037

W 1,448,030 1,567,530

(2) Changes in provision for unused commitments for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

2022
Lifetime expected credit losses
12-month
expected credit Non credit- Credit-
loss impaired impaired Total
Beginning balance W 332,151 327,085 7,865 667,101 .,
Transfer to 12-month expected credit :
loss 45,756 (45,756) - -
Transfer to lifetime expected
credit losses: ‘
Transfer to non credit-impaired
exposures (18,733) 20,346 (1,613) -
Transfer to credit-impaired
exposures (1,210) (4,344) 5,554 -
Provision for (reversal of) unused
commitments (252,773) (1,357) (2,690) (256,820)
Foreign currency translation . 16,580 4,335 194 21,109
Ending balance W 121,771 300,309 9,310 431,390
2021
Lifetime expected credit losses
12-month
expected credit Non credit- Credit-
loss impaired impaired Total
Beginning balance W 479,933 290,827 - 770,760
Transfer to 12-month expected credit
loss 267,476 (267,476) - -
Transfer to lifetime expected
credit losses:
Transfer to non credit-impaired
exposures (34,669) 34,669 - -
Transfer to credit-impaired
exposures (3,793) (3,513) 7,306 -
Provision for (reversal of) unused
* commitments (410,437) 272,136 471 (137,830)
Foreign currency translation 33,641 442 88 34,171
Ending balance W 332,151 327,085 7,865 667,101
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22. Provisions, Continued

(3) Changes of financial guarantee provision for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Beginning balance
Transfer to 12-month expected credit
loss
Transfer to lifetime expected
credit losses:
Transfer to non credit-impaired
exposures
Transfer to credit-impaired
exposures
Provision for (reversal of) financial
guarantee '
Ending balance

Beéinning balance

Transfer to 12-month expected credit-

loss
- Transfer to lifetime expected
credit losses:
Transfer to non credit-impaired
exposures
Transfer to credit-impaired
€xposures
Provision for (reversal of) financial
guarantee
Ending balance

2022
Lifetime expected credit losses
12-month
expected credit Non credit- Credit-
loss impaired impaired Total

W 2,721 31,427 38,272 72,420
(282) 1,494 (1,212) -
CH)) (243) 340 -

(1,681) 4,004 (32,002) (29,679)
W 661 36,682 5,398 42,741

2021
Lifetime expected credit losses
12-month
expected credit Non credit- Credit-
loss impaired impaired Total

W 45,567 26,007 5,924 77,498
86 (14) (72) -
(1,518) 1,523 %) -
9,227) 93) 9,320 -

(32,187) 4,004 23,105 (5,078)
W 2,721 31,427 38,272 72,420
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22. Provisions, Continued

(4) Changes in provision for payment guarantees for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Beginning balance

Transfer to 12-month expected credit

loss
Transfer to lifetime expected
credit losses:

Transfer to non credit-impaired

exposures
Transfer to credit-impaired
exposures

Provision for (reversal of) paymeht

guarantees
Foreign currency translation
Ending balance

Beginning balance

Transfer to 12-month expected credit

loss
Transfer to lifetime expected
credit losses:

Transfer to non credit:impaired

_exposures
Transfer to credit-impaired
exposures

Provision for (reversal of) payment

guarantees
Foreign currency translation
Ending balance

2022
Lifetime expected credit losses
12-month
expected credit Non credit- Credit-
loss impaired impaired Total

W 179,232 199,694 378,695 757,621
9,036 (190) (8,846) -

(129,944) 131,290 (1,346) : -

(164) (2,667) 2,831 -

2,486 175,279 (40,776) 136,989

3,504 33,849 21,462 58,815

4 64,150 . 537,255 352,020 953,425

2021
Lifetime expected credit losses
12-month :
expected credit Non credit- Credit-
loss impaired impaired Total

W 183,963 155,646 264,039 603,648
105,507 (105,507) - -

(90,952) 90,952 } - -

(4,090) (1,552) 5,642 -

(20,070) 54,942 98,769 133,641

4,874 5,213 10,245 20,332

W 179,232 199,694 378,695 757,621

(5) Changes of lawsuit provision and other provision for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Beginning balance

Increase (reversal) of provision
Provision used and others
Ending balance

Beginning balance :
Increase (reversal) of provision
Provision used and others
Ending balance

2022

Lawsuit provision Provision for restoration Other provision
W 1,731 14,620 54,037
(1,492) (2,008) -
- 1,594 (48,008)
W 239 14,206 6,029
2021
Lawsuit provision Provision for restoration Other provision
W 441 15,365 47,458
1,408 (1,820) 6,596
(118) 1,075 a7
W 1,731 14,620 54,037
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22. Provisions, Continued

(6) Provision for payment guarantees and financial guarantee provision

Confirmed acceptances and guarantees, unconfirmed acceptances and guarantees and bills endorsed are not
recognized on the statement of financial position, but are disclosed as off-statement of financial position items in
the notes to the financial statements. The Bank provides a provision for such off-statement of financial position
items, applying a Credit Conversion Factor (“CCF”) and provision rates under the Bank’s expected credit loss model,
and records the provision as a reserve for expected credit losses on acceptances and guarantees.

In the case of financial guarantee contracts, when the amount calculated using the same method as above is greater
than the initial amount less amortization of fees recognized, the difference is recorded as a financial guarantee
provision.

(7) Provision for unused commitments
The Bank records a provision for a certain portion of unused credit lines which is calculated using a CCF as
provision for unused commitments applying provision rates under the Bank’s expected credit loss model.

(8) Provision for possible losses from lawsuits

As of December 31, 2022, the Bank is involved in 13 lawsuits as a plaintiff and 23 lawsuits as a defendant. The
aggregate amounts of claims as a plaintiff and a defendant amounted to W149,743 million and W208,154 million,
respectively. The Bank provided a provision against contingent loss from pending lawsuits as of December 31, 2022
and additional losses may be incurred depending on the result of pending lawsuits.

Major lawsuits in progress as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

December 31, 2022
Contents Amounts Status of lawsuit
Plaintiff:
‘Korea Trade Insurance Claim for guarantee W 136,538 1%, 2™ trial ruled against the
Corporation and one other  insurance Bank; 3" trial in progress

KAMCO 1stJV _ Transfer of claim 8,792 1%t 2™ trial ruled partially in
Securitization Specialty favor of the Bank; 3™ trial
Co., Ltd. in progress

Hana Bank and 6 others Claim for undue benefit 1,647 1% trial ruled against the

Bank, 2" trial in progress
e-RAP KOREA Co., Ltd. Claim for loans (participate 1238 1% trial in progress
and one other in succession) ’
Defendant: :

Shinhan Bank and one Claim for damages 58,474 1% trial in progress
other

169 individuals including Claim for wage 36,573  1%'trial ruled in favor of the
Mr. Kim . Bank, 2* trial in progress

Dongbu Corporation Claim for nullity of table of 33,997  15'trial ruled in favor of the

rehabilitation creditor Bank; 2™ trial ruled
against the Bank; 3™ trial
, in progress

Woori Bank Claim for profit and loss 21,246 1%, 2" trial ruled against the

settlement Bank

Dongbu Corporation Claim for objection of 19,658 1% trial in progress

request (participation to
support)

Export-Import Bank of Claim for undue benefit 9,797  1%trial ruled in favor of the
Korea Bank, 2° trial in progress

KAMCO IstJV Claim for transaction 7,000 1%, 2" trial ruled partially in

Securitization Specialty
Co., Ltd.

amount (counterclaim)
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22. Provisions, Continued

Plaintiff:
Korea Trade Insurance
Corporation and one other
KAMCO IstJV
Securitization Specialty
Co., Ltd.
Hana Bank and 6 others
Kappa Korea and one other
Defendant:
Shinhan Bank and one
other
Dongbu Corporation

Dongbu Corporation
Hana Bank

KAMCO 1stJV
Securitization Specialty
Co., Ltd.

(9) Other provision

December 31, 2021
Contents Amounts Status of lawsuit
Claim for guarantee W 136,538  1°* trial ruled against the
insurance Bank; 2" trial in progress

Transfer of claim

Claim for undue benefit
Claim for loans

Claim for damages

Claim for nullity of table of
rehabilitation creditor

Claim for objection of
request (participation to
support):

Claim for settlement money
and others

Claim for transaction
amount

8,792

1,647

1,000

58,474

33,997

19,658

7,500

7,000

- The Bank recognised other pfovision as a reserve for other miscellaneous purpose.
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23. Other Liabilities

(1) Other liabilities as of December 31, 2022 and 202! are as follows:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Accounts payable W 2,740,749 3,418,503
Lease liabilities 167,070 157,111
Accrued expense 1,863,498 1,444,423
Unearned income 115,598 39,182
Deposits withholding tax 43,823 24,111
Guarantee money received 832,614 173,264
Foreign exchanges payable 40,557 77,692
Domestic exchanges payable 242,266 617,446
Borrowing from trust accounts ' 755,127 1,049,712
Financial guarantee liability 28,886 23,093
Others 254,627 113,396
7,084,815 ‘ 7,137,933

Present value discount (91,134) (45,037)
W 6,993,681 7,092,896

The carrying amount of financial liabilities included in other liabilities above amounted to W:6,717,731 million and
W6,817,630 million as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, and their fair value amounted to ¥6,704,736
million and W6,807,462 million as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

(2) Details of lease liabilities as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

December 31, 2022
Face value Discount Carrying amounts
Real estate W 162,676 (89,084) 73,592
Vehicles . 4,321 411) 3,910
Others 73 (3) 70
W 167,070 (89,498) 71,572

December 31, 2021
Face value Discount Carrying amounts
Real estate W 153,420 (42,796) 110,624
Vehicles 3,691 (432) 3,259
. W 157,111 (43,228) 113,883

(3) The amount related to lease recognized in profit or loss for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as
follows:

2022 2021

Depreciation of right-of-use assets W '
Real estate 31,274 ' 27,208
Vehicles 2,287 2,087
Others 11 4
33,572 29,299
Interest expenses on the lease liabilities 1,561 483
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets . 8,427 7,988
W : 43,560 37,770
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23. Other Liabilities, Continued

(4) Cash flows used in lease liabilities for the years ended December.31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Decrease in lease liabilities
Lease payments relating to leases of low-value
. assets

2022 2021
W 27,893 25,020
8,427 7,988
W 36,320 33,008

(5) Maturity analysis of undiscounted lease payments relating to lease liabilities as of December 31, 2022 and 2021

are as follows:

December 31, 2022
Within 3 months 1 year Over
3 months ~ 1 year ~ 5 years S years Total
Lease payments W 12,931 36,044 103,576 14,519 167,070
December 31, 2021
Within 3 months 1-year Over
3 months ~ 1 year ~ 5 years S years Total
Lease payments W 7,950 18,555 116,780 13,826 157,111
24, Equity
(1) Issued capital

The Bank is authorized to issue up to 6,000 million shares of common stock and has 4,630,311,768 shares issued
and 4,377,311,768 shares issued as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, and outstanding with-a total par
value (W 5,000 of par value per share) of W23,151,559 million and W21,886,559 million as of December 31, 2022

.and 2021, respectively.

(2) Capital surplus
Capital surplus as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Paid-in capital in excess of par value W 40,442 44,142
Surplus from capital reduction (*1) - 44373 44,373
Other capital surplus (*2) 2,390,495 2,390,495
. W 2,475,310 2,479,010

(*1) The Bank reduced WS5,178,600 million of its issued capital in 1998 and 2000 to offset its accumulated deficit
amounting to W5,134,227 million. As the result of the capital reduction, W44,373 million of surplus exceeding
accumulated deficit was recorded in capital surplus in equity

(*2) The difference in the amount of shares issued and the carrying value of net asset acquired occurring from the
merger of the Bank with KDB Financial Group Inc. and Korea Finance Corporation are recognized as other

capital surplus.
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24. Equity, Continued

(3) Accumulated other comprehensive income

(i) Accumulated other comprehensive income as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Net gain on securities measured at FVOCI
Valuation gain on securities measured at .
FVOCI (before tax) ' W 3,393,442 6,399,029
Loss allowance for securities measured at
FVOCI (before tax) 86,178 86,449
Income tax effect (922,099) (1,783,506)
‘ 2,557,521 4,701,972
Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations: ’
Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations (before tax) 132,126 39,000
Income tax effect : - -
; 132,126 39,000
Valuation gain on cash flow hedge:
Valuation gain on cash flow hedge (before tax) 7,241 1,930
Income tax effect (1,919) (531)
5,322 1,399
Net gain (loss) on hedges of net investments in
foreign operations:
Net gain (loss) on hedges of net investments in
~foreign operations (before tax) (96,874) (29,120)
Income tax effect 25,672 8,008
£ (71,202) (21,112)
Remeasurements of defined benefit liabilities:
Remeasurements of defined benefit liabilities
(before tax) 142,678 71,362
Income tax effect (37,808) (19,623)
104,870 51,739
Fair value changes on financial liabilities
designated at fair value due to credit risk:
Valuation gain (loss) on financial liabilities
designated at fair value due to credit risk
(before tax) _ 123,398 657
Income tax effect (32,702) (181)
90,696 476
W 2,819,333 4,773,474
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24. Equity, Continued

(ii) Changes in accumulated other comprehensive income for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as

follows:

Gain on securities measured at
FVOCI

Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations

Valuation gain on cash flow hedge

» Net gain (loss) on hedges of net

investments in foreign operations

Remeasurements of defined benefit
liabilities

Valuation gain (loss) on financial
liabilities designated at fair value
due to credit risk

Gain on securities measured at
FVOCI ‘

Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations

Valuation gain on cash flow hedge

Net gain (loss) on hedges of net
investments in foreign operations

Remeasurements of defined benefit
liabilities

Valuation gain (loss) on financial
liabilities designated at fair value
due to credit risk

2022
January 1, Increase December 31,
2022 (Decrease) Tax Effect 2022

W 4,701,972 (3,005,858) 861,407 2,557,521
39,000 93,126 - 132,126

1,399 5,311 (1,388) . 5,322
(21,112) (67,754) 17,664 (71,202)

51,739 71,316 (18,185) 104,870

476 122,741 (32,521) 90,696

W 4,773,474 (2,781,118) 826,977 2,819,333

2021
January 1, Increase December 31,
2021 (Decrease) Tax Effect 2021

W 2,079,878 3,616,681 (994,587) 4,701,972
(60,912) 99,912 - 39,000

34 1,883 (518) 1,399
35,507 (78,095) 21,476 (21,112)

15,534 49,800 (13,695) 51,739

(5,770 8,616 (2,370 476

W 2,064,371 3,698,797 (989,694) 4,773,474
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24,

Equity, Continued

(4) Retained earnings '

In accordance with the Korea Development Bank Act, the Bank is required to appropriate at least 40% of net income
as a legal reserve. This reserve can be transferred to paid-in capital or offset an accumulated deficit.

In accordance with the Korea Development Bank Act, the Bank offsets an accumulated deficit with reserves. If the
reserve is insufficient to offset the accumulated deficit, the Korean government is responsible for the deficit.

(i) Retained earnings as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Legal reserve W 2,535,892 1,551,154
Voluntary reserve ' '
Regulatory reserve for loan losses - 247,252 482,885
Unappropriated retained earnings 4,439,027 5,329,775
W 7,222,171 7,363,814

(ii) Changes in legal reserve for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

2022 2021
Beginning balance W 1,551,154 1,356,142
Transfer from retained earnings 984,738 195,012
Ending balance W 2,535,892 1,551,154

.

(iii) Changes in unappropriated retained earnings for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

2022 2021

Beginning balance W 5,329,775 2,565,852
Contribution to legal reserve (984,738) (195,012)
Transfer from regulatory reserve for credit losses 235,632 663,153
Dividends (833,089) (209,638)
Reclassification of gain or loss on equity

securities measured at FVOCI 226,465 43,574
Profit for the year 464,981 2,461,846
Ending balance W 4,439,026 5,329,775
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24.

Equity, Continued

(iv) Statements of appropriation of retained earnings for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

I. Unappropriated retained earnings:
Unappropriated retained earning carried
forward from the prior year W
Gain on disposal of securities measured at
FVOCI

Profit for the year

II. Transfers such as discretionary reserves
Transfer from to regulatory reserve for credit
losses

III. Appropriation of retained earnings:

Contribution to legal reserve
Dividends (W36 for 2022 and W190 for
2021 per share)

IV. Unappropriated retained earnings to be
-carried over to subsequent year W

2021

2022
3,747,580 2,824,355
226,465 43,574
464,981 2,461,846
4,439,026 5,329,775
35,256 235,632
35,256 235,632
185,993 984,739
164,744 833,089
350,737 1,817,828
4,123,545 3,747,579
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24.

Equity, Continued

(5) Regulatory reserve for credit losses

The Bank is required to provide a regulatory reserve for credit losses in accordance with Regulations on Supervision
of Banking Business 29(1) and (2). The details of regulatory reserve for credit losses are as follows:

(i) Regulatory reserve for credit losses as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Beginning balance W 247,253 482,885
Planned reversal of reserve for credit losses (35,257) (235,632)
Ending balance W 211,996 247,253

(i) Required reversal of regulatory reserve for credit losses and profit after adjusting regulatory reserve for loan
losses for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

2022 2021

Profit for the year W 464,981 2,461,846
Obligated amount of reversal of

regulatory reserve for credit losses : 35,257 235,632
Profit after adjusting regulatory

reserve for credit losses W 500,238 2,697,478
Earnings per share after adjusting

regulatory reserve for credit losses

(in won) W 112 625
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25.

26.

Net Interest Income

Net interest income for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

_ Interest income:

Due from banks

Securities measured at FVTPL
Securities measured at FVOCI
Loans measured at amortized cost
Loans measured at FVTPL

Loans measured at amortized cost

Interest expense:

Financial liabilities measured at

FVTPL
Deposits
Borrowings
Debentures

Net Fees and Commission Income

W

Net fees and commission income for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Fees and commission income:
Loan commissions
Underwriting and investment

consulting commissions
Brokerage and agency

commissions

_ Trust and retirement pension plan

commissions

Fees on asset management

Other fees

Fees and commission expenses:
Brokerage and agency fees

Other fees

2022 2021
133,499 27,254
23,681 23,736
559,328 347,468
87,840 21,913
12,402 17,042
6,029,985 3,687,863
6,846,735 4,125,276
(82,977) (82,058)
(1,162,006) (370,202)
(554,587) (137,662)
(3,303,350) (1,876,745)
(5,102,920) (2,466,667)
1,743,815 1,658,609
2022 2021
141,401 120,414
123,490 103,131
7,059 7,317
-34,240 34,561
2,049 2,502
183,709 112,398
491,948 380,323
(9,093) (7,635)
(28,946) (25,982)
(38,039) (33,617)
453,909 346,706
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27.

28.

29.

Dividend Income

Dividend income for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Securities measured at FVTPL W

Securities measured at FVOCI

Investments in subsidiaries and
associates

2022 2021
297,652 218,475
171,706 112,366
388,144 928,804
857,502 1,259,645

Net Gain (Loss) on Securities Measured at FVTPL

Net gain (loss) related to securities measured at FVTPL for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as

follows:

Gains on securities measured at FVTPL:
-Gains on sale W
Gains on valuation

Losses on securities measured at FVTPL:
Losses on sale
Losses on valuation
Purchase related expense

W

3

2022 2021
190,140 66,358

289,190 271,999

479,330 338,357
(176,304) (75,374)
(342,125) (127,364)
(324) (171)
(518,753) (202,909)

(39,423) 135,448

Net Gain on Financial Liabilities Measured at FVTPL

Net gain related to financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss for the years ended December

31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

2022 2021
Gains on financial liabilities
measured at FVTPL:
Gains on redemption W 5,438 625
Gains on valuation 459,661 152,243
465,099 152,868
Losses on financial liabilities.
measured at FVTPL:
Losses on redemption - (309)
Losses on valuation - (2,679)
- (2,988)
W 465,099 149,880
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30. Net Loss on Securities Measured at FVOCI

* Net loss related to securities measured at FVOCI for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows: "

2022 2021
Gains on securities measured at FVOCI: : :
Gains on sale W : 6,486 14,495
Reversal of impairment losses 2,432 -
' : 8,918 14,495
Losses on securities measured at FVOCI: )
Losses on sale (64,798) (37,653)
Impairment losses (1,314) (4,763)
. (66,112) (42,416)
W (57,194) (27,921)
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31.

Net Gain (Loss) on Derivatives

Net gain (loss) on derivatives for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Net gain on trading purpose derivatives:
Gains on trading purpose derivatives:
Interest
Currency
Stock
Gains on adjustment of derivatives

Losses on trading purpose derivatives:
Interest

Currency

Stock

Losses on adjustment of derivatives

Net loss on hedging purpose derivatives:

Gains on hedging purpose derivatives:
Interest

Currency

Gains on adjustment of derivatives

Losses on hedging purpose derivatives:

Interest
Currency
Losses on adjustment of derivatives

Net gain on fair value hedged items:
Gains on fair value hedged items:
Gains on valuation
Gains on redemption

Losses on fair value hedged items:
Losses on valuation
Losses on redemption

5,165,418 2,485,586
17,393,137 11,370,394
7,216 13,801
17,241 4,336
22,583,012 13,874,117
(4,580,277) (2,378,834)
(17,170,546) (10,910,300)
(16,401) (4,194)
(49,297) (92,276)
(21,816,521) (13,385,604)
766,491 488,513
350,465 70,831
262,364 163,829
309 362
613,138 235,022
(1,971,755) (705,149)
(814,174) (717,324)
(448) (422)
(2,786,377) (1,422,895)
(2,173,239) (1,187,873)
2,264,372 773,826
101,186 184,599
2,365,558 958,425
(441,181) (255,932)
(396,190) (205,224)
(837,371) (461,156)
1,528,187 497,269
121,439 (202,091)

Related with cash flow hedge, the Bank recognized W-267 million of loss and W152 million of gain in the statements
of comprehensive income as the ineffective portion for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.
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32. Net Foreign Currency Transaction Gain (Loss)

Net foreign currency transaction gain (loss) for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

2022

2021

Net loss on foreign exchange

transactions:
Gains on foreign exchange
transactions W 1,044,586 567,692
Losses on foreign exchange ‘
transactions (1,056,155) (577,226)
(11,569) (9,534)
Net gain (loss) on foreign currency
translations:
Gains on foreign currency
translations 14,184,182 8,839,001
Losses on foreign currency , .
translations (14,473,503) (8,675,100)
(289,321) 163,901
W (300,890) 154,367
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33.

Other Operating Income (Expense), net

Other operating income (expense) for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

\

2022 2021
Other operating income:
Gains on sale of loans W 36,930 60,323
Gains on disposal of loans
measured at FVTPL 8,100 1,860,411
Gains on valuation of loans
measured at FVTPL 9,294 83,760
Gains on disposal of investments
in subsidiaries and associates 9,823 90,601
Reversal of provisions 47,622 3,687
Others 21,026 16,586
132,795 2,115,368
Other operating expenses:
Losses on sale of loans (9,110) (28,298)
Losses on disposal of loans
measured at FVTPL (8,709) (9,692)
Losses on valuation of loans
measured at FVTPL (88,248) (4,349)
Losses on disposal of investments
in subsidiaries and associates (4,399) (592)
Increase in provisions (159) 9,872)
Insurance expenses (91,363) (75,121)
Credit guarantee fund salary (201,730) (189,504)
Educational taxes (38,695) (33,842)
Foreign security contributions (11,256) (5,384)
Others (28,953) (20,098)
(482,622) . (376,752)
W (349,827) 1,738,616
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34.

3s.

Provision for Credit Losses

Provision for credit losses for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Provision for loan loss allowance W

Provision for (reversal of) other

assets

Provision for (reversal of) unused
commitments

Provision for (reversal of) financial
guarantee provision

Provision for (reversal of) payment
guarantees

W

General and Administraﬁve Exp_ enses

General and administrative expenses for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Payroll costs:
Short-term employee benefits W
Defined benefit costs
Defined contribution costs

Depreciation and amortization:
Depreciation of property and
equipment
" Amortization of intangible assets

Other:
Employee welfare benefits
- Rent expenses
Taxes and dues
Advertising expenses
Electronic data processing
expenses
* Fees and charges
Others

2022 2021
410,450 855,548
(579) 1,076
(256,820) (137,830)
(29,679) (5,078)
136,989 133,641
260,361 847,357
2022 2021
392,968 388,800
70,092 39,995
9,081 7,085
472,141 435,880
71,584 70,860
54,262 53,837
125,846 124,697
38,684 33,955
5,783 5,078
39,686 35,228
17,762 17,465
86,406 83,418
39,410 36,442
50,653 43,583
278,384 255,169
876,371 815,746
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36. Other Non-Operating Income and Expense

Other non-operating income and expense for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Other non-operating income:

Gain on disposal of assets held for
sale

Reversal of impairment loss on
assets held for sale

Gain on disposal of property and
equipment

Gain on disposal of intangible
assets

Rental income on investment
property

Others

Other non-operating expense:

Losses of disposal of assets held
for sale

Impairment loss on assets held for
sale

Losses on disposal of property
and equipment

Loss on disposal of intangible
assets ’

Depreciation of investment

- property

Donations

Others

2021
. 3,610
. 27
1,912 2,074
3 -
3,138 2,877
8,853 5,942
13,906 14,530
- V)]
- (258,428)
1,172) (592)
(5) -
(2,084) (2,209)
(5,578) (6,594)
(1,489) (4,554
(10,328) (272,379)
3,578 (257,849)

84



Korea Development Bank

Notes to the Separate Financial Statements

December 31, 2022 and 2021
(In millions of won)

37. Income Tax Expense

(1) Income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

. 2021

Current income tax (*) W 35,069 312,034
Changes in income tax before the , .

prior years (156,122) (350,718)
Changes in deferred income taxes on

temporary differences (335,728) 2,238,422
Effect of unused tax loss (156,618) -
Deferred income tax recognized :

directly to equity

Other comprehensive income 826,977 (989,694)

Retained earnings (85,900) (16,528)
Income tax expense W 127,678 1,193,516

(*) Includes changes such as those that arise from final tax returns.

(2) Profit before income taxes and income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as

follows:

Profit before income taxes
Income taxes calculated using
enacted tax rates
Adjustments:
Non-deductible losses and tax-free gains
Non-recognition effect of deferred income
taxes
Net adjustments for prior years
Tax rate reduction effects
Others

Income tax expense
Effective tax rate (%)

85

2022 2021
592,659 73,655,362
162,981 1,005,224
(25,196) (45,570)
108,071 258,005
(38,944) (34,694)
(94,731) )
15,497 10,551
(35,303) 188,292
127,678 1,193,516
21.54 " 32.65
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37. Income Tax Expense, Continued

(3) Changes in temporary differences and deferred tax assets (liabilities) for the years ended December 31, 2022 and

202_1 are as follows:

2022
Deferred tax
January 1, December 31, assets
2022 (*)  Decrease Increase 2022 (liabilities)
Derivatives W (484,588) (484,588) 1,198,740 1,198,740 317,666
Investments in subsidiaries and
associates (9,363,282) (164,416) 1,168,617  (8,030,249) (2,863,687)
Losses on fair value hedged items
valuation 123,404 123,404 (1,797,984) (1,797,984) (476,466)
Losses on foreign exchange
translation for hedged liabilities (162,252) (162,252) (132,878) (132,878) (35,213)
Impairment losses on debt
securities 65,933 - - 65,933 17,472
Impairment losses on equity
securities 55,831 43,931 - 11,900 3,154
Defined benefit obligation 367,092 35,937 - 331,155 87,756
Plan assets (366,341) (27,677) (65,574) (404,238) (107,123)
Financial assets held for trading (50,634) 407 (10,644) (61,685) (16,347)
‘Available-for-sale financial assets (146,364) - - (146,364) 178
Write-off 3,461,549 2,208,028 24,555 1,278,076 332,973
Provisions 1,067,718 1,574,419 1,494,405 987,704 261,742
Property impairment losses 6,284 173 - 6,111 1,619
Dividends Receivable 13,609 - - 13,609 3,606
Loan origination fees (16,573) (16,573) (21,697) (21,697) (5,750)
Gains on sales of loans (2,396,048) (4,542) (150,102) (2,541,608) (673,526)
 Others (674,045) 2,043,140 1,106,100 (1,611,085) (469,850)
. (8,498,707) 5,169,391 2,813,538 (10,854,560) (3,621,794)
Temporary differences from
unrecognized deferred tax assets
and liabilities:
Investments in subsidiaries and
associates, etc. 2,512,727 - 299,860 2,812,587 -
W (11,011,434) 5,169,391 3,113,398 (13,667,147)  (3,621,794)
Unused tax loss W - - 591,011 591,011 156,618

(*) Temporary differences as of January 1, 2022 reflected previous year’s additional tax adjustment after the

financial statements were issued.
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37. Income Tax Expense, Continued

2021
Deferred tax
January 1, December 31, = assets
2021 (%) Decrease Increase 2021 _ (liabilities)
Derivatives W (1,478,054) (1,478,054) (484,588) (484,588) (133,262)
Investments in subsidiaries and
associates (6,936,110) 55,644  (2,461,274)  (9,453,028)  (3,248,672)
Losses on fair value hedged items :
valuation 680,195 680,195 123,404 123,404 33,936
Losses on foreign exchange
translation for hedged liabilities (18,376) (18,376) (162,252) (162,252) (44,619)
Impairment losses on debt
securities 65,933 - - 65,933 18,132
Impairment losses on equity
securities 60,351 7,021 .- 53,330 14,666
Defined benefit obligation 385,405 18,313 - 367,092 100,950
Plan assets (336,831) (18,313) (24,514) (343,032) (94,334)
Financial assets held for trading (43,634) 7,407 407 (50,634) (13,924)
Available-for-sale financial assets | (146,364) - ' - (146,364) 185
Write-off 3,443,577 277,227 293,107 3,459,457 939,146
Provisions 923,130 1,429,831 1,574,419 1,067,718 293,622
Property impairment losses 6,457 173 - 6,284 1,728
Dividends Receivable 8,365 8,365 5,245 5,245 . 1,442
Loan origination fees (9,063) (9,063) (16,573) (16,573) (4,558)
Gains on sales of loans (63,311) (242) (2,332,979)  (2,396,048) (658,913)
. Others , (825,857) 4,672,829 1,604,388 (3,894,298)  (1,163,047)
' (4,284,187) 5,632,957  (1,881,210) (11,798,354)  (3,957,522)
Temporary differences from ’

unrecognized deferred tax assets
and liabilities:
Investmentg in subsidiaries and
associates, etc. 1,886,720 - 626,007 2,512,727 -
W (6,170,907) 5,632,957 (2,507,217) (14,311,081)  (3,957,522)

(*) Temporary differences as of January 1, 2021 reflected previous year’s additional tax adjustment after the
financial statements were issued.
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37.

Income Tax Expense, Continued

(4) Changes in income tax expense recognized directly to equity for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
are as follows:

2022
December 31, 2022 January 1, 2022
Amounts Amounts . Changes in

before tax Tax effect before tax Tax effect tax effect

Net gain (loss) on securities

measured at FVOCI W 2,557,521 (922,099) 4,701,972 (1,783,506) 861,407
Exchange differences on

translation of foreign operations 132,126 - 39,000 - -
Net gain (loss) on valuation of

cash flow hedge 5,322 (1,919) 1,399 (531) (1,388)
Net gain on hedges of net

investments in foreign operations (71,202) 25,672 21,112) 8,008 17,664
Remeasurements of defined

benefit liabilities 104,870 (37,808) 51,739 (19,623) (18,185)

Fair value changes on financial
liabilities designated at fair value

due to credit risk 90,696 (32,702) 476 (181) (32,521)

w__ 2,819,333 (968,856) 4,773,474 _ (1,795,833) 826,977

Income tax benefit recognized direct to retained earnings amounting to W-85,900 million is the tax effect of realized
income amounting to W 312,365 million from disposal of equity securities measured at FVOCIL.

t 2021
December 31, 2021 January 1, 2021
Amounts Amounts Changes in

before tax Tax effect before tax Tax effect tax effect

Net gain (loss) on securities

measured at FVOCI W 4,701,972 (1,783,506) 2,079,878 (788,919) (994,587)
Exchange differences on

translation of foreign operations 39,000 - (60,912) - -
Net gain (loss) on valuation of

cash flow hedge 1,399 (531) 34 (13) (518)
Net gain on hedges of net

investments in foreign operations (21,112) 8,008 35,507 -(13,468) 21,476
Remeasurements of defined ‘

benefit liabilities : 51,739 (19,623) 15,634 (5,928) (13,695)

Fair value changes on financial
liabilities designated at fair value
due to credit risk 476 (181) (5,770) 2,189 (2,370)
W 4,773,474  (1,795.833) 2,064,371 (806,139) (989,694)

Income tax benefit recognized direct to retained earnings amounting to 16,528 million is the tax effect of realized
income amounting to W-60,102 million from disposal of equity securities measured at FVOCL
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38.

Earnings per Share

(1) Basic earnings per share

The Bank’s basic earnings per share for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are computed as follows:

(i) Basic earnings per share

2022

2021

Profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Bank (A) (in
won) W
Weighted-average number of

464,981,486,967

2,461,845,944,398

ordinary shares outstanding (B) "4,477,598,343 4,319,226,656
Basic earnings per share (A/B) (in
won) W 104 570

(ii) Weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding

Number of ordinary shares outstanding at the
beginning of the year (A)

Increased paid-in capital (B)

Increased paid-in capital (C)

Increased paid-in capital (D)

Cumulative shares (D = A+B+C+D)

Weighted-average number of ordinary shares
outstanding (D/365)

Number of ordinary shares outstanding at the
beginning of the year (A)

Increased paid-in capital (B)

Increased paid-in capital (C)

Cumulative shares (D = A+B+C)

Weighted-average number of ordinary shares
outstanding (D/365)

(2) Diluted earnings per share

2022
Number of ordinary shares Days Cumulative shares
4,377,311,768 365 1,597,718,795,320
78,400,000 318 24,931,200,000
61,600,000 184 11,334,400,000
113,000,000 3 339,000,000
1,634,323,395,320
4,477,598,343
2021
Number of ordinary shares Days Cumulative shares
4,153,145,768 365 1,515,898,205,320
102,000,000 338 34,476,000,000
122,166,000 214 26,143,524,000
1,576,517,729,320
4,319,226,656

Diluted and basic earnings per share for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are equal because there

is no potential dilutive instrument.
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39.

40.

Pledged Assets
Assets pledged by the Bank as collateral as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Related Related
Pledged assets liabilities Pledged assets liabilities
Securities measured at FVOCI (*) W 3,721,125 4,369,781
Securities measured at amortized cost (*) 3,196,592 432,969 2,455,324 1,685,428
1,685,428

W 6,917,717 432,969 6,825,105

(*) Pledged as collateral related to bonds sold under repurchase agreements and borrowings.

Guarantees and Commitments

Guarantees and commitments as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Confirmed acceptances and guarantees:
Acceptances in foreign currency W 220,420 276,041
" Guarantees for bond issuance 1,860,754 2,224,142
" Guarantees for loans 560,129 611,091
Letter of guarantee ‘ 64,924 -37,292
Guarantees for on-lending debt 4,877 6,794
Others 6,219,285 4,593,406
8,930,389 7,748,766
-Unconfirmed acceptances and guarantees:
Letter of credit 1,940,855 1,979,841
Others 5,836,016 4,224,656
o 7,776,871 6,204,497
Commitments:
Commitments on loans 47,205,974 46,591,132
Others 2,020,595 2,020,595
' 49,226,569 48,611,727
W 65,933,829 62,564,990
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41.

Trust Accounts

(1) Trust accounts as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

o December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Accrued trust fee W ' 10,052 8,585
Borrowings from trust accounts 583,034 965,733
Accrued interest on deposits 511 686

(2) Transactions with trust accounts for the years ended December 3 1, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

2022 2021
Trust management fee W 31,223 31,729
Interest expenses of borrowings from trust '

accounts 17,585 7,167

(3) The carrying amounts of pﬁncipals guaranteed money trust and principals and interest guaranteed money trust
as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Principals guaranteed money trust W 224,876 236,858
Principals and interest guaranteed money trust 229,324 234,697
W 454,200 471,555
Principal of money and property trust 4 421,623 436,299

Accrued trust profit _ 32,577 ) 35,256
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42.

Related Party Transactions

(1) The Bank’s related parties as of December 31, 2022 are as follows:

Classification

Corporate name

Subsidiaries

Associates

Others

KDB Capital Corporation, Daewoo Shipbuilding & Marine Engineering Co.,
Ltd., KDB Infrastructure Investment Asset Management Co., Ltd., KDB Asia
Ltd., KDB Ireland Ltd., KDB Bank Europe Ltd., Banco KDB Do Brazil S.A.,
KDB Bank Uzbekistan, PT KDB Tifa Finance Tbk and 7 others, KDB
Investment PEF No. 2, KDB Consus Value PEF, KDB Small Medium
Mezzanine PEF and 7 others, Principals guaranteed trust accounts of KDB,
Principals and interests guaranteed interest trust accounts of KDB, KDB ESG
1ST INC. and 12 others, KIAMCO Road Investment Private Fund Special Asset
Trust 2 and 17 others

Korea Electric Power Co., Ltd., Korea Tourism Organization, Korea Real Estate
Board, GM Korea Company, HMM Co., Ltd., HANJIN KAL, Korean Air Lines
Co., Ltd., Korea Ocean Business Corporation and 14 others, Keistone Value
Investment 2nd Private Equity Fund and 99 others, Hana K-New Deal Unicorn
Fund and 112 others

Key management personnel

(2) Significant balances with related parties as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Subsidiaries:
KDB Capital Corporation

KDB Infrastructure Investment
Asset Management Co., Ltd.

KDB Ireland Ltd.

KDB Bank Europe Ltd.

Banco KDB Do Brazil S.A.

PT KDB Tifa Finance Tbk

December 31, December 31,
Account 2022 2021

Loans W 1,924 74,158
Allowance for loan losses (1) (36)
Derivative financial assets 1,305 1,463
Other assets 2 4
Deposits 100,255 447
Other liabilities 35,408 35,539
Deposits 606 9,028
Other liabilities 1 34
Loans . 753,188 543,636
Allowance for loan losses (241) (158)
Derivative financial assets 18 5,141
Other assets 3,138 114
Derivative financial liabilities 19,778 1,510
Cash and due from banks 365,513 353,575
Loans 40,536 -
Allowance for loan losses (13) -
Derivative financial assets - 2,202
Other assets 2,854 Co-
Derivative financial liabilities 501 -
Other liabilities - 1,872
Cash and due from banks 87,444 59,275
Loans 234,451 210,426
Allowance for loan losse (75) (78)
Other assets : 2,802 317
Allowance of other assets ) -
Loans 25,346 23,710
Allowance for loan losses 8 @)
Other assets 92 12
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42. Related Party Transactions, Continued

December 31, December 31,
Account 2022 2021
KDB Silicon Valley LL.C Deposits 107,721 86,542
Other liabilities . 321 20
KDB Asia Ltd. Cash and due from banks 1,346,583 1,344,965
Loans 228,114 450,474
Allowance for loan losses (73) (130)
Derivative financial assets 25 26
Other assets 8,872 1,237
Allowance of other assets ) -
Deposits 2 2
Borrowings 32,967 43,707
Derivative financial liabilities 14,551 2,408
Other liabilities 146 167
KDB Investment PEF No.1 Loans - 600,000
Allowance for loan losses - (2,554)
Derivative financial assets - 800
Other assets - 8,758
Allowance of other assets - (32)
Deposits - 215,203
Derivative financial liabilities - 3,550
Other liabilities - 140
Other provisions - 1,630
KDB Consus Value PEF Securities 18,494 40,101
Derivative financial assets 13,564 8,633
Other assets 149 345
Deposits "~ 139 62
Derivative financial liabilities 8,302 1,083
Other liabilities 708 702
Daewoo Shipbuilding &
Marine Engineering Co., Ltd. Loans 1,549,024 1,432,973
Allowance for loan losses (821,394) (599,475)
Derivative financial assets 460,879 194,696
Other assets 10,650 1,488
Deposits 169,965 473,357
Derivative financial liabilities -18 2,731
Other liabilities 13,144 30,802
Other provisions 786,164 781,272
Corporate Liquidity Assistance
Agency Co., Ltd. Loans 440,000 440,000
Allowance for loan losses (152), (142)
Other assets 44,544 24,331
Allowance of other assets (15) 8)
Deposits 444,924 610,416
Other liabilities 507 190
Other provisions 144 135
Others Loans 1,336,253 1,015,470
Allowance for loan losses . (141,003) (432,829)
Derivative financial assets 5,473 10,697
Other assets 3,105 11,853
Allowance of other assets (344) (5,384)
Deposits 136,609 93,295
Borrowings 44,553 95,565
Derivative financial liabilities 850 205
Other liabilities 6,078 16,927
Other provisions 3,728 246,239
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42. Related Party Transactions, Continued

Associates:
Korea Electric Power Co., Ltd.

KG Dongbu Steel Co., Ltd.

HMM Co., Ltd.

HANJIN KAL

Korean Air Lines Co., Ltd.

Korea Ocean Business
Corporation

Others

December 31,

December 31,

Account 2022 2021
Securities 177,317 10,759
Loans 227,477 236,223
Allowances for loan losses (1,151) (1,428)
Derivative financial assets 92,381 2,409
Other assets 4,409 2,074
Deposits 23,196 400,963
Borrowings 2,253 2,649
Derivative financial liabilities 223,611 149,969
Other liabilities 57,487 3,434
Other provisions 59 12
Loans - 783,695
Allowances for loan losses - (4,093)
Other assets - 375
Deposits - 12,294
Other liabilities - 76
Other provisions - 682
Securities 5,233,622 7,315,547
Loans 164,292 202,509
Allowances for loan losses (2,243) (30,614)
Other assets 7,123 7,236
Deposits 509,920 1,876,483
Other liabilities 10,468 9,145
Loans 373,445 449,252
Other assets 481 518
Deposits 70,000 -
Other liabilities 1,050 -
Loans 1,189,100 -
Allowances for loan losses (8,798) -
Other assets 11,989 -
Deposits 1,716,833 -
Other liabilities 23,075 -
Derivative financial liabilities 73,131 -
Loans - 15,237
Allowances for loan losses - )
Other assets - 16
Deposits 25,000 40,000
Other liabilities 386 237
Securities - 1,454
Loans 209,978 445,904
Allowances for loan losses (480) (8,250)
Other assets 6,472 6,900
Deposits 323,333 470,808
Other liabilities 2,215 2,307
Other provisions 46 76,500

(*1) Daewoo Engineering & Construction Co., Ltd. that was the subsidiary of KDB Investment PEF No.1 is
disposed and is excluded from the Bank’s related parties for the year ended December 31, 2022.
(*2) KG Dongbu Steel Co., Ltd. is excluded from the Bank’s related parties due to the disposal of shares for the

year ended December 31, 2022.
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42. Related Party Transactions, Continued

(3) Significant profit or loss with related parties for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Subsidiaries:

KDB Capital Corporation

KDB Infrastructure Investments
Asset Management Co., Ltd.

KDB Ireland Ltd.

KDB Bank Europe Ltd.

Account 2022 2021

Interest income - 305 92
Dividend income 69,766 27,956
Reversal of allowance for loan :

losses 35 -
Fees and commission income,

other income 5,418 6,018
Interest expenses (1,058) 417
Provision for loan losses - (33)
Other operating expenses (119) (513)
Dividend income 13,499 9,089
Interest expenses (106) (121)
Interest income 12,111 1,186
Fees and commission income,

other income 4,626 5,176
Interest expenses ) )
Provision for loan losses (74) 57
Other operating expenses (26,771) (8,028)
Interest income 5,846 712
Fees and commission income,

other income 183 2,760
Interest expenses ) 1)
Provision for loan losses (13) -
Other operating expenses (6,900) (596)
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42. Related Party Transactions, Continued

Account 2022 2021
Banco KDB Do Brazil S.A. Interest income 5,133 1,016
Reversal of allowance for loan
losses 8 -
Provision for loan losses - 45)
Other operating expenses (1) -
PT KDB Tifa Finance Tbk Interest income 576 160
Provision for loan losses 0)) (1)
KDB Silicon Valley LLC Fees and commission income,
other income - 384 -
Interest expenses (2,648) (22)
KDB Asia Ltd. Interest income 36,144 8,258
Reversal of allowance for loan ‘
losses 63 -
Fees and commission income,
other income 830 2,386
Interest expenses (821) (426)
Provision for loan losses - (57
Other operating expenses (14,167) (6,412)
KDB Investment PEF No.1 Interest income 2,926 22,780
g Fees and commission income,
other income 2,949 2,567
Interest expenses (230) (230)
Other operating expenses - (4,805)
KDB Consus Value PEF Interest income 1,404 1,600
Fees and commission income,
other income 34,354 21,087
Interest expenses @) 6)
Other operating expenses (11,114) (1,094)
Daewoo Shipbuilding & Marine
Engineering Co., Ltd. Interest income 55,968 21,470
Fees and commission income,
other income 1,101,411 696,230
Interest expenses (4,732) (4,988)
Provision for loan losses (195,154) (117,849)
Other operating expenses (527,175) (247,919)
Corporate Liquidity Assistance
Agency Co., Ltd. Interest income 20,212 19,880
Fees and commission income,
other income - 33
Interest expenses (7,752) (7,226)
Provision for loan losses (10) (78)
Other operating expenses (16) N
Others Interest income 40,171 44,048
Dividend income 58,996 74,548
Reversal of allowance for loan
losses 253,724 72,674
Fees and commission income,
other income 222,300 195,228
Interest expenses (2,631) (639)
Provision for loan losses (382,807) (118,800)
Other operating expenses (184,219) (216,888)

96



Korea Development Bank

Notes to the Separate Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021
(In millions of won)

42.

Related Party Transactions, Continued

Associates:
Korea Electric Power Co., Ltd.

KG Dongbu Steel Co., Ltd.

HMM Co., Ltd.

Hanjin Heavy Industries &
Construction Co., Ltd. (*)

HANIJIN KAL

Korean Air Lines Co., Ltd.

Korea Ocean Business
Corporation

97

Account 2022 2021

Interest income 12,096 2,994
Dividend income - 256,862
Reversal of allowance for loan

losses 379 351
Fees and commission income,

other income 136,288 19,298
Interest expenses (3,357) (1,006)
Other operating expenses (208,915) (254,043)
Interest income ' - 11,889
Dividend income - 1,101
Reversal of allowance for loan

losses - 51,228
Fees and commission income,

other income - 27,840
Interest expenses - (13)
Other operating expenses - (10,866)
Interest income 42,406 43,330
Dividend income 60,720 -

. Reversal of allowance for loan

losses 28,372 62,402
Fees and commission income,

other income 19,561 1,830,596
Interest expenses (7,724) 3,377)
Other operating expenses (192,015) (85,660)
Interest income - 2,962
Fees and commission income,

other income - 133,190
Interest expenses - 177)
Provision for loan losses - (3,514)
Other operating expenses - (2,930)
Interest income 6,713 7,012
Fees and commission income,

other income 15 58,399
Interest expenses (1,184) -
Other operating expenses (75,807) -
Interest income 44,609 -
Reversal of allowance for loan

losses 13,348 -
Fees and commission income,

other income 62,228 -
Interest expenses (41,878) -
Other operating expenses (144,436) -
Interest income 343 213
Reversal of allowance for loan

losses 2 -
Fees and commission income,

other income 2,907 1,338
Interest expenses (266) (237)
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42. Related Party Transactions, Continued

Account 2022 2021
Others Interest income 6,738 20,066
Dividend income 218,852 606,017
Reversal of allowance for loan
losses 4 348,053
Fees and commission income,
other income 5,639 23,393
Interest expenses (6,422) (2,332)
Provision for loan losses (129) (641)
Other operating expenses (329) (31,566)

(*) The amounts are profit or loss recognized until the Hanjin Heavy Industries & Construction Co., Ltd. was
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42.

Related Party Transactions, Continued

(4) Details of guarantees and commitments to the related parties as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

December 31, December 31,
Account 2022 2021
Subsidiaries:
KDB Capital Corporation Commitments W 500,000 250,000
KDB Investment PEF No.1 Unconfirmed acceptances and .
guarantees - 4,386
Commitments - 413,874
Daewoo Shipbuilding & Marine ~ Confirmed acceptances and
Engineering Co., Ltd. guarantees ' 2,560,260 1,457,948
‘ Unconfirmed acceptances and
, guarantees 2,781,317 1,818,741
Commitments 2,337,089 4,047,436
Corporate Liquidity Assistance
Agency Co., Ltd. Commitments 560,000 560,000
Others Confirmed acceptances and :
guarantees - 464,349
. Unconfirmed acceptances and
guarantees 5,885 192,627
Commitments 85,625 501,800
Associates:
KG Dongbu Steel Co., Ltd. (*) Unconfirmed acceptances and
guarantees - . 32,487
Commitments - 186,021
Korean Air Lines Co., Ltd. Confirmed acceptances and
guarantees 177,367 -
Others Commitments 426,085 221,182
W 9,433,628 10,150,851.

(*) KG Dongbu Steel Co., Ltd. is excluded from the Bank’s related parties due to the disposal of shares for the
year ended December 31, 2021.

(5) Details of compensatlon to key management personnel for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as
follows:

2022 . 2021
Short-term employee benefits . W . 1,166 . 1,213
Post-employment benefits 30 33
W 1,196 1,246

(6) The Bank are not pledged any assets as collaterals to the related parties and from the related partles as of
December 31, 2022 and 2021.
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43.

Statements of Cash Flows

(1) Cash and cash equivalents in the statements of cash flows as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Cash and due from banks:
Cash and foreign currencies
Due from banks in Korean won
Due from banks in foreign currencies
/ off-shores

Less: Restricted due from banks, others
Add: Financial instruments reaching maturity
within three months from date of
acquisition
Securities measured at FVTPL
Government and public bonds
Loans measured at amortized cost:
Call-loans
Inter-bank loans

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
W 70,525 55,083
3,931,203 6,007,684
7,537,078 5,913,000
11,538,806 11,975,767
(4,450,242) (3,409,429)
39,903 -
2,249,447 653,340
- 2,494,555 233,898
4,744,002 887,238
W 11,872,469 9,453,576

(2) Significant transactions not involving cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Decrease in loans due to write-offs

Increase in securities measured at FVOCI due to
debt-to-equity swap, etc

Increase in investments in subsidiaries and
associates due to debt-to-equity swap, etc.

Increase (decrease) in accumulated other
comprehensive income due to securities
valuation

Deferred income tax effect due to securities
valuation

Reclassification of investments in subsidiaries
and associates to assets held for sale

Reclassification from investments in subsidiaries
and associates to securities measured at FVOCI

Transfer from property and equipment to
investment property

Recognition of right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities

In-kind equity

2022 2021

w 85,067 33,671
13,505 146,183

; 2,658,000

(3,005,858) 3,616,681
861,407 (994,587)
(1,371,052) ;
19,125 ;

937 4,004

62,099 115,586

565,000 )
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44. Transfers of Financial Instruments’

Details of financial assets and liabilities related to repurchase agreements and loaned securities sold and loaned
debt securities that do not qualify for derecognition as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Carrying Carrying Carrying Carrying
amounts for amounts for amounts for amounts for
transferred related transferred related
Characteristics of transactions assets liabilities assets liabilities
Repurchase agreements - W 2,373,401 57,619 3,349,080 1,307,268
Loaned securities - - 417,640 -
W 2,373,401 57,619 3,766,720 1,307,268

45, Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities

/
The Bank classifies and discloses fair value of the financial instruments into the following three-level hierarchy:

- Level 1: Financial instruments measured at quoted prices from active markets are classified as level 1.

- Level 2: Financial instruments measured using valuatlon techniques where all significant inputs are observable
market data are classified as level 2.

- Level 3: Financial instruments measured using valuation techniques where one or more significant inputs are
not based on observable market data are classified as level 3.

(1) Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at fair value

(i) The fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at fair value as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are

as follows:
December 31, 2022
< Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 ‘Total
Financial assets: :
Securities measured at FVTPL W 623,264 718,103 10,610,539 11,951,906
Securities measured at FVOCI 2,929,043 18,531,804 16,224,072 37,684,919
Loans measured at FVTPL - - 541,811 541,811
Derivative financial assets - 9,781,693 12,762 9,794,455
W 3,552,307 29,031,600 27,389,184 59,973,091
Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities measured at
FVTPL , W - 1,469,724 - 1,469,724
Derivative financial liabilities 34 11,276,609 40,359 11,317,002
W 34 12,746,333 . 40,359 12,786,726
December 31, 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 - Total
Financial assets: . )
Securities measured at FVTPL W 606,008 1,348,367 7,864,436 9,818,811 -
Securities measured at FVOCI - 1,819,791 17,419,641 18,635,704 37,875,136
Loans measured at FVTPL - - 644,412 644,412
Derivative financial assets 1 5,295,504 10,067 5,305,572
W 2,425,800 24,063,512 27,154,619 53,643,931
Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities measured at
FVTPL . W - 2,067,144 - 2,067,144
Derivative financial liabilities 2 4,746,616 11,223 4,757,841
W 2 6,813,760 11,223 6,824,985
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45. Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities, Continued

(ii) Changes in the fair value of level 3 financial instruments for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are

as follows:

2022
Financial assets Financial liabilities
Securities Securities Loans Derivative
measured at measured at measured at  financial Derivative
FVTPL FVOCI FVTPL assets Total financial liabilities
January 1, 2022 W 7,864,436 18,635,704 644,412 10,067 27,154,619 11,223
Profit or loss 118,898 - (78,954) 5,295 45,239 29,136
Other ' ‘
comprehensive .
income - (2,321,954) - - (2,321,954) -
Acquisition / Issue 2,981,856 1,364,206 50,950 - 4,397,012 -
Sale / Settlement (360,003)  (853,910) (74,597) (2,600) (1,291,110) -
Transfer out (*) - (599,974) - - (599,974) -
Transfer in (*) 5,352 - - - 5,352 -
December 31,2022 W 10,610,539 16,224,072 541,811 12,762 27,389,184 40,359
’ 2021
- Financial assets Financial liabilities
Securities Securities Loans Derivative
measured at measured at measured at  financial Derivative
FVTPL FVOCI FVTPL assets Total financial liabilities
January 1, 2021 W 6,232,064 14,634,541 1,434,514 8,214 22,309,333 6,451
Profit or loss 172,327 - 79,411 8,547 260,285 4,772
Other
comprehensive
income - 3,691,901 - - 3,691,901 -
Acquisition / Issue 1,857,647 494,015 52,450 - 2,404,112 -
Sale / Settlement (397,602)  (157,861) (921,963) (6,694) (1,484,120) -
Transfer out (*) - (26,892) - - (26,892) -
Transfer in (*) - - - - - -
December 31,2021 W 7,864,436 18,635,704 644,412 10,067 27,154,619 11,223

(*) When significant inputs become observable market data, the financial instruments are transferred to (from) other

levels.

(iii) Changes in deferred day one profit or loss for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Beginning balance
Amortization
Ending balance

, 2022 2021

W 3,989 4,375
' (385) (386)

W 3,604 3,989
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45. Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities, Continued

(iv) Details of valuation technique and inputs used in the fair value measurement categorized within level 2 of the
fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at fair value as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as

follows:

Securities measured at FVTPL

Equity securities
Debt securities

Securities measured at FVOCI

Equity securities
Debt securities

Derivatives financial assets:
Interest rate swaps

Currency forwards and swaps

Currency options
Commodities options

Financial liabilities measured at

FVTPL:
Debentures

Valuation technique Input
Net asset value approach Underlying asset price
Discounted cash flow method Discount rate
Net asset value approach Underlying asset price

Discounted cash flow method

Discounted cash flow meihod,
Black-Scholes model, Modified
Black model, Formula model

Discounted cash flow method
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Discount rate

Discount rate, exchange rate,
volatility, commodity index,
etc.

Discount rate
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45. Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities, Contihued

(v) Details of valuation technique and quantitative information about unobservable inputs used in’the fair value
measurement categorized within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at fair value as of
December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

December 31, 2022
Valuation technique Unobservable input Range (%)
Securities measured at FVTPL
Equity securities Discounted cash flow Discount rate 6.35~4131
method, Relative value  Rate of increase in -
approach, Net asset property disposal price
value approach, etc. Rate of increase in -
liquidation value
Volatility 16.89 ~ 44.54
Securities measured at FVOCI
Equity securities Discounted cash flow Growth rate -
' method, Relative value  Discount rate 9.08 ~ 18.51
approach, Net asset Volatility 16.52 ~ 46.53
value approach, etc.
Loans measured at FVTPL
Convertible bonds, etc. LSMC, Binomial model  Volatility 16.89 ~44.54
‘Derivatives financial assets
Interest rate swaps Discounted cash flow Volatility 80.87 ~ 102.80
Correlation coefficient 0.87~0.95
Interest rate options Modified Black model Volatility 80.87 ~ 102.80
Stock index options Black-Scholes modetl Volatility 8.70~72.20
December 31, 2021
Valuation technique Unobservable input Range (%)
Securities measured at FVTPL
Equity securities Discounted cash flow Discount rate 6.52~13.22
method, Relative value  Rate of increase in -
approach, Net asset property disposal price
value approach, etc. Rate of increase in -
liquidation value
Volatility 17.89 ~41.50
Securities measured at FVOCI
Equity securities Discounted cash flow Growth rate -
method, Relative value  Discount rate 7.70 ~17.56
approach, Net asset Volatility 19.48 ~33.20
value approach
Loans measured at FVTPL
Convertible bonds, etc. LSMC, Binomial model  Volatility 17.89 ~ 34.16
Derivatives financial assets
Interest rate swaps Discounted cash flow Volatility 38.23 ~49.07
Correlation coefficient 0.43 ~0.87
Interest rate options Modified Black model Volatility 38.23 ~49.07
Stock index options Black-Scholes model Volatility 5.40~171.40
Equity options Discounted cash flow Volatility 18.87 ~25.49

method and others
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45. Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities, Continued

(vi) The sensitivity analysis on changes in unobservable inputs for financial instruments categorized within level 3
of the fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at fair value as of December 31, 2022 and 2021

are as follows:

Securities measured at FVTPL (*1)
Securities measured at FVOCI (*1)
Loans measured at FVTPL (*2)
Derivative financial assets (*2)

Securities measured at FVTPL (*1)
Securities measured at FVOCI (*1)
Loans measured at FVTPL (*2)
Derivative financial assets (*2)

December 31, 2022
Profit(loss) for the year Other comprehensive income(loss)
Favorable Unfavorable Favorable Unfavorable
change change change change
W 50,112 (47,080) - -
- - 36,873 (29,480)
10,372 (9,957) - -
218 217 - -
W 60,702 (57,254) 36,873 (29,480)
December 31, 2021
Profit(loss) for the year Other comprehensive income(loss)
Favorable Unfavorable Favorable Unfavorable
change change change change
W 8,690 (6,723) - -
- - 43,861 (31,587)
9,041 (8,029) - -
3,745 (3,728) - -
W 21,476 (18,480) 43,861 (31,587)

(*1) Sensitivity amounts of equity securities are calculated by increasing and decreasing the correlations between
the discount rates and the growth rates (0~1%) or the rate of increase in liquidation value (-1~1%) which are
significant unobservable inputs. Sensitivity amounts for beneficiary certificates are calculated by increasing
and decreasing the correlations between the discount rate of rent cash flow (-1~1%) and the rate of increase in
property disposal price (-1~1%), only when they consist of real properties. Other than that, it is difficult to
measure the sensitivity amounts of beneficiary certificates for practical reasons. Also, for financial instruments
categorized within level 3 in 2022 and 2021, W18,704,023 million and W17,718,595 million, respectively, are
excluded from the sensitivity disclosure because it is impossible to calculate the sensitivity due to changes in
unobservable variables for practical reasons.

(*2) Sensitivity amounts of loans measured at FVTPL and derivatives financial instruments are calculated by
increasing and decreasing the correlation coefficient and volatility (-10~10%) which are significant

unobservable inputs.
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45.

Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities, Continued

(2) Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at amortized cost

(i) The Bank’s policies for measuring fair value of financial instruments at amortized costs are as follows:

v
.

Cash and due from banks: Fair value of cash is considered equivalent to the carrying amount. In the case of
due from banks on demand, which do not have a set maturity and can be realized instantly, the carrying
amount is a close estimate of the fair value and is assumed so. In the case of other ordinary due from banks,
the cash flow discount method is used to estimate the fair value.

Securities measured at amortized cost: The fair value of securities measured at amortized cost is computed
by widely-accepted appraisal agencies upon request.

Loans measured at amortized cost: The fair value of loans measured at amortized cost is the expected future
cash flows, reflecting premature redemption ratio, discounted by the market interest rate, adjusted by a spread
sheet considering the probability of default. Exceptions to this method include loans with credit line facilities,
loans with a maturity of three months or less left and impaired loans, which the Bank assumes the carrying
amount as the fair value.

Deposits: The fair value of deposits is computed using the discounted cash flow method. However, for
deposits, whose cash flows cannot be estimated reasonably, the Bank assumes the carrying amount as the fair
value.

Borrowings: The fair value of industrial financial debentures is computed using the discounted cash flow
method by the Bank’s Fair Value Evaluation System. However, for borrowings including call money whose

- * contractual maturity is three months or less, the Bank assumes the carrying amount as the fair value.

Debentures: The fair value of industrial financial debentures is computed using the discounted cash flow
method by the Bank’s Fair Value Evaluation System.

Other financial assets and liabilities: The fair value of other financial assets and liabilities is computed using
the discounted cash flow method. However, in cases cash flow cannot be estimated reasonably, the Bank
assumes the carrying amount as the fair value.

(ii) The fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at amortized cost as of December 31, 2022 and
44,2021 are as follows:

-
&

December 31, 2022
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets:
Cash and due from banks (*) W 7,088,563 4,450,243 - 11,538,806
Securities measured at amortized
cost 2,964,285 3,391,599 - 6,355,884
Loans measured at amortized cost
™ - 2,249,447 194,990,235 197,239,682
Other financial assets (*) - 6,344,790 1,329,534 7,674,324
W 10,052,848 16,436,079 196,319,769 222,808,696
Financial liabilities:
Deposits (*) W - 2,271,579 65,998,390 68,269,969
Borrowings (*) - 1,395,037 23,872,311 25,267,348
Debentures - 158,228,192 - 158,228,192
Other financial liabilities (*) - 2,836,258 3,868,478 6,704,736
. W - 164,731,066 93,739,179 258,470,245
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45. Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities, Continued

- December 31, 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets:
Cash and due from banks (*) W 8,566,338 3,409,429 - 11,975,767
Securities measured at amortized B :
cost 1,437,496 1,531,381 - 2,968,877
Loans measured at amortized cost .
™*) - 653,340 170,486,002 171,139,342
Other financial assets (*) - 5,097,270 738,178 5,835,448
W 10,003,834 10,691,420 171,224,180 191,919,434
Financial liabilities:
Deposits (*) W : - 2,294,155 50,441,274 52,735,429
Borrowings (*) - 861,402 21,183,763 22,045,165
Debentures v - 146,446,618 .- 146,446,618
Other financial liabilities (*) - 3,920,770 2,886,692 6,807,462
. W - 153,522,945 74,511,729 - 228,034,674

(*) For financial instruments categorized as level 2, the carrying amount is considered as a reasonable approximation
of the fair value and is thus, disclosed by fair value.
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45.

Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities, Continued

(iii) Details of valuation technique and inputs used in the fair value measurement categorized within level 2 and
level 3 of the fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at amortized cost as of December 31,

2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Level 2
Financial assets: >
Securities measured at
amortized cost
Financial liabilities:
Debentures
Level 3
Financial assets:
Loans measured at amortized
cost
Other financial assets
Financial liabilities:
Deposits
Borrowings
Other financial liabilities

Valuation technique

Input

Discounted cash flow method

Discounted cash flow method

Discounted cash flow method
Discounted cash flow method
Discounted cash flow method

Discounted cash flow method
Discounted cash flow method
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46. Categories of Financial Assets and Liabilitiés

Categories of financial assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

December 31, 2022
Financial Financial Financial Financial Financial Hedging
instruments  instruments  instruments instruments  instruments purpose
Cash and cash measured at  designated at measured at designated at measured at  derivative
equivalents FVTPL FVTPL FVOCI FVOCI amortized cost _instruments Total

Financial assets:
Cash and due from

banks W 7,088,563 - - - - 4,450,243 - 11,538,806
Securities measured

at FVTPL 39903 11,912,003 - - - - - 11,951,906
Securities measured .

at FVOCI - - - 20,814,864 16,870,055 - - 37,684919
Securities measured .

at amortized cost , - - - - - 6,355,884 - 6,355,884
Loans measured at

FVTPL - 541,811 - - - - - 541,811
Loans measured at

amortized cost 4,744,002 - - - - 193,301,601 - 198,045,603
Derivative financial

assets : - 9,609,026 - - - - 185,429 9,794,455
Other financial . .

assets - - - - - 7,676,612 - 7,676,612

W 11,872,468 22,062,840 - 20,814864 16,870,055 211,784,340 185,429 283,589,996

Financial liabilities: .
Financial liabilities

measured at

FVTPL W - - 1,469,724 - - - - 1,469,724
Deposits - - - - - 68,326,656 - 68,326,656
Borrowings ' - - - - - 25,429,244 - 25,429,244
Debentures - - - - - - 158,711,896 - 158,711,896
Derivative financial .

liabilities - 10,118,348 - - - - 1,198,654 11,317,002
Other financial )

liabilities - - - - - 6,717,731 - 6,717,731

W - 10,118,348 1,469,724 - - 259,185,527 1,198,654 271,972,253
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46.

Categories of Financial Assets and Liabilities, Continued

December 31, 2021
Financial Financial Financial Financial Financial Hedging
instruments  instruments  instruments instruments  instruments purpose
Cash and cash measuredat designated at measured at designated at measuredat  derivative
equivalents FVTPL FVTPL FVOCI FVOCI amortized cost _instruments Total
Financial assets:
Cash and due from
banks W 8,566,338 - - - - 3,409,429 - 11,975,767
Securities measured
at FVTPL - 9,818,811 - - - - - 9,818,811
Securities measured .
at FVOCI - - - 18,994,503 18,880,633 - - 37,875,136
Securities measured
at amortized cost - - - - - 2,968,877 - 2,968,877
Loans measured at :
FVTPL - 644,412 - - - - - 644,412
Loans measured at
amortized cost 887,238 - - - - 169,876,156 - 170,763,394
Derivative financial
assets - 4,776,872 - - - - 528,700 5,305,572
Other financial ’
assets - - - - - 5,836,048 - 5,836,048
W 9,453,576 15,240,095 - 18,994,503 18,880,633 182,090,510 528,700 245,188,017
Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities
measured at
FVTPL W - - 2,067,144 - - - - 2,067,144
Deposits - - - - - 52,792,121 - 52,792,121
Borrowings - - - - - 22,063,777 - 22,063,777
Debentures - - - - - 145,365,330 - 145,365,330
Derivative financial
liabilities - 4,501,378 - - - - 256,463 4,757,841
Other financial
liabilities - - - - - 6,817,630 - 6,817,630
W - 4,501,378 2,067,144 - - 227,038,858 256,463 233,863,843
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47. Offsetting of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Details of financial instruments subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting agreements or similar agreements

as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

December 31, 2022

Gross amounts of

recognized Net amounts of Related amounts not set off in the
financial liabilities financial assets statement of financial position
Gross amounts of set off in the presented in the
recognized statement of statement of Financial Cash collateral
financial asset financial position _financial position instruments received Net amounts
Derivative financial
assets (*) W 9,794,455 - 9,794,455 5,814,449 71,536 3,908,470
Unsettled spot
exchange
receivables (*) 2,597,457 - 2,597,457 2,593,577 - 3,880
Unsettled domestic :
exchange
receivables 6,008,639 2,261,306 3,747,333 - - 3,747,333
Security pledged as
collateral for
repurchase
agreements 2,373,401 - 2,373,401 57,619 - 2,315,782
Reverse repurchase '
agreements 2,240,000 - 2,240,000 2,240,000 - -
Loaned securities - - - - - -
Receivables from
securities
transaction 11,940 - 11,940 11,940 - -
W 23,025,892 2,261,306 20,764,586 10,717,585 71,536 9,975,465
December 31, 2022
Gross amounts of
recognized Net amounts of Related amounts not set off in the
financial assets set financial liabilities statement of financial position
Gross amounts of off in the statement  presented in the
recognized of financial statement of Financial Cash collateral
financial liabilities position financial position instruments pledged Net amounts
Derivative
financial
liabilities (*) W 11,317,002 - 11,317,002 5,552,654 501 5,763,847
Unsettled spot .
exchange
. payables (*) 2,593,992 - 2,593,992 2,593,577 - 415
Unsettled domestic N
exchange
payables 2,503,572 2,261,306 242,266 - - 242,266
Repurchase :
agreements 57,619 - 57,619 57,619 - -
Payables from
securities .
transaction 18,305 - 18,305 18,305 - : -
W 16,490,490 2,261,306 14,229,184 8,222,155 501 6,006,528
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47.

Offsetting of Financial Assets and Liabilities, Continued

December 31, 2021

Gross amounts of

recognized Net amounts of Related amounts not set off in the
financial liabilities ~ financial assets statement of financial position
Gross amounts of set off in the presented in the
recognized statement of statement of Financial Cash collateral
financial asset financial position _financial position instruments received Net amounts
Derivative financial
assets (*) W 5,305,572 - 5,305,572 3,485,084 19,412 1,801,076
Unsettled spot :
exchange
receivables (*) 3,302,464 - 3,302,464 3,300,991 - 1,473
Unsettled domestic
exchange
receivables 3,502,263 1,707,457 1,794,806 - - 1,794,806
Security pledged as
collateral for
repurchase
agreements 3,349,080 - 3,349,080 1,307,268 - 2,041,812
Reverse repurchase
agreements 790,000 - ~7790,000 790,000 - -
Loaned securities 417,640 - 417,640 417,640 - -
Receivables from
securities
transaction 12,553 - 12,553 12,553 - -
W 16,679,572 1,707,457 14,972,115 9,313,536 19,412 5,639,167
December 31, 2021
Gross amounts of
recognized Net amounts of Related amounts not set off in the
financial assets set financial liabilities statement of financial position
: Gross amounts of off in the statement  presented in the
recognized of financial statement of Financial Cash collateral
. financial liabilities position financial position instruments pledged Net amounts
Derivative
financial :
liabilities (*) W 4,757,841 - 4,757,841 2,988,272 105,989 1,663,580
Unsettled spot
exchange
payables (*) 3,303,324 - 3,303,324 3,300,991 - 2,333
Unsettled domestic
exchange
payables 2,324,903 1,707,457 617,446 - - 617,446
Repurchase
agreements 1,307,268 - 1,307,268 1,307,268 - -
Payables from
securities
transaction 10,036 - 10,036 10,036 - -
W 11,703,372 1,707,457 9,995,915 7,606,567 105,989 2,283,359

(*) For the derivatives covered by the ISDA derivative contracts, all contracts are settled and the net amount of
derivative contracts is measured and paid based on the liquidation value if the counterparty files for bankruptcy
or has any credit issues.
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48. Operating Segments

(1) The Bank has four reportable segments, as described below, which are the Bank’s strategic business units. They
are managed separately because each business requires different technology and marketing strategies. The
following summary describes general information about each of the Bank’s reportable segments:

\

Segments General information
Corporate finance Provides trade finance and loans to corporate customers
Investment finance Provides consulting services to corporate such as capital finance, restructuring, etc. .
Asset management Provides asset management services to individual and corporate customers
Others 4 Any other segment not mentioned above

(2) Operating income (loss) from external customers and among operating segments for the years ended December
31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

2022
Corporate Investment Asset ' :
finance finance management Others Total
Operating income (loss) ‘
from external customers W 594,063 (2,363,552) 32,111 3,495,076 1,757,698
Operating income (loss)
from intersegment sales (13,094) 2,134,556 - (2,121,462) -
W 580,969 (228,996) 32,111 1,373,614 1,757,698
2021
Corporate Investment Asset
finance finance management Others Total
Operating income (loss) , ‘
from external customers W (65,255) 1,848,863 20,821 1,745,727 3,550,156
Operating income (loss) :
from intersegment sales . 5,536 754,438 - (759,974) -
' W (59,719) 2,603,301 20,821 985,753 3,550,156
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48.

Operating Segments, Continued

(3) Details of segment results for the Bank’s reportable segments for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
are as follows:

2022
Corporate Investment Asset
finance finance management Others Total
Net interest income W 871,204 (463,883) 9,421 1,327,073 1,743,815
Non-interest income :
Income related to
securities (*1) (17,602) (136,455) - 57,440 (96,617)
Other non-interest -
income 512,907 778,927 36,350 2,377 1,330,561
495,305 642,472 36,350 59,817 1,233,944
Provision for loan losses and
others (*2) (42,977) (297,286) - (3,427) (343,690)
General and administrative
expenses (742,563) (110,299) (13,660) (9,849) (876,371
Operating income W 580,969 (228,996) 32,111 1,373,614 1,757,698
; 2021
‘ Corporate Investment Asset
finance finance management Others Total
Net interest income W 1,181,060 - (158,369) 2,328 633,590 1,658,609
Non-interest income
Income related to
securities (*1) 63,729 17,194 - 26,604 107,527
Other non-interest
income 602,798 2,807,533 36,448 (23,092) 3,423,687
" 666,527 2,824,727 36,448 3,512 3,531,214
Provision for loan losses and )
others (*2) (924,878) 95,316 - 5,641 (823,921)
General and administrative
expenses (982,428) (158,373) (17,955) 343,010 (815,746)
Operating income W (59,719) 2,603,301 20,821 985,753 3,550,156

(*1) Income related to securities is composed of net gain (loss) on securities measured at FVTPL, securities
measured at FVOCI and securities measured at amortized cost.

(*2) Provision for loan losses and others comprises of provision for loan losses, provision for derivative credit risks,
gains (losses) on sales of loans, and increase (reversal) of provision.

(4) Geographical revenue information about the Bank’s operating segments for the years ended December 31, 2022
and 2021 and the geographical non-current asset information as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Revenues (*1) Non-current assets (*2)
December 31, December 31,

2022 2021 2022 2021
Domestic W 47,753,159 31,511,510 28,918,343 29,704,702
Overseas 2,198,448 776,644 86,363 108,076
W 49,951,607 32,288,154 29,004,706 29,812,778

" (*1) Revenues consist of interest income, fees and commission income, dividend income, income related to

securities, gain on derivatives, foreign currency transaction gain, other operating income and provision for loan
losses. )

(*2) Non-current assets consist of investments in subsidiaries and associates, property and equipment, investment
property and intangible assets.
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49, Risk Management

(1) Introduction

(i) Objectives and principles
. The Bank’s risk management aims to maintain financial soundness and effectively manage various risks pertinent
to the nature of the Bank’s business. The Bank has set up and fulfilled policies to manage risks timely and
effectively. Pursuant to the policies, the Bank’s risks shall be
- managed comprehensively and independently,
- recognized timely, evaluated exactly and managed effectively,
- maintained to the extent that the risks balance with profit,
- diversified appropriately to avoid concentration on specific segments,
- managed to prevent excessive exposure by the setting up and managing of tolerance limits and guidelines.

(ii) Risk management strategy and process

The Bank’s risk management business is separated into two different stages; the ‘metrification stage,” in which

risks are estimated and monitored, and the ‘integration stage,” in which information gained during the risk
" management process is integrated and used in management strategies. Risk management is recognized as a key

component of the Bank’s management and seeks to change from its previously adaptive and limited role to more

leading and comprehensive role.

Furthermore, the Bank focuses on consistent communication among different departments to establish a progressive
consensus on risk management.

(iii) Risk management governance

Risk Management Committee

The Bank’s Risk Management Committee (the “Committee”) is composed of the President of the committee (an
outside director), and three other commissioners. The Committee functions to establish policies of risk
management, evaluate the capital adequacy of the Bank, discuss material issues relating to risk management, and
present preliminary decisions on such matters.

The CEO of the Bank and the head of Risk Management Segment

The CEO of the Bank, according to the policies of risk management, performs his or her role to manage and direct
risk management to sustain efficiency and internal control. The head of the Risk Management Segment is
responsible for supervising the overall administration of the Bank’s risk management business and providing risk-
related information to members of the board of directors and the Bank’s management.

Risk Management Policy Committee

The Bank’s Risk Management Policy Committee is composed of the leaders of all business segments. and exercises
its role to decide important matters relating to the Bank’s portfolio including allocating internal capital limits by
segment and setting exposure limits by industry within the scope that Risk Management Committee regulated.

(iv) Performance of risk management committee

The Risk Management Committee performs comprehensive reviews of all the affairs related to risk management
and deliberates the decisions of the board of directors. For the year ended December 31, 2022, the key act1v1t1es of
the Risk Management Committee are as follows:

- Major decision
* Risk management plan for 2022
* Contingency funding plan for 2022
* Setting and managing exposure limits by country for 2022
* Increase of internal capital limit for interest rate risk of Korean won
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- Major reporting

* Result of integrated crisis analysis for the second half of 2021

+ Resolution of Credit Committee for the fourth quarter of 2021

- Result of ex-post validation of credit rating system and default rates, and verification of risk measurement
factors for internal purposes

+ Setting management limit of credit portfolios of 2022

+ Allocation of internal capital limits of 2022

+ Resolution of Credit Committee for the first quarter of 2022

* Changes the period of the additional allowance for loan losses for COVID-19 forbearance companies

- Increase of industry limits for feed manufacturing considering external factors

» Result of operation of corporate credit rating system in 2022

+ Result of integrated crisis analysis for the first half of 2022

+ Resolution of Credit Committee for the second quarter of 2022

* Verification of risk-weighted assets for BIS ratio as of December 31, 2021

+ Review of the outlook and management plan for the BIS ratio

* Result of assessment of suitability for internal capital for 2022

* Result of BCP training for 2022

* Result of integrated crisis analysis for the second half of 2022

* Resolution of Credit Committee for the third quarter of 2022

(v) Improvement of risk management system
For the continuous improvement of risk management, financial soundness and capital adequacy, the Bank performs
the following:

- Continuous improvement of Basel

» Improvements in the internal capital adequacy assessment system, in line with the guidelines set by the
.Financial Supervisory Service (FSS) in 2008, to manage capital adequacy more effectively

+ Improvements in the credit assessment system on Low Default Portfolio (LDP)

- Elaboration of risk measuring criteria including credit risk parameters and measurement logics

- Development of the application system for timely calculation of LCR and NSFR

- Rebuilding the Corporate Credit Rating System (approved by Financial Supervisory Services on October 26,
2017)

+ Establishment of the system to calculate Basel Interest Rate Risk in the Bankmg Book coming to domestic in
September 2018

- Establishment of the system to comply with the amended regulation relating to nsk—welghted assets under
Basel III in December 2020

* Development of system related to Fundamental Review of the Trading Book (FRTB) under Basel III in August
2022

* Development of system related to operatlonal risk under Basel III in September 2022

- Expanswn of risk management infrastructure
» Establishment of the RAPM system to reflect risks to the Bank’s business and support decision-making upon
management, and application of performance assessment at the branch level since 2010
* Enforcement of risk management related to irregular compound derivatives and validation of the derivative
pricing model developed by the Bank’s Front Office
- Establishment of IFRS 9 accounting system to calculate a loan loss allowances under IFRS 9 in March 2017
and, since then, run of IFRS 9 accounting system in January 2018
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Risk Management, Continued

(vi) Risk management reporting and measuring system

The Bank endeavours consistently to objectively and rationally measure and manage all significant risks
considering the characteristics of operational areas, assets and risks. In relation to reporting and measurement, the
Bank has developed application systems as follows:

Application system Approach Completion date Major function

Corporate Credit Rating Logit Model Oct. 2017 Rebuilding the Corporate Credit Rating
System System

Market Risk Management Risk Watch . Jun. 2002 Summarize position, manage exposure
System Feb. 2019 limits and calculate Market VaR

RS Model Sep. 2012 Calculate regulatory capital by
Standardized Approach
Murex M/O Apr. 2013 Supplement of RiskWatch to calculate
VaR

Interest/Liquidity Risk In-house May. 2019 Calculation of interest risk, liquidity
Management System risk, etc.

Operational Risk Standardized Approach May. 2006 Manage process and calculate CSA, KRI
Management System and OP VaR, etc.

BIS Capital Ratio Fermat Sep. 2006 Calculate equity, credit risk-weighted
Calculation/Credit Risk RaY (*) Dec. 2013 assets and credit risk, etc.
Measurement System

Loan Loss Allowance IFRS Jan. 2011 Incurred loss model
Calculation System IFRS 9 Mar. 2017 Expected loss model

(*) To comply with the amended regulation relating to risk-weighted assets under Basel III, the upgrade of relevant
systems was completed in March 2021.

(vii) Response to Basel
The Korean financial authorities have implemented Basel II since January 2008, and the Standardized Approach
and the Foundation Internal Ratings-Based Approach for calculating credit risk are applicable.

In conformity with the implementation roadmap of Basel II, the Bank obtained the approval to use the Foundation
Internal Ratings-Based Approach on credit risk from the FSS in July 2008 and has applied the approach since late
June 2008. The Bank applies the Standardized Approach on market risks and operational risks.

The Bank completed the Basel I1I standard risk management system in preparation of the adoption of the Basel ITI
regulations announced on December 1, 2013. Starting from 2013 year-end, the BIS capital adequacy ratio has been
measured in accordance to the Basel II regulations.

Responding to the requirements of the financial authorities, the Bank recognizes interest rate risk, liquidity risk,
credit bias risk and reputation risk besides Pillar I risks (credit risk, market risk and operational risk). The Bank
has actively responded to the Pillar 2 regulation, including additional capital requirements based on comprehensive
assessment of risk management levels since 2015. In addition, from the end of 2015, the Bank has applied the
uniform standards for the public announcement of financial business for Basel compliance.

The Bank completed revised standards such as capital requirements for banks’ investments in funds in 2017, capital
requirements for securitization in 2018, and the Standardised Approach for measuring counterparty credit risk (SA-
CCR) in 2019.

To comply with the amended regulation relating to risk-weighted assets under Basel III, the Bank completed the
consultation and the development of the relevant systems and the amended regulation has been applied since the
calculation of the BIS ratio at the end of 2020.

The Bank has completed IT consulting and system development related to Market Risk Regulation (Fundamental

Review of the Trading Book , FRTB) and Operational Risk Regulation under Basel III during the second half of
2022, and plans to respond to the regulatory changes smoothly starting from 2023.
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(viii) Internal capital adequacy assessment process

Internal capital adequacy assessment process is defined as the process that the Bank aggregates 51gmﬁcant risks,
calculates its internal capital, compares the internal capital with the available capital and assesses its internal capital
adequacy. The internal capital adequacy report including the assessment results at the end of the year is prepared
and reported to the Risk Management Policy Committee.

- Internal capital adequacy assessment
For the internal capital adequacy assessment, the Bank calculates its aggregated internal capital by evaluating all
significant risks and available capltal considering the quality and components of capital, and then assesses the
internal capital adequacy by comparing the aggregated internal capital with the available capital.

In addition, the Bank conducts periodic stress tests more than once every six months to assess potential weakness
in crisis situations and uses its results to assess the internal capital adequacy. The Bank assumes the
macroeconomic situation as three stages of ‘normal- pessimistic-serious’ and is preparing countermeasures such
as checking the adequacy of capital by each stage.

- Goal setting of*internal capital management
The Bank sets up and manages an internal capital limit on an annual basis, through the approval of the Risk
Management Committee, to maintain internal capital adequacy by managing internal capital (integrated risks)
within the extent of available capital.

o The prior year’s internal capital, analysis of domestic and foreign environment changes in the current year, and
' " the direction and size of operations are all reflected in the goal setting of internal capital management to calculate
the integrated internal capital scale. Moreover, Bank for International Settlements(BIS) capital adequacy ratio and

risk appetite are taken into consideration in the goal setting of internal capital management.

- Allocation of internal capital
The Bank’s Risk Management Committee approves entire internal capital and the Risk Management Policy
Committee allocates the capital to each segment and department, considering the extent of possible risk faced and
51ze -of operations. The allocated internal capital is monitored regularly and managed using various management
v methods. The results of monitoring and managing the allocated internal capital are reported to the Risk
Management Committee. In case of any material changes in the Bank’s business plan or risk operation strategy,
the Bank adjusts the allocations elastically.

- Composition of internal capital
Internal capital comprises all the significant risks of the Bank and is composed of quantifiable and non-quantifiable
risks. Quantifiable risks are composed of credit risk, market risk, interest rate risk, operational risk and credit
concentration risk, foreign currency settlement risk, and are risks measured quantitatively by applying reasonable
methodology using objective data. Non-quantifiable risks are composed of strategy risk, reputation risk, residual
risk on asset securitization and furthermore. Non-quantifiable risks are those risks that cannot be measured
quantitatively because of lack of data or the absence of appropriate measuring methodologies.

(2) Credit Risk
(i) Concept
Credit risk can be defined as potentlal loss resulting from the refusal to perform obligations or default of

counterparties. More generally, it is used to refer to the possibility of loss from engaged bonds that cannot be
redeemed properly or from substitute payments.
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49, Risk Management, Continued

(ii) Approach to credit risk management

Summary of credit risk management

The Bank regards credit risk as the most significant risk area in its business operations, and accordlngly, closely
monitors its credit risk exposure. The Bank manages both credit risks at portfolio level and at individual credit
level. At portfolio level, the Bank reduces credit concentration and restructures the portfolio in such a way to
maximize profitability considering the risk level. To avoid credit concentration on a particular sector, the Bank
manages credit limits by client, group, and industry. The Bank also resets exposure management directives for each
industry by conducting an industry credit evaluation twice a year.

At the individual credit level, the relatibnshjp manager (RM), the credit officer (CO) and the Credit Review
Committee manage each borrower’s credit risk.

Post management and insolvent borrower management

The Bank monitors the borrower’s credit rating from the date of the loan to the date of the final collection of debt
consistently and inspects the borrower’s status frequently to prevent the generation of new bad debts and to stabilize
the number of debt recoveries.

In addition, an early warning system is operated to spot borrowers that are highly likely to be insolvent. The early
warning system provides financial information, financial transaction information, public information and market
information of the borrower, and such information is used by the RM and the CO to monitor and manage changes
in the borrower’s credit rating.

A borrower that is likely to be insolvent is classified as an early warning borrower, depending on the level of
insolvency risk. The Bank sets up a specific and applicable stabilization plan for such a borrower considering the
borrower’s characteristics. Furthermore, sub-standard borrowers are classified as insolvent borrowers, and are
managed intensively by the Bank, which takes legal proceedings, disposals or corporate: turnaround measures if
necessary.

Classification of asset soundness and provision of allowance for loss

Classification of asset soundness is fulfilled by the analysis and assessment of credit risk. The classification is used
‘'to provide an appropriate allowance, prevent further occurrences of insolvent assets and promote the normalization
‘of existing insolvent assets to enhance the stabilization of asset operations. .

Based on the Financial Supervisory Regulations of the Republic of Korea, the Bank has established standards and
guidelines on the classification of asset soundness, according to the Forward-Looking Criteria, which reflects not
only the borrower’s past records of repayment but also their future debt repayment capability.

In conformity with these standards, the Bank classifies the soundness of its assets as “normal”, “precautionary”,
“substandard”, “doubtful”, or “estimated loss” and differentiates the coverage ratio by the level of classification.

Details of loans by credit rating as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

- < Corporate >
December 31, 2022
12-month Lifetime expected credit losses
expected Non credit- ~ Credit-

Carrying amounts credit loss impaired impaired
AAA ~ BBBI W . 169,982,892 150,604,520 19,378,372 -
BBB2 ~ CCC 30,582,238 8,314,570 20,210,063 2,057,605
Below CC 1,283,425 - 52,693 1,230,732
: W 201,848,555 158,919,090 39,641,128 3,288,337
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December 31, 2021
12-month Lifetime expected credit losses
expected Non credit- Credit-
Carrying amounts credit loss impaired impaired
AAA ~BBBI1 W 138,451,664 123,087,995 15,363,669 -
BBB2 ~ CCC 34,125,651 11,317,394 21,134,914 1,673,343
Below CC 2,133,285 - 12,670 2,120,615
W 174,710,600 134,405,389 36,511,253 3,793,958
< Retail >
December 31, 2022
12-month Lifetime expected credit losses
expected Non credit- Credit-
Carrying amounts credit loss impaired impaired
Grade 1~ Grade 6 W 181,023 173,381 7,642 -
Grade 7~ Grade 8 ’ 2,116 - 2,084 32
Grade 9~ Grade 10 536 - - 536
" W 183,675 173,381 9,726 568.
December 31, 2021
12-month Lifetime expected credit losses
expected Non credit- Credit-
Carrying amounts credit loss impaired impaired
Grade 1~ Grade 6 W 203,299 192,455 10,838 6
Grade 7~ Grade 8 2,709 - 2,701 8
Grade 9~ Grade 10 572 , - - 572
W 206,580 192,455 13,539 586

Details of payment guarantees (including financial guarantees) and unused commitments by credit rating as of

December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

< Corporate >

December 31, 2022
12-month Lifetime expected credit losses
expected Non credit- Credit-
Exposures credit loss impaired impaired
Unused commitments:
AAA ~BBBI1 W 42,065,612 38,276,358 3,789,254 -
BBB2 ~ CCC 5,108,112 1,943,066 3,112,816 52,230
Below CC - - - -
W 47,173,724 40,219,424 6,902,070 52,230
Payment guarantees
(including financial
guarantees):
AAA ~BBBI W 6,921,986 6,008,602 913,384 -
BBB2 ~ CCC 9,773,163 4,598,273 3,826,826 1,348,064
Below CC 12,110 - 154 11,956
W 16,707,259 10,606,875 4,740,364 1,360,020
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49; Risk Management, Continued

Unused commitments:
AAA ~BBBI W
BBB2 ~CCC
Below CC
W
Payment guarantees
(including financial
guarantees):
AAA ~ BBBI W
BBB2 ~CCC
Below CC ,
W

< Retail >

Unused commitments:
Grade 1~ Grade 6 W
Grade 7~ Grade 8
Grade 9~ Grade 10

Unused commitments:
Grade 1~ Grade 6 W
Grade 7~ Grade 8
Grade 9~ Grade 10

December 31, 2021
12-month Lifetime expected credit losses
expected Non credit- Credit-
Exposures credit loss impaired impaired
37,276,730 34,822,879 2,453,851 -
9,237,945 5,814,835 3,369,595 53,515
46,514,675 40,637,714 5,823,446 53,515
6,396,425 5,700,522 695,903 -
6,890,993 3,303,869 3,064,270 522,854
665,845 - - 665,845
13,953,263 9,004,391 3,760,173 1,188,699
December 31, 2022
12-month Lifetime expected credit losses
expected - Non credit- Credit-
Exposures credit loss impaired . impaired
32,230 31,779 451 -
20 - 20 -
32,250 31,779 471 -
December 31, 2021
12-month Lifetime expected credit losses
expected Non credit- Credit-
Exposures credit loss impaired impaired
76,448 75,950 498 -
9 - 9 -
76,457 75,950 : 507 -
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(iii) Measurement methodology of credit risk

Pursuant to Basel 111, the Bank selects the measurement methodology of credit risk considering the complexity of
measurement, measurement factors, estimating.methods and others. Measurement approaches are divided into
Standardized Approach and Internal Ratings-Based Approach.

Standardized Approach (“SA”)
In the case of the Standardized Approach, the risk weights are applied according to the credit rating assessed by
External Credit Assessment Institution (“ECAI”). Risk weights in each credit rating are as follows:

Credit rating Corporate Country Bank
AAA ~ AA- 20.0% 0.0% 20.0%
A+ ~A- 50.0% 20.0% 30.0%
BBB+ ~ BBB- 75.0% 50.0% 50.0%
BB+~ BB- 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
B+ ~B- 150.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Below B- 150.0% 150.0% 150.0%
Unrated 100.0% (*) 100.0% Rating based on due
diligence

(*) In case of small and medium-sized business, 85.0% is applied.

The OECD is designated as foreign ECAI and Korea Investrors Service Co., Ltd., NICE Investors Services Co.,
Ltd: and the Korea Ratings Co., Ltd. are designated as domestic ECAI.

The Bank applies the credit rating based on the corresponding loan and same borrower’s unsecured senior loans.
In the case the borrower’s risk weight is higher than the unrated exposure’s risk weight (100%), the higher weight
is applied. In the case the borrower has more than one rating, the higher weight of the two lowest weights (Second
Best Criteria) is applied.
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Internal Ratings-Based Approach (IRB) ,
To use the Internal Ratings-Based Approach, a bank must be approved by the FSS and should also meet the
requirement pre-set by the FSS.

In relation to Basel II that has been adopted domestically as of January 2008, the Bank gained approval from the
FSS to use the Foundation Internal Ratings-Based Approach in July 2008. The Bank has calculated credit risk-
weighted assets using the approach since late June 2008.

Measurement method of credit risk-weighted asset )

The Bank calculates credit risk-weighted assets of corporate exposures and asset securitization exposures using the
Foundation Internal Ratings-Based Approach as of December 31, 2022,

The Standardized Approach is applied to country exposures, public institution exposures and bank exposures
permanently and applied to overseas subsidiary and the Bank’s branch pursuant to prior consultation with the FSS.

<Approved measurement method>

Measurement method ' Exposure

Standardized Approach Permanent SA - Countries, public institutions, banks, equity
‘ SA - Overseas subsidiaries and branches, and other assets,
retail, residential mortgage, commercial properties
Foundation Internal Ratings-Based Approach - Corporate, small and medium enterprises, asset
‘ securitization (at each credit level)
Application of IRB by phase - Special lending, non-residence and others

The mitigated effect of credit risks reflects the related policies which consider eligible collateral and guarantees.
The Bank calculates the credit risk-weighted assets using the capital adequacy ratio.

Upon the calculation of credit risk-weighted assets for derivatives, the Bank takes into consideration the set-off
effects of transactions under legally enforceable rights to set-off to calculate exposures.
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Risk Management, Continued

Credit rating model . .
The results of credit rating are presented as grades through an assessment of the debt repayment capacity that the
principal and interest of debt securities or loans are redeemed while complying with contractual redemption
schedule. '

Using the Bank’s internal credit rating model, the Bank classifies debtors’ credit rating into 14 grades (AAA~D).
To distinguish the difference between credits in the same grade, the Bank uses 20 stages as auxiliaries to 14 grades.

The Bank’s regular credit rating process is carried out once a year and in the case of the change of debtor’s credit
condition, the credit rating is frequently adjusted as necessary to retain the adequacy of credit rating.

The results of credit rating are applied to various areas such as discrimination of loan processes, loan limit, loan
interest rate, post loan management standard process, credit risk measurement, and allowance for loan losses
assessment.

Credit rating process control structure
According to the Principle of Checks and Balances, the Bank has established the credit rating process control
structure by which the credit rating system operates appropriately.

- Independent assessment of credit rating: The Bank’s business' segment (RM) and credit rating assessment -
‘segment (SRO) are independently operated.

- Independent control of credit rating system: The control of credit rating system including the development of
credit rating model is independently implemented by the Bank’s Risk Management Department.

- Independent verification of credit rating system: Credit rating system is independently verified by Risk
Validation Team of the Financial Planning Department.

- Internal audit of credit rating process: Credit rating process is audited by the Bank’s internal audit department.

- Role of the Board of Directors and the Bank’s management: Major issues relating to credit process are approved
by the Board of Directors and are regularly monitored by the Bank’s top management.

The Bank reviews debt serviceability based on a credit analysis when handling loans. Depending on the results,

credit loan preservation is adjusted as necessary using such methods as interest rate preservation due to credit risk.

The Bank evaluates the value of the collateral, performing ability and legal validity of the guarantee at the initial
acquisition. The Bank re-evaluates the provided collateral and guarantees regularly for them to be reasonably
preserved.

For guarantees, the Bank demands a corresponding written guarantee according to loan handling standards and the
guarantor’s credit rating is independently calculated when in conformance with the credit rating endowment

“method.

The quantification of the extent to which collateral and other credit enhancements mitigate credit risk of impaired
financial assets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

. December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Securities measured at FVOCI W 72,739 71,668
Loans measured at amortized cost 3,345,216 3,849,967
Other assets 14,221 26,488
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(iv) Credit éxposure

Geographical information of credit exposure as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

December 31, 2022
. Korea Hong Kong Ireland Uzbekistan Brazil Hungary UK USA Ohers Total
Due from banks
(excluding due :
from BOK) W 1,449224 1,405,648 - 38,019 87,444 365,514 536,418 3,329,355 1,031,286 8,242,908
Securities
measured at
FVOCI:
Bonds
(excluding
government N
bonds) 13,531,541 241,512 .12,533 - - - 297,115 4,953,262 2,807,821 21,843,784
Loans 164,692,863 1,913,983 1,534,814 687,498 339,476 929,402 1,471,985 5616327 44228252 221,414,600
Derivative
financial assets 108,797 3,572 - - - - 8,681 18,656 45,771 185,477
Other assets 1,559,148 - - - - - - - 6,233,425 7,792,573
181,341,573 3,564,715 1,547 347 725,517 426,920 1,294916 2,314,199 13,917,600 54,346,555 259,479,342
Guarantees
" (including
financial .
guarantees) 16,226,813 - - - - 48285 - 241,660 190,503 16,707,261
Commitments 42,293,299 166,993 110971 - 126,730 20,268 416,056 2,281,667 1,789,989  47,205973
58,520,112 166,993 110971 - 126,730 68,553 416,056 2,523327 © 1,980492 63,913,234
W 239,861,685 3,731,708 1,658,318 725,517 553,650 1,363,469  2,730255 16,440,927 56,327,047 323,392,576
December 31, 2021
Korea Hong Kong _ Ireland Uzbekistan Brazil Hungary UK USA Ohers Total
Due from banks
(excluding due
from BOK) W 749,525 1,402,014 - - 59,275 - 353,577 82,528 2,898,169 640,657 6,185,745
Securities i
measured at
FVOCI:
Bonds
(excluding
government
bonds) 8,109,726 302,189 21,711 - - - 266,248 3,862,898 2,297,025 14,859,797
Loans 135,447,184 1,301,443 941,965 536,160 312,567 433,149 999,688 2,322,372 28,337,321 170,631,849
Derivative
financial assets 174,859 45,847 - - - - 3,922 80,543 223,656 528,827
Other assets 5,803,336 - : - - - - ' - - 121,422 5,924,758
150,284,630 3,051,493 963,676 536,160 371,842 786,726 1,352,386 9,163,982 31,620,081 198,130,976
Guarantees
(including
financial .
guarantees) 13,270,467 - - - - 45,169 - 347919 289,708 13,953,263
Commi t: 39,836,375 85,880 148,185 - - 11,902 774,783 979,541 4,754466 46,591,132
53,106,842 85,880 148,185 - - 57,071 774,783 1,327,460 5,044,174 _ 60,544,395
W 203,391,472 3,137373 1,111,861 536,160 371,842 843,797 _ 2,127,169 _ 10491442 _ 36,664,255 258,675,371
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Risk Management, Continued

Industry information of credit exposure as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Due from banks (excluding

due from BOK)

Securities measured at

FVOCIL:

Bonds (excluding
government bonds)

Loans

Derivative financial assets

Other assets

Guarantees (including
financial guarantees)

Commitments

MESPY IR

Due from banks (excluding

due from BOK)

Securities measured at

FVOCIL:

Bonds (excluding
government bonds)

Loans

Derivative financial assets

Other assets

Guarantees (including
financial guarantees)

Commitments

W

W

W

W

December 31, 2022

Manufacturing Service Others Total
- 7,636,352 606,556 8,242,908
3,642,461 14,432,050 3,769,273 21,843,784
84,698,134 117,538,177 19,178,289 221,414,600
- 185,477 - 185,477
244,043 468,531 7,079,999 7,792,573
88,584,638 140,260,587 30,634,117 259,479,342
14,244,265 2,070,682 392,314 16,707,261
22,153,544 23,477,561 1,574,868 47,205,973
36,397,809 25,548,243 1,967,182 63,913,234
124,982,447 165,808,830 32,601,299 323,392,576

December 31, 2021

Manufacturing Service Others Total
- 5,529,904 655,841 6,185,745
2,597,917 9,614,360 2,647,520 14,859,797
73,076,518 82,852,716 14,702,615 170,631,849
- 528,827 - 528,827
121,251 227,172 5,576,335 5,924,758
75,795,686 98,752,979 23,582,311 198,130,976
10,588,505 3,012,831 351,927 13,953,263
21,238,777 22,162,715 3,189,640 46,591,132
31,827,282 25,175,546 3,541,567 60,544,395
107,622,968 123,928,525 27,123,878 258,675,371
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Risk Management, Continued

The detail of credit exposures by industry affected by the pandemic of COVID-19 as of December 31, 2022 and
2021 are as follows and the exposures by industries could be changed according to economic fluctuations.

'

December 31, 2022
Securities
measured at
FVOCI
Due from Bonds Guarantees
banks (excluding Derivative (including
(excluding due government financial financial Commit-
from BOK) bonds) Loans assets Other assets Subtotal guarantees) ments Subtotal Total
Manufacturing:
Display W - - 1,289,473 - 5,100 1,294,573 382 33,564 33,946 1,328,519
Semiconductor ’

/Mobile phone - 226,042 4,267,310 - 16,770 4,510,122 152,023 1,564,613 1,716,636 6,226,758
Automotive - 325472 12,191,177 - 29,695 12,546,344 580,123 1,716,017 2,296,140 14,842,484
Refinery/Chemical

/Energy - 1,077431 18,430,754 - 60,552 19,568,737 201,296 6,409,868 6,611,164 26,179,901
Steel/Metal - 182,739 10,022,074 - 22,002 10,226,815 650,497 2,873,421 3,523918 13,750,733
Others - 1,830,777 _ 38,497,346 - 109,924 40,438,047 12,659,944 9,556,061  22216,005 62,654,052

- 3,642,461 84,698,134 - 244,043 88,584,638 14,244,265 22,153,544 36,397,809 124,982,447
Service:
Air transportation B 5,624 3,085,579 - 13,785 3,104,988 221,159 3,000 224,159 3,329,147
_ Sea transportation - - 2,493,475 - 31,018 2,524,493 78,278 374,025 452,303 2,976,796
Other

transportation - 166,659 8,724,268 - 23,326 8914253 16,597 2,583,356 2,599,953 11,514,206
Leisure/Travel .

industry - - 12,277 - 59 . 12,336 - 1,700 1,700 14,036
Food/Accommoda

-tion - 11,589 2,043,522 - 4873 2,059,984 39,249 347,915 387,164 2,447,148
Automotive- )

related - - 563,657 - 1,672 565,329 7,127 112,440 119,567 684,896
Finance/Insurance

and others 7636352  14248,178 100,615,399 185,477 393,798 123,079,204 _ 1,708272 _ 20,055,125 21,763,397 144,842,601

7,636,352 14,432,050 117,538,177 185,477 468,531 140,260,587 2,070,682 23,477,561 25,548,243 165,808,830

Other: -
Construction - 285,970 4,067,049 - 8,889 4,361,908 348,557 1,561,312 1,909,869 6,271,777
Others 606,556 3,483303 15,111,240 - 7,071,110 26,272,209 43,757 13,556. 57,313 26,329,522
606,556 3,769273 19,178,289 - 7079999 30,634,117 392,314 1,574,868 1,967,182 32,601,299
W 8242908 21,843,784 221,414,600 185,477 7,792,573 259,479,342 16,707,261 47,205,973 63,913,234 323,392,576

Responding to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Bank recalculates the forward-looking information and recognises

additional allowance for loan losses

31, 2022.
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December 31, 2021
Securities
measured at
FVOCI
Due from . Bonds Guarantees
banks (excluding Derivative (including
(excluding due government financial financial Commit-
from BOK) bonds) Loans - assets Other assets Subtotal guarantees) ments Subtotal Total
Manufacturing:
Display W - - 730,259 - 2,917 733,176 1,641 267,574 269,215 1,002,391
Semiconductor
/Mobile phone - 204,679 5,059,874 - 7,958 5272511 115,211 365,071 480,282 5,752,793
Automotive - 231,343 10,721,833 - 15,286 10,968,462 435,597 1,685,997 2,121,594 13,090,056
Refinery/Chemical
/Energy - 620,186 13,875,360 - 27904 14,523 450 150,371 5,520913 5,671,284 20,194,734
Steel/Metal - 146,239 99852811 - 13,814 10,145,864 617,066 2,343 478 2,960,544 13,106,408
Others - 1,395,470 _ 32,703,381 - 53,372 34,152,223 9,268,619 _ 11,055,744  20,324.363 _ 54,476,586
- 2,597917 73,076,518 - 121,251 75,795,686 10,588,505 21,238,777 31,827,282 107,622,968
Service:
Air transportation - 5,844 3,200,683 - 9284 3215811 291,880 21,000 312,880 3,528,691
Sea transportation - - 2,083,099 - 21,353 2,104,452 74,721 751,613 826,334 2,930,786
Other
transportation - 140,164 6,261,103 - 12,895 6,414,162 9,110 3,576,532 3,585,642 9,999,804
Leisure/Travel
industry - - 59,072 - 66 59,138 - 1,700 1,700 60,838
Food/Accommoda
-tion - 72,427 1,990,730 - 3,651 2,066,808 36,674 318,921 355,595 2,422,403
Automotive-
related - - 513,522 - 876 514,398 12,322 84,891 97,213 611,611
Finance/Insurance :
and others 5,529,904 9395925 _ 68,744,507 528,827 179,047 84378210 2,588,124 17,408,058 19,996,182 104,374,392
5,529,904 9,614360 82,852,716 528,827 227,172 98,752,979 3,012,831 22,162,715 25,175,546 123,928,525
Other;
Construction . - 236,235 2,640,398 - 3,628 2,880,261 195,956 1,640,764 1,836,720 4,716,981
Others 655,841 2411285 12,062,217 - 5,572,707 _ 20,702,050 155,971 1,548,876 1,704,847 _ 22,406,897
. 655,841 2,647,520 14,702,615 - 5,576335 23,582,311 351,927 3,189,640 3,541,567 _ 27,123,878
w 6,185,745 14,859,797 170,631,849 528,827 5924758 198,130.976 _ 13,953,263 _ 46,591 ,132 60,544,395 258,675,371

Res;;onding to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Bank recalculates the forward-looking information and recognises
additional allowance for loan losses and provisions amounting to W924,176 million for the year ended December

31, 2021.
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Credit exposures of debt securities by credit rating as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

December 31, 2022
12-month Lifetime expected credit losses
expected Non credit- Credit-
Carrying amounts credit loss impaired impaired
AAA ~BBBI1 . W 27,133,598 26,789,221 344,377 -
BBB2 ~ CCC 37,359 14,927 22,432 -
Below CC - - - -
W 27,170,957 26,804,148 366,809 -
December 31, 2021
12-month Lifetime expected credit losses
expected Non credit- Credit-
: Carrying amounts credit loss impaired impaired
AAA ~BBBI W 21,929,738 21,600,109 329,629 -
BBB2 ~ CCC ~ 33,800 33,800 - -
Below CC - - - - -
4 21,963,538 21,633,909 329,629 -

(3) Capital management activities

(i) Capital adequacy

The FSS approved the Bank’s use of the Foundation Internal Ratings-Based Approach in July 2008. The Bank has
been using the same approach when calculating credit risk-weighted assets since the end of June 2008. The equity
capital ratio and equity capital according to the standards of the Bank for International Settlements are calculated
for such disclosure. The equity capital ratio and equity capital are calculated on a consolidated basis. In conformity
with the Banking Act, which is based on the implementation of Basel Il on December 1, 2013, the regulatory
capital is divided into the following two categories.

Tier 1 capital

- Common Equity Tier 1

Regulatory capital that represents the most subordinated claim in liquidation of the Bank, takes the first and
proportionately greatest share of any losses as they occur, and which principal is never repaid outside of liquidation
meets the criteria for classification as common equity, including capital stock, capital surplus, retained earnings
and accumulated other comprehensive income as common equity Tier 1.

- Additional Tier 1 capital

Capital stock and capital surplus related to issuance of capital securities that are subordinated, have non-cumulative
and conditional dividends or interests, and have no maturity or step-up conditions.
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Tier 2 capital (Supplementary Tier 2 capital)

Regulatory capital that fulfills supplementary capital adequacy requirements, and includes subordinated debt with
maturities over 5 years and allowance for loan losses in conformity with external regulatory standards and internal
standards.

The BIS capital adequacy ratio and capital in accordance to Basel III standards as of December 31, 2022 and 2021

are as follows:

BIS capital adequacy ratio
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Equity capital based on BIS (A):
Tier 1 capital:
Common Equity Tier 1 35,125,348 41,131,484
Additional Tier 1 capital - -
35,125,348 41,131,484
Tier 2 capital 3,197,936 . 3,454,548
38,323,284 44,586,032
Risk-weighted assets (B):
Credit risk-weighted assets 277,265,026 291,238,386
Market risk-weighted assets 1,329,603 1,692,127
Operational risk-weighted assets 7,458,674 6,750,345
286,053,303 299,680,858
BIS capital adequacy ratio (A/B): 13.40% 14.88%
Tier 1 capital ratio: 12.28% 13.73%
Common Equity Tier 1 ratio 12.28% 13.73%
_.Additional Tier 1 capital ratio - -
Tier 2 capital ratio 1.12% 1.15%
Equity capital based on BIS
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Tier 1 capital (A):
Common Equity Tier 1
Capital stock 23,151,559 21,886,559
Capital surplus, etc. 748,121 738,802
Retained earnings 7,355,027 14,226,652
Accumulated other comprehensive income 4,185,537 5,289,110
Common stock deductibles (314,896) (1,009,639)
35,125,348 41,131,484
Tier 2 capital (B):
Allowance for doubtful accounts, etc. 972,578 924,935
Qualified capital securities 2,244,000 2,312,000
Non-qualified capital securities - 258,060
Additional stock deductibles (18,642) (40,447)
3,197,936 3,454,548
Equity capital (A+B) 38,323,284 44,586,032
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Risk Management, Continued
(4) Market risk

(i) Concept

Market risk is defined as the possibility of potential loss resulting from fluctuations in interest rates, foreign
exchange rates and the price of stocks and commodities. Trading position is exposed to risks, such as interest rate,
stock price, and foreign exchange rate, etc. Non-trading position is mostly exposed to interest rates. Accordingly,
the Bank classifies market risks into those exposed from trading position or those exposed from non-trading
position. .

(ii) Market risks of trading positions

Management method on market risks arising from trading positions

In estimating market risk, the Standardized Approach and the internal model are used. The Standardized Approach
is used to calculate the required capital from market risk and the internal model is used to manage risks internally.
Since July 2007, the Bank has measured one-day VaR through the historical simulation method using the time series
data of past 250 days under a 99% confidence level. The calculated VaR is monitored daily.

The Bank sets total limit of market risk based on annual business plan, risk appetite and others and monitors VaR -
limit of each department on a daily basis.

Capital Requirements for Market risk
The Bank’s Capital Requirements for Market risk as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

" December 31, 2022 "~ December 31, 2021
Interest rate risk W 62,386 87,830
Equity risk 93 3
Foreign exchange (FX) risk ' 17,235 21,964
Option risk . 11,249 20,262
Total 4 90,963 130,059

(iii) Market risks of non-trading positions

Management method on market risks arising from non-trading positions :

The most critical market risk that arises in non-trading position is the interest rate risk. Interest rate risk is defined
as the likely loss resulting from the unfavorable fluctuation of interest rate in the Bank’s financial condition and is
measured by IRRBB (Interest Rate Risk in Banking Book), AEVE (change in Economic Value of Equity) and
ANII (change in Net Interest Income). ‘

AEVE represents fluctuations in the economic value of equity capital that may occur due to changes in interest
rates affecting the present values of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items. ANII represents changes in net

interest income that may occur over a certain period of time (e.g. one year) in the future due to changes in interest
rates.

The Bank’s Risk Management Committee sets and manages interest rate risk limits on a yearly basis and interest -
rate risk is monthly measured and monitored.

AEVE and ANII of the Bank's non-trading positions as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
AEVE W 1,484,769 792,049

ANII 389,249 135,018
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Risk Management, Continued

(iv) Foreign currency risk

Outstanding balances by currency with significant exposure as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

December 31, 2022
KRW USD EUR JPY GBP Others Total
Financial assets:
Cash and due from banks W 3,980,664 7,358,901 24,870 52,023 14,083 108,265 11,538,806
Securities measured at '
FVTPL 11,206,799 691,367 - 2,218 - 51,522 - 11,951,906
Securities measured at
FVOCI 28,590,211 8,016,390 25 376,526 - 701,767 37,684,919
Securities measured at ’
amortized cost 6,355,884 - - - - - 6,355,884
Loans measured at FVTPL 541,811 - - - - - 541,811
Loans measured at amortized ‘
cost 138,177,034 51,883,126 3,573,847 1,682,518 1,051,281 1,677,797 198,045,603
Derivative financial assets 6,804,262 2,674,562 64,348 22,321 175,820 53,142 9,794,455
Other financial assets 5,194,841 2,330,511 45,396 51,070 16,868 37,926 7,676,612
200,851,506 72,954,857 3,708,486 2,186,676 1,258,052 2,630,419 283,589,996
Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities measured
at FVTPL 1,289,717 180,007 - - - - 1,469,724
Deposits 55,270,353 12,572,982 34,059 448,083 78 1,101 68,326,656
Borrowings 4,609,133 18,257,698 62,662 1,101,058 - 1,398,693 25,429,244
Debentures 120,509,021 27,774,042 2,752,363 181,000 97,197 7,398,273 158,711,896
Derivative financial
liabilities 7,858,410 3,056,382 114,369 8,662 218,257 60,922 11,317,002
Other financial liabilities 4,197,192 2,264,017 34,930 31,419 16,893 173,280 6,717,731
193,733,826 64,105,128 2,998,383 1,770,222 332,425 9,032,269 271,972,253
Net financial position W 7,117,680 8,849,729 710,103 416,454 925,627 (6,401,850) 11,617,743
December 31, 2021
KRW USD EUR JPY GBP Others Total
Financial assets:
Cash and due from banks W 6,046,893 5,652,467 30,847 52,579 17,370 175,611 11,975,767
Securities measured at
FVTPL 9,030,109 693,919 - 1,101 - 93,682 9,818,811
Securities measured at
FVOCI 30,609,818 6,639,366 25 311,838 - 314,089 37,875,136
Securities measured. at
amortized cost 2,968,877 - - - - - 2,968,877
Loans measured at FVTPL 644,412 - - - - - 644,412
Loans measured at amortized
cost 123,311,272 40,714,606 3,103,077 1,457,553 789,280 1,387,606 170,763,394
Derivative financial assets 4,092,050 1,117,750 44,940 2,464 30,077 18,291 5,305,572
Other financial assets 3,589,931 1,880,512 290,095 25,864 8,011 41,635 5,836,048
180,293,362 56,698,620 3,468,984 1,851,399 844,738 2,030,914 245,188,017
Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities measured
at FVTPL 1,811,241 255,903 - - - - 2,067,144
Deposits 41,469,942 10,949,203 44,634 327,145 91 1,106 52,792,121
Borrowings 5,637,556 14,709,344 20,683 1,037,799 - 658,395 22,063,777
Debentures 109,615,309 26,463,222 1,704,147 259,501 791,815 6,531,336 145,365,330
Derivative financial
liabilities 3,988,813 728,275 4,569 4,296 16,166 15,722 4,757,841
Other financial liabilities 4,458,827 2,214,186 13,293 18,398 1,119 111,807 6,817,630
166,981,688 55,320,133 1,787,326 1,647,139 809,191 7,318,366 233,863,843
Net financial position w 13,311,674 1,378,487 204,260 35,547  (5,287,452) 11,324,174
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49.

Risk Management, Continued

(v) Interest rate risk management

The Bank is closely monitoring the outputs prepared by the industrial working groups which is managing the
transition to alternative benchmark rates and the markets related the rates. The outputs include the information
published by regulatory authorities related to IBORs. The authorities have made it clear that after the end of 2021,
they will no longer persuade or force banks to submit IBORs. Responding the transition, the Bank organized a task
force led by the head of the risk management division and the task force has established the LIBOR transition plan
that consists of workflows such as alternative interest rate determination, application development, customer
communication management, risk management, taxation, finance, legal, and accounting system establishment. The
important progress of the plan is reported to the management and may also be reported to the board of directors if
necessary. The purpose of the task force is to review where exposure to IBOR occurs within the Bank’s business,
and to develop and implement the plan to transit to the alternative benchmark rates. As of December 31, 2021, the
Bank has completed the transition and the application of the alternative benchmark rates and plans to complete the
transition to the alternative benchmark rates before June 2023 for existing contracts contracted in USD with a

- contract maturit.y after June 2023.

The financial instruments that have yet to transition to alternative benchmark rates as of December 31, 2022 are as
follows. The amounts of the non-derivative financial instruments are the carrying amounts and the amounts of the
derivatives, the commitments and the guarantees are the nominal amounts.

USD
Non-derivative financial assets:
Financial assets measured \
at FVOCI W 6,342
Financial assets measured )
at amortized cost 10,932,787
Privately placed corporate
bonds 19,010
10,958,139
Non-derivative financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities measured .
at amortized cost 781,924
Derivative:
Trading purpose:
Interest rate 76,158,628
Currency 42,669,517
Hedging purpose:
Interest rate 16,209,017
Currency 5,025,604
140,062,766
Commitments and guarantees W 75,022
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49.

Risk Management, Continued
(5) Liquidity risk management

(i) Concept

Liquidity risk is defined as the p0551b111ty of potential loss due to a temporary shortage in funds caused by a maturity
mismatch or an unexpected capital outlay. Liquidity risk soars when funding rates rise, assets are sold below a
normal price, or a good investment opportunity is missed.

(ii) Approach to liquidity risk management
The Bank manages its liquidity risks as follows:

Allowable limit for liquidity risk
* The allowable limit for liquidity risk sets LCR, NSFR and Mid- to long-term foreign currency fund management
ratio

* The management standards with regards to the allowable limit for liquidity risk should be set using separate and
stringent set ratios in accordance with the FSS guidelines.

<Measurement Methodology>

+ LCR: (High quality liquid assets / Total net cash outflows over the next 30 calendar days) X 100
* NSFR: Available Stable Funding / Required Stable Funding X 100
* Mid- to long-term foreign currency fund management ratio: Foreign currency funding being repaid after 1 year /
Foreign currency lending being collected after 1 year X 100

Early warning indicator

To identify prematurely and cope with worsening liquidity risk trends, the Bank has set up 15 indexes such as the
“Foreign Exchange Stabilization Bond CDS Premium,” and measures the trend monthly as a means for establishing
the allowable liquidity risk limit complementary measures.

Stress-Test analysis and contingency plan

+ The Bank evaluates the effects on the liquidity risk and identifies the inherent flaws. In the case where an
unpredictable and significant liquidity crisis occurs, the Bank executes risk situation analysis quarterly based on
crisis specific to the Bank, market risk and complex emergency, and reports to the Risk Management Committee
for the Bank’s solvency securitization.

» The Bank established detailed contingency plan to manage the liquidity risks at every risk situations.
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49. Risk Management, Continued

(iii) Analysis on remaining contractual maturity of financial instruments
Remaining contractual maturity analysis of non-derivative financial instruments mcludlng interest payment as of
December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows: ‘

December 31, 2022
Within 1 1~3 3~12 1~5 Over 5
v month months months years years Total
Financial assets: .

Cash and due from

banks W 9,025,666 - 430,095 1,031,942 . 930,574 - 11,418,277
Securities measured at .

FVTPL 117,102 99,673 184,468 412,498 11,157,484 11,971,225
Securities measured at

FVOCI 188,333 1,164,031 4,422,058 12,510,195 15,487,979 33,772,596
Securities measured at

amortized cost 249,997 500,011 1,777,966 3,828,118 - 6,356,092
Loans 15,068,406 21,683,856 68,144,918 77,451,592 15,820,283 198,169,055
Other financial assets 6,344,790 - - - 1,447,354 7,792,144

W 30,994,294 23,877,666 75,561,352 95,132,977 43,913,100 269,479,389

Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities

measured at FVTPL W 60,946 123,271 388,312 290,403 88,371 951,303
Deposits 30,564,386 12,664,843 20,632,157 4,364,976 126,939 68,353,301
Borrowings 3,632,166 5,829,318 11,367,549 3,528,097 967,068 25,324,198
Debentures 4,841,503 11,647,424 54,655,589 83,734,150 4,151,709 159,030,375
Other financial liabilities 3,837,948 2,057,141 - - 946,270 6,841,359

‘ W 42,936,949 32,321,997 87,043,607 91,917,626 6,280,357 260,500,536
December 31, 2021
Within 1 1~3 3~12 1~5 .Over 5 ,
month months months years years Total
Financial assets: ’
Cash and due from .

banks W 9,612,371 515,608 550,680 1,029,287 - 11,707,946
Securities measured at .

FVTPL 46,621 25,023 1,050,540 1,149,972 7,506,684 9,778,840
Securities measured at . ‘

FVOCI _ 361,611 1,207,439 4,133,965 10,816,960 15,093,228 31,613,203
Securities measured at -

-amortized cost 10,000 340,486 1,113,529 1,505,020 - 2,969,035
Loans 10,042,137 14,241,774 61,880,066 67,500,212 15,813,164 169,477,353
Other financial assets 5,097,270 - - - 803,773 5,901,043

W 25,170,010 16,330,330 68,728,780 82,001,451 39,216,849 231,447,420

Financial liabilities:

Financial liabilities

measured at FVTPL W 8,854 125,618 682,882 348,104 214,802 1,380,260
Deposits 25,608,016 8,124,580 16,519,769 2,418,409 118,943 52,789,717
Borrowings 3,140,265 4,398,427 10,504,484 2,932,717 1,025,321 22,001,214
Debentures 4,648,419 11,697,892 47,013,584 76,093,647 6,148,738 145,602,280
Other financial liabilities 5,008,883 1,572,656 - - 359,118 6,940,657

W 38,414,437 25,919,173 74,720,719 81,792,877 7,866,922 228,714,128
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49. Risk Management, Continued

Remaining contractual maturity analysis of derivative financial instruments as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are

as follows:

Net settlement of derivative financial instruments

December 31, 2022
Within 1 1~3 3~12 1~5
month months months years Over 5 years Total
Trading purpose
derivatives:
Currency W 14,310 56,466 123,397 (231,289) 329,021 291,905
Interest rate 1 - - - - 1
Hedging purpose
derivatives:
Interest rate (43,682) (20,611) 265,185 907,552 912,990 2,021,434
: W (29,371) 35,855 388,582 676,263 1,242,011 2,313,340
December 31, 2021
Within 1 1~3 3~12 1~5
month months months years Over 5-years Total
Trading purpose
derivatives:
Currency W 201 - - - - 201
Interest rate (11,805) (23,802) 8,326 (158,553) 535,474 349,640
Hedging purpose
derivatives:
Interest rate 33,896 115,454 180,557 631,338 687,222 1,648,467
: W 22,292 91,652 188,883 472,785 1,222,696 1,998,308
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49. Risk Management, Continued

Gross settlement of derivative financial instruments

Trading purpose
derivatives:
Currency
Inflow
Outflow
Hedging purpose
derivatives:
Currency
Inflow
Outflow
Total inflow
Total outflow

Trading purpose
derivatives:
Currency |,
Inflow
Outflow
Hedging purpose
derivatives:
Currency
Inflow
Outflow
Total inflow

Total outflow

December 31, 2022
Within 1 1~3 3~12 1~5
month months months years Over 5 years Total
W 52,226,487 31,340,410 63,562,432 77,160,037 7,031,148 231,320,514
52,120,608 31,419,674 63,702,102 76,526,053 6,968,341 230,736,778
382,466 331,653 8,692,048 15,738,325 3,653,029 28,797,521
727,331 518,563 8,825,328 16,632,521 3,577,128 30,280,871
W 52,608,953 31,672,063 72,254,480 92,898,362 10,684,177 260,118,035
W 52,847,939 31,938,237 72,527,430 93,158,574 10,545,469 261,017,649
December 31, 2021
Within 1 1~3 3~12 1~5 .
month months months years QOver 5 years Total
W 56,066,208 34,469,849 99,529,773 89,932,702 8,452,901 288,451,433
" 56,009,986 34,338,644 99,195,857 . 90,326,262 8,476,594 288,347,343
16,920 76,028 4,791,344 14,245,183 4,727,452 23,856,927
16,786 79,183 6,083,666 14,902,210 4,624,965 25,706,810
W_ 56,083,128 34,545,877 104,321,117 104,177,885 13,180,353 312,308,360
W 56,026,772 34,417,827 105,279,523 105,228,472 13,101,559 314,054,153

Remaining contractual maturity analysis of guarantees and commitments as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as

follows:

Guarantees
Commitments

Guarantees
Commitments-

December 31, 2022
Within 1 1~3 3~12 1~5 Over 5
month months months years years Total
W 1,004,990 1,588,345 3,883,351 9,810,539 420,035 16,707,260
100,641 51,336 761,191 1,500,964 46,812,437 49,226,569
W 1,105,631 1,639,681 4,644,542 11,311,503 47,232,472 65,933,829
December 31, 2021
Within 1 1~3 3~12 1~5 Over 5
month months months years years Total
W 1,431,023 1,358,214 3,660,638 6,720,569 782,819 13,953,263
227,768 21,982 715,958 2,765,040 44,880,979 48,611,727
W 1,658,791 1,380,196 4,376,596 9,485,609 45,663,798 62,564,990
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Independent Auditors’ Review Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Based on a report originally issued in Korean

The Chief Executive Officer
Korea Development Bank

We have reviewed the accompanying report on the operations of the Internal Control over Financial Reporting (“ICFR”)
of Korea Development Bank (the “Bank™) as of December 31, 2022. The Bank's management is responsible for designing
and operating ICFR and for its assessment of the effectiveness of ICFR. Our responsibility is to review management's
assessment of ICFR and issue a report based on our review. In the accompanying report of management’s assessment of
ICFR, the Bank’s management stated: “Based on the assessment of the operations of the ICFR, no material weakness
existed and the Bank’s ICFR has been effectively designed and operated as of December 31, 2022 in accordance with

. the ICFR standards”

+

% \We conducted our review in accordance with ICFR Review Standards, issued by the Korean Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we plan and perform, in all material respects, the review of management’s

~. .. report on the ope;rations of the ICFR to obtain a lower level of assurance than an audit. Our review consists principally

of obtaining an understanding of the Bank’s ICFR, inquiries of Bank personnel about the details of the report, and tracing
4 :4.). to related-documents we considered necessary in the circumstances.

The Bank’s ICFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting

. and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with K-IFRS. Because of its inherent

' limitations, however, ICFR may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness

4 .. to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

_* Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that report on the operations of ICFR as
%4 of December 31, 2022 is not prepared in all material respects, in accordance with ICFR standards issued by the Internal
% Accounting Control System Operation Committee.

This report applies to the Bank’s ICFR in existence as of December 31, 2022. We did not review the Bank’s ICFR
subsequent to December 31, 2022. ’

) Aé&w\, W

Seoul, Korea
March 28, 2023
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£ KDB Bank

To the Shareholders, Board of Directors and Auditor

As the CEO and the ICFR Officer of KDB, assessed operating status
of KDB’s ICFR for the year ending December 31, 2022.

Design and operation of ICFR is the responsibility of KDB's
management including CEO and ICFR Officer. We evaluated whether the
company effectively designed and operated its ICFR to prevent and detect
errors or frauds which may cause a misstatement in financial statements to
ensure preparation and disclosure of reliable financial information. We used
the ‘Conceptual Framework for Designing and Operating Internal Control
over Financial Reporting in Korea as the criteria for design and operation
of the company’s ICFR. And we concluded that an evaluation of ICFR
based on the ‘Management Guideline for Evaluating and Reporting
Effectiveness of Internal Control over Financial Reporting’ established by
the ICTR Conumittee. :

Based on our assessment, we ‘concluded that the company’s ICFR is
designed and operated effectively as of December 31, 2022 in accordance
with the ‘Conceptual Framework for Designing and Operating Internal
Control over Financial Reporting’.

We certify that this rcport does not contain any false statements nor,
omit to state & facl necessary to be presented herein. We also certify
that this report does nut contain or present any statements which nght
cause material misunderstandings of the readers and we have reviewed
and verified this report with sufficient care.

March >7, 2023
.Chaimlan & @O

| e Pona Bin Teg
o Jntel’ﬂal@ Control over Financial ReDorting‘ Ofﬁcer
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This is tok{.certify that the following documentation is a ‘true and accurate translation

of the original Korean language document’ as prepared by:

Nexia ngduk,

Seoul, [
Republi& of Korea
- 28th Maljch 2023: )
Korea D ,velopmentIBank
5 Senaratl » Financial statements
. :

December 3’1 2022

—,
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f ' "\:
! Mr. N. H. Kim
! General Manager
‘ Permanent Representa(

Tel, 020-7426-3550 Fax, 020-7426-3567
The Korea Development Bank London Branch is a company registered in the UK No, BRO0O4065L
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i

(2 B7123 A72 A A3y 7)10E vZAFY S AL dE% FsY

o},
<A68(F)71>
(S9k: uaiR)
g HE OBt | 1~3HE | 3~12M” | 1~5405 | 54 =D &
IpN=2 =] - 1,629,878 4,135,405 20,411,219 4,965,272 31,141,774
S8t &l 310,18 175,156 2,861,071 5,790,132 1,090,701 10,217,257
<A67()71>
(SH9l: 4pIR)
<& 1JH& Olat 1~30e 3~ 1243 1 ~54 Ol6t 54 =3t A
OlXlg &l 224,896 1,271,477 1,279,617 17,385,158 3,623,911 23,795,099
S8t 2 - 17,178 2,412,941 5,159,516 1,483,369 9,073,004

@) B712a A712 A AP AFEFE ZA WYL e FEY

T}~
<A68(F)71>
(Sl wHoIR)
o OIZNI%ESH =% 2D
TE i s Tk =3 go8s
=S EE]
oIxrss
Ag 88,711 83,711 - - 5,044
SEOIXIYEEI)
oIXISE
A 31,053,063 31,053,083 48,881 542,268 (1,570,665)
E3198
= 10,217,257 10,417,222 136,596 660,189 (610,843)
2 41,270,320 41,470,285 185,477 1,202,457 (2,181,508)
8 41,359,081 41,558,996 185,477 1,202,457 (2,176,464)
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<A67(H)71>

_ EN e B30 2RI
TE OH s ek E goles
B252983
oIxESE
Ag 82,985 8,985 - - 2,035.
ZEIIXIS &S]
oIxESE
Ag 23,712,074 28,712,074 330,758 45,969 (599,697)
ssi9E :
Ag 9,073,004 9,076,498 198,077 214,502 (494,53)
A9 32,785,078 32,788,572 58,8% | 260,491 (1,094,2%)
& 2,868,063 32,871,567 528,835 260,491 (1,092,197)

4) 37123 A71T @A AFIANZFY AFRFE Zq 9 WL v+ 24

=2
<A168(F)71>
(SH: BHOHRY)
2 e =R SHOIXIAESI =3 .g_:g JxIel gzs=s
) et = P, =3 golBis S ENESEE]
S SSHESI )
oIxEng
ALXH - 83,711 - - - 7,240
SIS -
OIXEE
7P E-EH I 3,932,336 - (314,591) - (313,189) -
83 Qo152
ALRH - 25,497,582 - (1,900,489) 1,890,065 -
JEFRIH(OlI=S21H S) - 107,660 R (19,070) 2,33 -
e 3,932,336 25,606,242 (314,501} (1,919,559) 1,509,189 -
s '
ALKH - 9,816,385 - (89,179) 611,221 -
S| 3,932,336 36,421,637 (314,591) (2,008,738) 2,210,410 -
Al 3,932,336 35,510,348 (314,591) (2,008,739) 2,210,410 7,240
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<AB7(H)71>

2 s 23 SEIXIKAEEIT =H 2|0 gass
= wizs | assmnzuz
Tt S et £
2588
0IXIBSIE!
AR - 82,985 - - - 1,930
ZHIIRISIEIEIT]
0IXFSSIE!
JEHERE-BHIIRI 2,779,027 - (125,411) - (52,225) -
&% 1A .
ALKH - 21,621,572 - (2,068) 643,184 -
JIERETH( G225 S) - 121,593 - 3,043 9,589 -
A 2,779,027 21,743,165 (125,411) 975 600,548 -
ssi9a
ALY - 9,012,029 . - 170,860 504,818 -
2 2,779,027 30,755,194 (125,411) 171,835 1,105,366 -
Al 2,779,027 30,838,179 (125,411) 171,835 1,105,366 1,930
) 371 R A7 F TH/MAAE IS A AL o2 A% a7 53 ZHUY
(Ct|: SHOHR)
. |20 02 QlAlE ABSIIIO| HIENRQ 2L
==
Hies(e)ol H67(&)I|
OIERE 28,524 851
S E 378 10,283
A 28,902 11,134
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® B RA7 T ASEEAEINIA H R o2 U &Y

<A168(3)71>

e

JlEtERE0l0R
QIAIE! SIEE/T)
ACHo| JIXIHS

o]
=

i

=9
O|Al
—_

9|

i

&
4
A
re

!
A

ron
40
o
[
=

*
~r

OlXtEf=

5,311

" (267)

) AD 354 FBLE

<A67(H)71>

BHE) AR AAFAFUD.

1J
HI

JEtZEZEOZ
QlAlE A3l
| JIXIHS

OIXIE2sE

1,883

182

() 3B gAZF BEEY AR 2= JYHAJFHH,
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(7) B7123 A712 A A F T A8y B AL Wy

< 053 254k
<A68(3)71>

- = S3IHX2 Eoigs QSEAEE S
S (#sHsRIE) 67,754 (96,874)

<A67(A)71>

7 gy
<A 68(F)71>

- JIEtEEH £ | D& 2

=y X} & =1 oK s3It cIDEg} oTeilg olllg HlS

IXNHSSH | BHEU 2F

2} 3t AFIH 1,097,225 (67,754) (67,754) -
<A67C)71>

(el wote)

- JNEFEZES [ YIIEALE

g X 20l 33K olEg} O%I‘L;_l 0|/|\| HIS

NHXNHSSH | WA 2F

2 SHALTH 1,006,263 (78,095) (78,095) -
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11. £4719 2 24719 FAFA

O BN AL BA FE71Q R BAVD FAFAL e T

(E9): 2R

Hies(&) 71

23 - He7(&)7|
E20|9 | A20IF2EREBAL 33,907 32,907 |
KDB Bank Europe (*1) 125,450 137,452
A20IUMEZE(T) 62,389 62,380
KDB Bark Uzbekistan 47,937 47,937
Banco KDB Do Brasil S. A. (+2) 39,761 36,234
PT KDB Tifa Ainance Tk . 8,288 | 85,288
KDB Silicon Valley LLC 118,615 118,615
KDB OCCASIO I, L.P. 22,096 -
KDB Synerqy, L.P. 19,872 -
HOICIHIIHAEHE(Z) 70,000 70,000
HOICIHIHIR( 1,500 1,500
AT EH(F) 597,290 597,290
DISESFHAHZF) (+3) 1,129,769 -
CHStEE(F) (*4) - -
BIRHIEILYSESIBIA 129,136 142,782
BIRECUSEETISIA 78715 84,553
SRNSESTIBIA 40,697 45,553
HIOICIBIQI IR KA R(Z) 16,843 16,843
HOICIHICIHAEHEH SAILEXIBIKISIAL (+5) - 1,448,890
HOICHIZIABSAIZEXIHSSIAL (+6) 170,462 157,388
KDB—HAP UCHUZAIREXHESE|AL (+7) - -
RIOILIMEIZ2SAIRE X BIXISIAH 72,987 -
KOBCRSEXIAIREXIBIXI5IAL 12,627 -
HIOICIHIOIAIOMI2EXIEE3IAL 84,112 62,597
HOICIHISAS AN AL LSRR S5 A 44,350 49,540
JIURELXI/IIT 1,000,000 1,000,000
A2 4,302,805 4,497,761

!
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(S BHOHR)

25 +2 Hi68(=) )1 R67(8) 71

ZHDIY  [SREAIAHF) 16,921,067 16,921,067
S=RtEBAL : . 337,26 337,266
SI=QIT20ISES XIS AL 212,808 212,991

St A TS SA 631,777 631,777

SR SAHE 58,492 58,492
OlOIXI U () (+8) 1,974,499 2,736,835
SRXIA(F) (+9) 376,454 382,736

() SHEIZH(*10) 352,761 500,000
(Fciee3 : 330,477 -
MBEE(F) (+11) - 30,99
EZ03IHARRINL AR EXRHEZSIAL (+12) - 2,304

JIEH(*13) 2,493,905 2,397,814

2H ‘ 23,689,526 24,212,301

e Al 27,992,331 28,710,062

GRS A AL FHAYTEE A2 AT A7HN B2 719 11,9999

Fee 995 gh

THA(A 7] 7,207 %k )] &4
+2) BH 3A ALY 2HPISE /NALE Q& A4 F712 37]00 3,527
REA(E7]: 4,965 )] EFdAESY S <)

(*3) BHL ANFTFTAE) 20199 3¥ 8Uo EEA ® T A Keld "2 Al
o AEREUT 37 T FFZANFE)S de2ANFEI 71928
of e FUAT AP L3S HAL A7} 2022 1€ 13Ul HFT EHE ERH
o], 9o X HY FA9 £ F 2F A APz ARz SFHHA F&
of et F dxZ A FF)E 20223 3¥ 8U £ Ae A AT
oo we} EZAHNGFEF) F4L WAAAARANAN F5719 FAFHLE DA
HAFYS Bf 5 AR 37 R ez A 577t FaR 241,
2839 REY o] E4AES A BIRAFHH

(+4) 20223 59 209 KHA &A G 3% A=A (F) 3 74538 53 KHALA
dol FF AN E 53T e FAAGS AZFAFUT. 483 dFF A
9 o)A E A3l 371 F HFRAGF) ) SA- G 20221 849 314
of KHAAAIG Y AFdslo] &5 Ho F57140A A=Az

(*5) B7] T HLALGFNEAZADY vizto] A5 HYoH, AYHJAHEZERE

T
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BoANL AFZTEE 0 Z A5} 444, 642@11‘3P Qo) &4
F4o

2 A% }%7};4 Z7}2 13,047
4. 34, 371F

2022&51 4é FP2 AT A7 B ol we} ICHEY 2 9te] FA v vl A -5 s A

Eaasi=g

+7) A7) F RS 29 AAe] FALR oz Qe £AALA] ZFAE &9 A

BN Z2AZ B3 6,086 L] &3aES A4 AU

*8) B39 A& AN sgoz Qg sFsbsrtde] BA 2 762,335W %

A9 EFAEL AAFHRFY

(+9) YUEFIE Pt BE AFEIHX] A4 E Z7]0 6,281 A (A 7):54, 1943"

7)o EAaRES AR FY

(+10) RH3TQ A& dPQEFIE F7hol ©E AHEIHR] FAE F7100 147,239

kel of EAkAtEg QA4S UL o |

(+*11) B7] T FA938A 9 g4 =2 AN AdHAAJFHH.

(x12) BFFQ &Aakel FAHAFEE NAoZ A3 35757t R 9] S7H2 B7]

93w gk (A 7): 32w uky) ExkE)e] &AL L AP, 3715 HArg

23AsYTH |

(x13) o}FFE LA | ZAIREXNFALF AL & 147] 3|Abel] s Z7]ol 16,174

9] EFAES AA3IG R, o FFE LA O TALRFALAF| AL 9] 197] FjAte] o 3]

x47l°ﬂ 16,461 - 9] EFAES A RFHH

6) 71 T Ew"r%?l ALY FHd=23F AA
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@ 97123 A7 dA o) naE AP Yt 35719 L BANY FAF

Ao} AH7tA Aue et 2eyth

(SH4: BHOLR))
AEDI] P
SIAY
HMes(=)7 HI67(&) 21 H6s(=)7| HB7()|

SIRFSHBANZ) 4,604,929 4,668,299 16,921,067 16,921,067
OllOII2N2(2S) 1,978,446 2,722,261 1,974,499 2,736,835
() sty 264,477 433,616 352,761 500,000
(Flistarz 280,906 - 330,477 -
KGSSHIZ(+) - 15,966 - 9,268
NS EBHRKZ) 1,132,089 - 1,129,769 -

() B7] T AE2HA 2R Aste] BAZIHAM AAHAFTUS.
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) F71E 2 A7F A

72 4719 2 BA/IYY AFAL L ARG OGS

3} 2yt
<A68(F)71>
(Et91: OHR)
=z Y 200 | ey |zes| o 5 e | g _;ZCL é&gge‘a x::f
E2)|Y (L2012 8REH2A 82 =289 128 3,660,944| 3,029,336 631,608 218,171 53,881 75,373 100.00
KDB Bank Europe golel =8Y 128 1,197,124 1,082,057 115,067 101,071 7,415 (4,360){ 100.00
A20IYUESE(F) oldgHe =234 128 985,414, 861,265 124,149 54,874 7,036 11,258| 100.00
KDB Bank Uzbekistan x4 =8% 128 981,301 874,872 106,429 55,260 25,765 23,614 86.32
Banco KOB Do Brasil S. A (= =28 128 481,207 386,150 95,048 84,252 271 33,709 100.00
PT KDB Tifa Fnance Ttk L= ETPN (0] =1=1] 128 130,098| 41,343 88,755 13,738 5,284 2.639| 84.66
KDB Silicon Valley LLC o= =289 128 126,606 1,522 125,084 2,237 (1,088) 7,105/ 100.00
KDB OCCASIO |, L.P. HOIMHE | SSENN| 128 60,554 49,495 11,050 20| (16,446) (15,908)| 90.00
KDB Synergy, LP. oIS | 2EEXY | 128 19,643 -1 1984 - (596) (328)] 100.00
HRESNHZF) g2 HIZ= 128 | 12,235,665 11,490,633 744,972| 5,805,906| (1,744,778) | (1,472,612)| 55.68
AREIY(F) (*1) CHetal= =Y 128 268,614 264,833 3,721 121,249]  (10,237) (9,681)| 100.00
AN EN S 1= | faIE22| 128 8,792,535 7,427,546| 1,364,989 542,270 135,968 136,090 9.2
s N
EISHIEIULSEEXIS|A (#2) tierel= SEXI | 08E] 329,286 215 329,071 14,607 11,773 11,7731 41.67 ‘
BRBCASESNSIA (+2) o2 | 2sexe ool 158318 of 13w 74m| @59 (3569 50.00
SR LKESASIAL (x2) Uiei= | SSSXILY | 0he| 95,445 7 85,438 9,675 9,442 9,442) 50.00
AI0ICIBIQI IR X2 E(F) gz | XRH2EY | 1281 70,706 10,408 60,303 39,151 19,057 19,104| 84.16
HOICIBIQHIAEHE(S CHsrei=s =59 128 152,004, 19,866 132,138 84,468 54,08 54,0841 100.00
AI0ICIBIBIZ(F) theiei | Adiagy | 128 6,899 3,238 3,661 26,291 325 624(100.00
HOICIHIZIAA YR IS0 | 28X | 1281 | 18,505,875 19,958,859|(1,362,994) | 4,379,434 429,868 (1,315,066) | 68.20
NIETFESSIA
KDBP QYR meeiz | 2sexe | 128 sgere|  e008a|  (1,208) -l e (0m| BE
NREXFSSIAL (+3) ’
30ICIHIOFAIOH oeeiz |2sexe| 128 | 19430 72| 1es217 1 on| 2053 50.00
NREXESSIA} (+3) : _
HOICHIZSAS AKX tee= | 28=Ke| 128 9,666 12| o654  ae0| 34| 34| se7
NREXESSIA
JeloILAEIE2S sn= | 2BEXY | 128 190,404, 5,316 185,088 2 (5,795) (5,795)| 38.00
NREXRIXISIA
KOBCESEXIAILSE R RIBIA el | SSEXY | 128 17,522, 27 17,496 - (544) (544)| 70.00
JIHFSHXI/DIR 8= SEXY] 128 3,280,515 2,215,553 1,064,962 90,631 R,625 32,625(100.00
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(SH: BHOIRY)
. - =)l =9 X2
25 = J | ¢ g 20|
=] 27t & &gl p; o T o494 aao | ammao | (%
SAHDIY [BIRMBBAHFE Cystel= | 2dy 1281 |234,804,994| 192,804,738| 42,000,256 71,257,863| (24,420,108)| (23,182,239)| 32.90
SRHEBAl Cherel= [ 2siuata| 128 1,201,900 393,608 808,292 737,973 (28,798) (8610)| 43.58
B
BI2RITRI0|SESAIBIAH eIz | 28EXL| 128 89,121 65,397| 763,724 62,465 19,105 19,105{ 26.67
SZHYTZSA eI= | 28Y | 128 | 11,782,948 4,3B,82| 7,389,124]  324,012| (1,986,514)| (1,915,571) 21.78
BERSM CHBteI= | 2 -TOKY| 128 288,236 49791 238445 215197, 11,583 19,805| 30.60
BRNIA(F) () el | M= | 128 | 5916956 4508620 1,413,335 9,013,561 282,760 282,760| 17.02
olloI x| () CHetoI= | etsl=2| 1281 | 25,973,455 5,285,543| 20,687,912] 18,582,770 10,085,271 10,655,184| 20.69
=5 :
(F)BrEIzt (=4) CHEtRI=R | XIZ=8IAL | 1281 | 3915078 1,339,021| 2,576067| 200,336 659,568 81,925 10.58
CHEHEB(»4) Cheters (s30i22| 128 | 28,997,701 19,705,241 9,292,460| 14,006,005 1,728363| 2,268,959 3.3
59 ’
‘?
=
A 4
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<A67(A)71>

(St BHOR))

£z 2g 200 | oy |zes| o S5 e | g ;’2; gf;ﬂ I{:Ef
S| | AR20IF2888ISAl 22 =239 128 3,958,732| 3,402,497 566,235 130,854 42,651 84,868| 100.00
KDB Bank Burope == pl ] =28 128! 1,113,228 993,801 119,427 46,211 4,333 8,031(100.00
AMR0IUBESE(F) o =289 128 698,808 585,918 112,890 22,318 5156 13,790| 100.00
KDB Bank Uzbekistan PR =8¢ 128 838,100 755,286] - 82,814 28,400 10,340 16,928| 86.32
Banco kOB Do Bras S. A oo | =89 | 128 | w96 867 61,3 40441 169 2773 100.00
PT KOB Tifa Anance Tbk oICUIAIO 28Y 128 116,553 30,437 86,116 "9,137 169 2,657| 84.65
KDB Silicon Valley LLC o= =239 128 119,648 1,660 117,979 24 (552) (552) | 100.00
ST CieteI= | RMIme | 128 | 10,623.210] 8.406,627| 2.217.563| 4,486,566) (1,699,629)| (1,650.280) | 56.68
AREIYU(F) (*l_) Chsrai= HI= 128 253,430 240,028 13,402 87,589 (9,176) (8,939} | 100.00
CHEIZE(F) (#1) Chetal= M= 128 701,881 991,844| (289,963) 763,270 (136,301)| (135,624)( 70.04
=P EIE(ES gtz | olMmESZ| 128 7,513,809 6,217,165] 1,296,644 555,801 232,376 183,742| 0.2
g0
BIRHIEIAUSESAIS|AL (x2) Cherel=s | SSSEAI | 0REDI 361,684 237 361,447 12,709 10,819 10,819| 41.67
FRACUSSSNAN (D | UHER= | 28K | el 17830 10| Bom| 7172 see|  se06| 50.00
SRISSBNSIA (2) U= |2ssne|menl| w8 6| wam| as77|  20m 2009 500
AI0ICIHIQI I XM SE( ) ez | 2| 128 68,612 11,373 57,239 37,483 18,861 18,336| 84.16
HOICIHIQHIAEHE(Z Chgtel= =39 128 81,468 2,687 78,781 10,535 4,084 4,177 100.00
HOICHHIBI=(Z) grel= | duiAagy | 128 7,478 4,441 3,037 25,580 260 7371100.00
AHOICIHIPHAEHERN S gz | SSSEXY| 128 | 11,017,597| 8043,128| 2,974,474 - 206,231 232,737 9B.40
ANDERBIXISIAL
HoICIHIRAAS Oietoi= | 2s=x2l| 128 | 19.60.738] 19638.413] 47,35 5| 14201| (35890 820
NPEXBSEIA
HOICIHIAOHIRE) IS0 | thelel= | 28SXel| 128 12 617 B 34| (2319] €000
| nesRmesiA
KOB-1P SOiZ Ueloi= |2ss]g| 128 || 5506 %26 (189) - 22| (0569 352
NSERTSBIA (x3) ‘
HIOICIHIOAIOH s | SBEXNHY | 128 130,757 102 130,655 - (2,669) 11,441| 50.00
NREXHSBIAL (+3)
HOICIBIZSASAMA gz | SSEXNY| 128 105,256 144 105,112 81,216 69,808 70,597| 66.67
NDEXHSSIAL
JIRSHEXIRIIR igel=z | SSEXNY| 128 3,947,608 2915271} 1,082,337 83,857 29,628 29,628( 100.00
SEATHH0I0] et |2s=xe| 128 70 > 768 2 (e8| (156 B2
NDEESBIA
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(SS): WoKR)
, ] | @l (nes
2z g = ' 2 40!
: = 20 | s |Zesl o T e | g cnol | smmaol| (4
2UDIQ |BIREABANF) o2 waY | 128 |211,108870] 145,797,001] 65,311,849| 60,574,819 (5,315,065 | (4,754,046) | 3.9
BRBBTA} ueteiz| esaa| 28 | 1eom| 25w s17.4m| s281| (71018 (se751)| 4358
s
BH2R01T210| SESXISIA e |2gsne| 128 | eis| 51177 7007 7006|0801 40801 67
RIS ZAL ueei=| 2sY | 128 | 1500750 5845062 9195607 5499512 4.187.673] 4.207.601] 2.11
e N ez zmeo| 2 | omar]  s4| 29| 1mes0| o517 12646] 3000
BERXIA(Z) (x4) meteiz| Mz | 128 | 501390 3406807 1.517.042) 6973800 (166,479 (166.475) 17.02
ofoIXIuRl(ZE ueter= | easiee| 122 | 17876100 7,517,806] 10,358,204] 13,794,148 5,337,06| 5,606,643] 20.89
=9
(FERZ () ueteiz| XizsiAb | 128 | 8754742] 1900504 184218 395278  17.234]  46260] 10.66
E201HLIKIRINY mistei= | 28 x| 128 5,745 147] 438 286 18 18] 54.94
NREXH2EIAL (+5)
AZEHE(Z) (+6) 2| e | 128 | esroos| 1000785 (3a2879)| 100588 (235.161)| (235,161 10.98

(1) 57199 S ZANFE BHAT Y NEA7IQol, W7 ol ol @
7199 FAAL Y G2 Bely|Boz s Bl YR Fo| A I /]
Aol e A% 2 UL AFT 5 U= 5 FALF N I 2 A3 5
o] Fo] A Auiste FHZ BAHJAS YT

-2\ FYo] TAHI Aol H AT AN &G} 243t AT T2A 7
Pol JAAL HL BAEIL YA Bt IFAIALY A fo] he WF o] o]
FoHoz x&o) 3 4BE Y YL T3 WFo|Yo] YL A==
F&71902 ERSGSUD,

(+3) Auj7Ige] A B-&o] 50% oltolit, AT L AYAYL BT F Y= 5 B
AL Fo e Y BHSHD YT, WOl fo o2 xEH o} glor, ool
IFL E 5 USS YL A8 5Yo| YonE F&rgoz ERSIGSUT
(4) X 2E0) 20% v}, Fho] HF R AL oA HYAL HF3L Yon
2 #94 4282 YA F ATt BEEo) BAVIPo R ERAEY.

(+5) 3o} AR&o] 50%F 2HFU FEYTABANPL 2N G¢Eo 2 B BF
£ AN % YE Y DA ozt BAYIPoR BRAPOU, BV1F A
sho] BAZ| Gl A A HAEI .

(+6) A7)elE F%7140] BAE BAVIYY AR EL DA A, AREo] 20%
JHIIEE §7 FBHo| AR, D] F 4198 AN §AH9 G
o] Zaste] BAZIYNM A
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12. F3 2

7] € A7) F #3A0e B e oe g 24yt
<A68(F)71>
C19): HHOIR)
2= pIES SIS/t = HEBW=E QUBIEH 0| Il

s}
5y 302,959 - (585) (415) - 301,960
AsURa2 628,30 1,082 (1,979 188 - 627,664
URNETAILS 40,637 4,005 (930) 1,366 (222) 44,8%
by 769 - (78) - 28 719
JIPHIE 59,812 2.980 (2.696) - 60 60,156
ALZOIXHA 1 2,546 - (2,580) - -
ASRETHH SRS 162,089 59,073 (98,426) - 3,299 126,085
AFSRXHH RIS 7,447 2,928 (2,422) - 24|, 7.977
AF2RXHHIIEN 2 %8 (31 - ) B
JEIS B R 154,062 4175 . (559) - 62 157,730
A 1,356,221 76,867 (107,706) (1,441) 3,248 1,327,189
FIp NI, L
ASUDARS () 217,027 17,260 - (504) - 23,783
ANEHEAILS 34,621 3,068 (780) - (518 36,391
R 616 72 (78) - 18 &8
pl=nilES 453% 4,507 (2,258) - 84 47,78
AIBATHH RS 48,501 31,274 (34,909 - 1,102 45,98
AT RIS 427 2287 (2,434) - 2 4,154
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FAgHE OCFR8 S BEd

18.87 ~25.49
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6) BT A7 AR TANNZ A BT F £F 302 BRY g
o M BE WS WA O NREE ey &Y
<A 68(F)7]>

(SH9f: HOHR)
= 0129 olA| JIEFE R OIA!

. TE felst s S2ist Bis feistHs Sgist s
S|22l-BEIIR| 7 RIS (+1) 50,112 (47,080) - -
JIEHEZEC-BEIIX| &F RIISH (+1) - - 36,873 (29,480)
SI|EA-BEDIX ST USHA (+2) 10,372 (9.957) - -
THEANE (x2) 218 (217) ' - -
=22l 60,702 (57,254) 36,873 (29,480)
<AB7()71>

(CH9f: BHoHR)

- EIl&2 Q1A J|EFE R QI
T E CEIEES 228 Bis |8t Bis s2ist s

SI|EU-BHIIX 5 RISA (1) 8,690 (6,729 - -
J|EFEEE-BEIIX| EF RIIEH (+1) - - 43,861 (31,587)
SOIEQ-BEIIX B WEHA (+2) 9,041 (8,029) .- -
TIHYALE (x2) 3,745 (3728) - -
=] 21,476 (18,480) 43,861 (31,587)

¢1) ARFAL F2 V2RI YRS 4FEB0~1%)F TAE Ex 34

AR 1~1%)st BUAE Atolo] FABAE F7H BEE F2AW A T4/ ¥E

2 AE3a o, £95AL FYASe) ¥E BE WAL AFo] AFHoR

Erbssht, ABRENos 749 HAFEZEY FUAEC1~1%) &

REA wiZ7HE MEEC1~1%)9) 4BBAC e BES AFARASUT G71L
=1

2 47T AA)

ol
o
=
o
=
o

4N
w
o
b
He
e
i
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(2) 44F 472 SH%te 24T T T

D 3257 574 F4EY F4740 HeEe ted paynh

A ARF = D77 AAA Alxl 0}‘40}3’- A 858 8 7 e dAFL

2A, FRFA) FYN S SAH o BR FRFAL FAAN 2 gD &Y
o} Qu) A F FAA G A AFEEYAA YL ol fale] FAAAE W& ST
g,

i

- AAFA7 A AR AAFA 3 AR 3R E FAE A
Frp7] B 9F35te A& FAYYT |

- 243 A7 A dEAE: 34T 5 EH%ZHi«] TRNANE 2IN3EES
g 71l v P FEES R gEo] 7 AEATHEZ e @3 A o)
A2 AT FAYYUT. ok @%624 ol B/ dxA oAl gl
7t T LA ¥ AFRErZF 374D o Uil YEAA 2 &4E dEAEY B¢
FRFAL T2 AT deU ‘

- AR dsRAe] FHANE AITEE $YL J+°‘o}°=l FA7IXH A 2= H
X AFEFAA7IEE 0] 83t 4&E FAYUD &, 87 EFN L FFEE
FA4ol E7tsd AfdATY B¢ AETAS AN = 7}@ &1 AFY.

Ql

4
aL
1= o

- AR AY¥A FHHAE AFES 492 Sefetel FHANFAN Y
N AFEEVAZIML ol§3tod 428 FAYUTh They, Aokr)7 3744 o
Rl FYRAC: B B3 FRFAL TN AT Qg

- A AFAY B E ABEE FYL Betstel TAZNGANLSENA @

TEEYA/WE o3t HEHE FAYYh.
- /BN 4 /BE A /B 4 B3 ERAY IR 83
SEYA/IEE o g3t YU @, FTEFL AP BE3H7] ol
AgolE A3 B/ AP EU

-

—o
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2) B71E3 7S A FGTAVE S FEYEY F2E AR H
<3 24U
<A68(F)71>
(CH: GHORR)
rE 71 £F=2 £%3 A
=
HBYNIXIS (%) 7,088,563 4,450,243 - 11,538,806
ARSI EF RIISA 2,964,285 3,391,599 - 6,355,884
AAS20t =X HEHA (+) - 2,249,447 194,990,235 197,239,682
JIEI2SRH (#) - 6,344,790 1,329,534 7,674,324
B 10,052,848 16,436,079 196,319,769 222,808,696
==
Oll4=52XH (%) - 2,271,579 65,998,390 68,269,969
XIRLERH (%) - 1,395,087 23,872,311 25,267,348
ARH - 158,228,192 - 158,228,192
JIE282M (%) - 2,836,258 3,868,478 6,704,736
B - 164,731,066 93,739,179 258,470,245
<A67(3)71>
(SHY: wHOrR)
PE 2F 1 a=E2 273 A
=V ,
SZLXIZ () 8,566,338 3,409,429 - 11,975,767
MASL =X RISH 1,437,496 1,531,381 - 2,968,877
AASRI S UWSIHA (») - 653,340 170,486,002 171,136,342
JIER2S XA (%) - 5,097,270 738,178 5,835,448
= 10,003,834 10,691,420 171,224,180 191,919,434
=r= ;
Oll<=S2H () - 2,294,155 50,441,274 52,735,429
XIQISRH (%) - 861,402 21,183,763 20,045,165
ALRH - 146,446,618 - 146,446,618
JIEZ8SM (+) - 3,920,770 2,886,692 6,807,462
B - - 153,522,945 74,511,729 228,034,674

Ao FRFdo) FHAAY FelHA 2AAQ
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3) B A7T A FAFUR SHHE FEEY ANFAY 2 F
MeE Thed gEth

DEINR| 4F e XD Sopa
Er
- NAsRIL =Y QISR si2s=e00Y solg
=2 287
AFRH s2ssEsoIos srolg
28T
A2ASRIL BF (B si2sssoI0 NgATHE,
JIEF AT, BD|AtEHE
. JIERRSRH siZssa0iny JIEFATYE
*==3 =53
Olla5x sizsseoIns JIEtATYIE
RIS siZsEm0I0y JEtATS
JERES S si2sss0I0y JIEIATYE
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[e) ='
46. FEAAL R FA Y PFE B
& (e Z o 2=
371 %3 A7 AA FEAL B FAY FE 2R e 2eyh
<A168(%)71>
(Bt HMpHRY)
pog | S71Ee- | SJ@el- | JEEEec- DEEEEN-| o ., | FEE
g soaue | SSMRIAE | BN ST | B SWNED | o | SRS 2
o 2848 | NN 3845 | 2n 3843 | Xm3888| T ° NS
S
83 % X3 7,088,563 - - - - 4,450,243 - 11,533,806
SII&2-BH X 30908| 11.912,008 - - - - -l nesiee
23 fo1ER
JEtESEA-SHIIR] - - - 20,814,864 16,870,065 - - 37,684,919
23 SR
A2ABRI} &Y - - - - - 63684 -| e3meM
oK
SII1EA-SFIR - 541,811 - - - - - 541,811
53 EHR
AR/ FF 4,744,002 - = - - 193,301,601 -1 198,045,608
CHEHR
THYAETHE -| 960,06 - - - - 1865429 | 9,794,455
JIEIS SRt - - - - - 7,676,612 - 7,676,612
il 11,872468 | 22,062,840 -|  20814854[ 16870085 211,784,340 185,429 | 283,589,966
282X
II&A-BHIIR| - -l a7 - - - -1 1469724
=3 289
Ofl~ =25 - - - - -| 633666 -| 83666
XU - - - - - 254x0m -| 25420014
AL - - - - -| 158,711,8% -| 188711,8%
IR AERT -| 10118348 - - - - 1,198,654 | 11,317,002
JIEISE2M - - - - - 6,717,731 - 6,717,731
Bl - 10,118,348 1,468,724 - -| 259,186,527 1,198,664 | 271,972,253
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<A67(A)7]>

sog giigel- | goigel- | DiEiEEe- | JEEERS- | oo, | SESD
2 smany | SPIKEE | SO AY | DWW | BWREY | ol | B3NN8 A
= 2848 |NZSSNE |53 3SME [ XmasE| T TC ¢ | IMNE. ‘
280

B2 0x2 8,566,338 - - - - 3409429 - nemer
&)|e-BEIIR| -| s8I - - - - - 9sm.si
=3 053

JIEHEBE-BEIIX - - -| 189450 1888063 - - a78mI%
=3 152

y2nBR0} =3 - - - - -|  2es8m7 -|  oumEm
e

YII&o-ZEIIR| - 64,412 - - - - - 644,412
=3 UER

2B} BY 887,238 - - - -| 1e9.87,156 -| 170,763,304
CHEHR

IHAE I -l amesre - - - - 58700 5306572
JIERSSRH - - - - -l 58608 -1 586048
i 9453576 | 15240085 -] 18os4508| 1888063 | 182090510 528,700 | 245,188,017

2851

lEel-BFIR| - -l 2067144 - - - - 2087144
&3 385N

O R - - - - - i -| sre e
RS - - - - -1 20 -| 208,777
AbRH - - - - -1 145,366,330 -| 14536530
THRYArESR -| 450137 - - - - 26463| 475784
JIER2gE - - - - -1 68176 -l 681760
el -] as013m| 2067144 - -| 227008868 256,463 | 233,863,843
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47. = ATH FE5FAH A

o0 A7Y AA AWFs T QBAA Y

= F4YEY Yge then gEUh

T—
=

olsh HAME opge Mg g @

<A68(F)71>
(Sl eHobe)
pUISINIS P - THRAENZO ‘A XI
mE Ssner 8a | 289 80 JH;'IEEJHE ) e ae S o
S8 &M Iga= ooy
THHAMERHAL (x) 9,794,455 - 9,794,455 5,814,449 71,536 3,908,470
Ol48i28t (+) 2,597,457 - 2,597,457 2,598,577 - 3,880
I[EERV R R 6,008,639 2,261,306 3,747,333 - - 3,747,333
SHIEASIANE 2,373,401 - 2,373,401 57,619 - 2,315,782
| gesEA
SHHE A A0S 2,240,000 - 2,240,000 2,240,000 - -
tHoiRoIEA - - - - - -
SIEAE0|%2 11,900 |- - 11,940 11,940 - -
&1 23,025,8%2 2,261,306 20,764,586 10,717,585 71,536 9,975,465
(S9): o)
S U TN BT el B e e o
S8TH 8% | 3BU B | Soun T Ery— e
THEAESTH (%) 11,317,002 - 11,317,002 5,562,654 501 5,763,847
DIXIZSe (+) 2,593,992 - 2,593,992 2,583,577 |- oo 415
i[pEE 2,508,572 2,261,306 242,266 - - 242,266
- | SO EASTHAUNSE 57,619 - 57,619 57,619 - ' -
SIISAMY 18,305 - 18,306 18,305 - -
iNES;
&t 16,490,490 14,229,184 8,222,155 501 6,006,528
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<A67(A)7]>

SN THPAEREEO AKX
as olugl s I“gM ;L o 7 qie 2zt Zon o
= QST 2 | 2885 = = = = =5
R R - T sags
THYAERH (+) 5,306,572 -| 53057 3,485,084 19,412 1,801,076
DiiSet () 3,302,464 -] 334 3,300,991 - 1,473
DIsi+UREHR 350263| 1707457 1,794,806 - - 1,794,806
BOIEALYRNE | 3,349,080 - 3349080 1,307,268 - 2,041,812
geIER
SHIXAS TR0 790,000 - 790,000 790,000 - -
CHOIRIISR 417,640 - 417,640 417,640 - -
SISOl 12,563 - 12,553 12,553 - -
&l 16,679,572 1707457 | 14972115 9,313,536 19,412 5,639, 167
(St 2HOHR)
MBI TS AEN O A
o N e | MELEEA " oo pipt Do o
T SSRN 8% | SN SN | o0 — =
: as=ad | aga= piage
THYAEST () 4,757,841 -] amses 2,988,272 105,989 1,663,580
DIXIZ2Se (v 3,303,224 -1 33m34 3,300,991 - 2,38
DIXISUREHS 2,324,903 1,707,457 617,446 - - 617,446
BOIEARHRUE 1,307,268 -1 1307268 1,307,268 - -
IS0 10,086 - 10,086 10,036 - -
DIXIZ2
el 11,708,372 1,707.457 | 9,995,915 7,606,567 105,989 2,283,359

) FAGE F

o] & AdFehdel X F3stA Yt

U¥-E ISDAS 913} SHFEA Gl AAH T A grhgo] it
3} 2 AGAA BN BE A%S ZHH D, FATHA BrhE o} oz 9
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18. 9988 - | : | -

O

FE ciahst 2ol AAAA YA Ao 2R Y A
279 71¢% wAY Aol thEmz s R 1 gon, 3
8 JugnE ohes ZEYTh

O

oft
o_&n‘.g
mz
mfb

Yoime Ay
g §

=8 CDIE, A1 £ JIYNAS MO 12 U PAIE S Hall MHIAE HIBdk= A2
N JIYNAMo| 2XE, 2E I2AHIAE E8 JIHEXE Y2 & ADIKE FXIE £8ol= AF2
M2E JHe! 2 D1 1K a2 IH\_*&EI % 28 AHIAE HMBot= AlIFE2 '
JIEt AD| JAR20 £6HK OISk 2

@71 % W) 3 ApaAozres GUEel L FRA JALole e 2

FUth
<A68(F)7]>

(SH91: i)

e I~ SNE naesg JlE =
QIFNMORE| HRjE 594,063 (2,363,562) 2,11 3,495,076 1,757,638
22t gejol (13,094) 2,134,556 - (2.121,462) -
& 580,969 (228,996) 32111 1,373,614 1,757,698
<A67(A)71> 4

(Sh91: HHOkR)

I Pl EX38 Tueg JIEt - ]

Qe NMOZRE Hojol (65,256) 1,848,863 20,81 1,745,727 3,550,156
S22t Hojgeol 5,53 754,438 - (759,974) -
=9 (89719 - 2608301 20,81 985,753 3,550,156
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R 37 2 A7 F IEF-EE & Uge g3 Yo
<A|68(F)71>
(SHY: LMok
e pJIE=r=s SX2g8 | w28 JIE} =
20|X2 871,204 (463,883) 9421 | 1,327073| 1,743815
HIO| Kiz=e! ’
SISABRALO! (+1) (17.602)|  (136,45) - 57,440 (96,617)
JIEHI0I K2 512,907 778,927 36,350 2,377 | 1,330,561
A 495,305 642,472 36,350 50817 | 1,233,944
ABEAELDFY S (+2) @orn|  (arom)| 00 - (3427)|  (343,690)
olskR Y| (742,563)|  (110,299) (13,660) (9849  (876,371)
oiol 580,969 (228,99) 1| 1,373614| 1,757,698
<A67()71>
)
= 28 | X328 | e\ JlE} =22
20| X2 1,181,060 (158,369) 2,328 633500 | 1,658,600
HIOIKi=e! -
SISABRALO! (+1) 63,729 17,194 - 26,604 107,527
JIEHIOIRKE 602738 | 2,807,533 36,448 (23,092)| 3423687
A 666,527 | 2,824,727 36,448 3512 3531,214
ASEABCTHO S () (924,878) 95,316 - 5,641 (83,%1)
Bk Y| (9,428)| (158,373 (17,965) 343,010 (815,746)
2oj-0 (59,719)| 2,608,301 20,821 986,753 | 3,550,156
(1) 7t AREEA L B7|EY-FF7HA] §H F715E Bd &9, 7[gxgE

-3R7A 54 47157 BA &9 2 44U 2 %7}%?_ e &ojoz
F4RUS »
+2) A§EAFFETHY 5 A§EAZIIAA@Y), DEAANZEY, 34
NEABFIEAY@DS, 3F2AAY@ DA o2 49U
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4) 371 R A7l 9,

F71T A D dA HFEAEY A998 JRE S F

Z2EY

(CH: HHOLRY)

_ 29 (»1) HISEXH (+2)

o= Hes(=)?| H67()3| Mes(=I | Ren&)|
e 47,753,159 31,511,510 28,918,343 29,704,702
29| 2,198,448 776,644 86,363 108,076
=0 49,951,607 30,288,154 29,004,706 29,812,778
(D FYE AR5, 5 a5, HITAFY, #7128 BASF, HALE 29

ole], A0l 7]
(+2) B} 5 A

oz FHEU.

J959]
£4719 2 BAYY FAFH, IR

, ez 2 24 E U,
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49. 2338

O K

D233y £33 34 ,

gaases 74%‘%501] TRE = Z4F 238 a3 Belste e HA
4 & FAStE AS B o= st gUY Bl2adgs 2P FFEFY T F
S 2 -sﬁ*é% o 7k low e 2 AFd o FAHIL s

-dx3t AYE, $H, SYHoE BelHojof @}
- elxgE A% A4, 54, Bohh 5, A3 B Fojof goh
- @23t oY FY o1& AT WA FAHoIok Tk,

- gadE EARE AFHA YT HA3) 2o} @t
- B A Blade] =EHE AL BAE] fe) B2 HERE B sjol=e}
o] 47 - gl Hojo} g}, |

2) Bl A Hx}

gy gl Bed T d23E SAHGL, ZUETP R #sH] A% AZE @
A AA 238 AN BHD ARE FFst FFdHN &8st T

3 @A= oldstu U 2T s 2P I A 7I9=E2M A &5

H, A QoM A=, T84 4= ¥3}E 25t oy, #edats A

5oz ANsn Y&FUT. 12 2B e AP FRUs E5A

S 93 Y2aBYREDY AR EDR B2 JAIAS S 98 =H5tn Y&

3 d2and 249 729 7%
OEPEEEERE

gaaele] B9 oAls A3 A1 AR TEA, 994 ALelolAE TF
@499 S9o FASC gaaBe JEWA £, ARARY Hr} D BelA
Aol B A1 5 elaane s BAD FA) g8l 9FstE 715L £AEY
.
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@ I3 2 PraBAREG

s4e gaane 43¢ el 2819 BB YEEA I o] R ES B
3 @ ESE 4EL SHsin, 2B RERe Gy AA d2a8Y ARES
Zzae JERAAYAZAN B2 BUGT T8 o418 D AQR & B2
B JUE AT 9B P

CEEERSLEE | |
JaanPss 1@ FEFEL 902 T JgYh 238993
b A WEAE BE W9 WlNe 2B wE 5 xEEe

@ AL Alele} 9875 SaFY T

4) P23 # ALY EF

glaadgdsls Aaaved] g AP gAI TN Y2ARe ) BAD
AREAQ) AR g A FodAe U 92715 TP dFUTh 37
2 92 2 wuAEe e e

. F2 9 AAY
- 224d 237 71 EALEQH
- 223 ¥R E 2 AE b
-22d 718 2T A FEHA QD
- 93 ggd s WRAR = T4

- F8 BIAE
- 21 Nt7] SIS ES A3
- 213 487] 218993 924§
- AEFIIA 2 D RS AMEARAY, R EAE a2 SAH’L HF AR
-229 AEXEZFL Ix AA
- 22d WRAE = wji
-22d 1&7] A8 93] 92 E&
- 22V AEFA7IYE HEFEE F7HE A 8712 87
- el A A sAZY AT E 2H L
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- 223 719 8FIHA 2" &9 AT

- 229 4N B 718 8EAS A9

- 22d 287] 218993 24y

- 2199 7| BIS @715 A4 A5 29
- BISH| & A9 2 Ut AE

- 22d W RAE HAQ HJrt A%

- 223 999 S5A AEBCP) 2 EH 27
- 22 3Rk7] SRR ES A9

- 2293 327 A89U3] 94 &

o) dlaa #YAA 75 AT &F ,
TS ALHPAY R DAY A% 23 de ANEE st e 22 EF

< FYsAsHH. |

- vpA A g X S5F fA

- 20089 E8AE7|Td e E&4Q AEHAFAL B E A HEAFEHAHA
HI7HA A B

- E43 8 5 LDPLowDefault Portfolio)oll th3F A&7} 2 A 7| A

-LGD F 418823 g8vHe &4 23 QA F 43 SH7E Fus)

- LCR % NSFR®] HA| 4H&& A& A 2" 75

- 71941 8H7HA 29 AT 2 2820173 10€ 26 549 B 59)

- vt A28 23 (RRBB) §4 7|€ =94 < A A28 7520184 99)

- Bt AL A 715 AE A2 71 & E 338 A2 713(2020d 12€)

- vl A Zel A3 A&7 /R (FRTB) 34 ITAAY 2 ITA 249 7|
(20221 84) |

- vl 2g 23 A4E7]E A 38 ITAARE 2 ITA2" /42(20224¢ 99)

- 146 -



- H2awy A=z &5
- Y23 AU IAH FAIAEHE LS Y8 RAPM A28 755 95
3tx 2010978 944 29 B A437t 48
- Front Officedll Al 7i&& sAFF Zeto]d 29 Validations A8 &
N A Y SR Fol A *l"&?ﬂ_éi & 7
-IFRS 9 71¥& $53h= d& A& N2d T2 $2(20179 39)3k T
2018 198 dF H& ‘

6) BB HIA|2H ¢
39e 2 479

2 23A 29 4%

238 AuAoln

e He 7150 elatd 34, BejatnA eta gom, 9
23 %4 4 B0} DA Fho] THF B A2

%
flo
v
[
B
Oy
)
L
0

AIAEIS IEuE a2y E=S
. H/HIHLLE DTS, MESSHHNE S
|2 JPA| A : ]
JIASEIIA| Logt Model 2017.10 SSIBE A ASIRO
2002.6

RiskWatch s TNE, B2, Market VAR Q1B &
AIERIAT R AIAE :

RS Mockl 20129 FRIRRR(TZ=2e) A

Murex M/O 2013.4 VaR AR Al RiskWatch2 et
Se/ssHe|ATRLIAAE  |Inhouse 2019.5 SoRIAT, |KSHelAT ME S
S| AIRAL|AIAE 2 T FUH 2006.5 T24AH2), CSA KR, OP VAR M& S
BISK | XH2HISAHE Femrat 2006.9 IR, MSASIES KA &
U ML AT SHAIAEH RaY (#) 2013.12 AIR2IAT MES

IFRS 2011.1 B A D8I(IL, Incured_oss) JIE
CHESSYSAIAR

RS 9 2017.3 OllAtA D8(EL, Expected_oss) J|E

() ¥HAI A==

Y},

AE71E AW whet 20214 3¥ dadol=rt 45H%NE
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7 AR g8
TEve S5 20087 E HHALE AlY3t o, A&e 23 g
¥ F9¥ (Standardized Approach)® W45 3 ¥ (Internal Rating-Based Approach)
< AHgsta YT

olo] mwa} FPL 20083 7Y ALFAT9 JEYRSIH HLo U 2 4=
49 52UAE 5319 2008 69 EHH ALt o, Al 2 g2
A= B9 (Standardized Approach)& A €35t3 &Y}

ob2# 20134 129 1978 S £U8 SAM FA o] o) $shaA A 71 2
zaBANLRE TE RGP, 20139D 1 ERE WP 71 Fo) AT BI

S A1 ARY & AT

g AEGIT wplsE oy § d2ae Fat 27 WeaH Y 2
AQ AL - A - Q2T 099 Fel - 454 - A8AF - YWP23 5=
AMF 1 QIEFUTH 20158 R 289 2388 £F FIYIl e F71 AR
LT T £XE XFst= 2 AN E 5 dSstd kYT T3 201549
‘Q%’—H% A € A8 88949 TLTA7ISE I & Tl Y

oh&d 2017d A= FAlo] that AETFA JHH, 20189 AFF-53 J2EA AR
FA AR 2 201992 A 2 FANE FAAE SR ASA-CCR) 5
M2 & FAO et Aol sl Yol A&y

E3 HHAN AEAFS AN FE7E MU gdstd H" & A28 AdS
¢35 8ko], 2020 ¢ BISH & AFEA 78 /1EE W &S 48 Foll JdFUT

Qe 2022d 7] F vhU3 AFel2a FA ARERTB) R 923 FA

AW B ITAAE 2 TA29 A2e $259.009, 202305 H 74 AR AHa
o stdgol thg g ALY
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O WEARAAY B7t L AR
WRAE AYH BoHe FYY FL 2238 FFehel WEARE2IFPL
£33 0|8 HEAEGGR T 5 HlTso BT EE BAAEY H74
B7}- Belsts 9B FHL guise, HF AEY Bk At Y YRR
444 RINE A5 2239993 Basty g

r}m o

- W RRARHHY BoHAA
WEAZAAY WS dot] G T2 2)23E 53, TS WRALS
&30 A2 A3 FAUE 5L /122 RS AT F, BT A
23} 7H4 AR L v matel ALY HHY 2L BRPU

=4, FYe 9714304 FAH AP B A FAHeR) 1
8] o)) $1718 824 Stress Testing)e A3l F WRALHPY 97 5
o 833 AU ANFALEL VBN B-A 2 3RAZ sHYske] 2 A
e AR S AAHE 5 AAAC] Ul S Pt vhstel elaa
#o] BAL 7l AFUT ~

SRR #Es)E A
G YEARGEHY 23S 78R AA WY Yol A BeEstd WA

0.

2AYYL FAR7) A3, O 9232 AL $U¢ Soho] AR BE
g 44T Q& WRAE BY/1F AL A3 AEE WRAR TR, Fa

Az e &7, dFFIWTF R TR 52 ZHorsle B EAR FRE
AbE3t3 BIS vl & #7|1E3 5 & 9184 F(Risk appetite)d] &€ HE33 FH

¢

na

- WEAHE ul &

B HA HEAES g2aBgd3 $UL& AX 2B FYIE T3 ¥
- P8 237 2 YR T& Hgst] sEsty syt siEd Wy
AE #HERE F714A EUHE 5 T3 = WA dYHES 51 3o,
2UHY AgE 23w dsd ragut. 9% Z9Age vA, 238
4 Ao W7 Fol BAsE YRAEZGETE 23D 1Y HdA WEd=s
g¥He=z 2451 JdsyH
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- WEARE FA4 .

WEAE S FPo] FRYLFE XHstT Yo AFY2IF AR AR T
AH syt AZelaas AT THER AU 2F 5l sto] ABH
dolgd s BFH oz SHHE 238 An|t A& 2T, AFe2a, 5
gEsd, 982, AdHFTILE, dEdAgLaR FHH s ¥ A
FelAds AT AE PPE B A0S0 283 HAHG HoHY B 22 g
23 S AR FA 3 577 oE e A 2 gagLaa, AtaEE 3
A L33 B2 o2 FAHH AU

@A g 23

1 i

A& 2T AL 4 L ZAYF Bo|dd w}Z FAHA BAH &4
2 A% F e BF I ABE AAH 22 IF3A RAY, UAF F
o wat &AL YA 2 7HsA8E g gy

2) By

O Agelaa B AL

g NgP2T= FEEZL L AHAH HE AL A
XEZYL BEE JUIFTEES F48 Y235 AT
EEZYULE ATFIZUG. ol w} FEAHFZ il
Aot 7198, AGE L AHEZ AE5HF T& 1T I=
Aer, AP 2 2AE asty] Al wrvie Y P IS DA S
A JAEA 8IS At YFYT

AEAN Ao M= AAHENLCO), TAHAFALARM), A& L3 F 414
A AL E A B 9E7 TR St pEYYY A8 AaE BEsta YE
Yot

@ A3 WA E AT AT R L $AANY Be)
FYe dilo] AAZ Y o FHH A%+ FIAAX AN A SIS A%
Hoz sotste] 4WY WS FO2H P4 AR A7 24 WA L o} 3%
9 HANE ERFTA FAZ SHPAL AN AT EF FAFF AR
A2 o #el HAY AL 5L Astel 2713 R A2EE 2G4 AU 2]
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AR ANEEL 71 i AFAHE R FEANME, TETHR, AFFE o2
T4H Jer olE FRE &8st TAAENY £ AANAEALC] 719 A&
T HgE BYE Pt 719 AR EE A BT F sy F4A0| d3HE=
719 FA2Y B Axo wet 27| ARV Hdez AAstA A A E40] &
GE FAH I AYbd A4S S TS AFsHA HH, 2A]F 7]
& BAV|do g ERHY RAAGIEA A AT At oA F T HH
Azp, iz, 7143832 5o ¥ st sy

ARAAE &7 2 HEFEE A ¥

AAAREFE R Ui Agel23e] 24 E Hrts B3t ol e

A FFe IS A, ALY A% H 71E RAREY 27134 E S

st AL AHSE SR8k d sy

P FEAEFAA ZAR A5 HA F FFAH® ohz} v) Y A

AssEe FE3) g3ty AAAAAN S EFS= FLC(Forward Looking
Criteria)oll 98 DAY EF7IES v - A st 231 sy

5 7120w BN ARAE A, 2T, 2R, FFIR, FHEA
o sRAZ BRAL, BF GANE HEFFF YES A5 4834 5 44
L =] .
u

CR-1.37EH AL dA dEAEY TEE WYL U3 Zsyth
<)1Qqda> '
<A168(F)71>

1274 HHD12 A REA
7= =N J|CHAIRAAl 3 U
=X (hat HiAIR&A =
AMA ~ BBBt 169,982,892 150,604,520 19,378,372 -
BBB2 ~O0C 30,582,238 | - 8314,5/0 20,210,063 2,057,605
OC 018t 1,083,425 - - 5268 1,230,732
2] 201,848,555 158,919,090 39,641,128 3,288,337
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<AB7(A)71>

SR JItHAIEEA

1242 —
TE 7= J|CHAIRAAl =3 Ui
53 Ua HlalgSEd LEEY
AAA ~ BBB1 138,451,664 123,087,995 15,363,669 -
BBB2 ~CCC 34,125,651 11,317,3%4 21,134,914 1,673,343
CCOlot 2,133,285 - 12,670 2,120,615
Al 174,710,600 134,405,389 36,511,253 3,793,958
<1dej >
<A68(7)71>
(Sl HOH)
1204 A2 DIt EES
T+ &2 dF= JltaIsEa S3 tid
53 U HlalEdy LEEY
152 ~652 181,023 173,381 7,642 -
s ~8s32 2,116 - 2,084 32
gsS=~ 1053 536 - - 536
=] 183,675 173,381 9,726 568
<A67(H)71>
(EHPI: WHOHR)
12042 SHD2E JICHAIEEA
= yF=Y I\t EEA 3 0
=3 Ud blalE&d NEEd
1S2 ~65= 203,29 192,455 10,838 6
s ~8s2 2,709 - 2,701 8
==~ 1082 572 - - 572
=] 206,580 192,465 13,539 586
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@ 2. 3712 A7 |2 @A AFEFTE RS X L gEHY FA88E 34
s39 gL 9o 2eun
<NQdnB>
<A68(%)71>
(£i51: w1
HEE S Mgae oF NS25(3825 28) -
az _— HHDI2 JIHIB LA . i EHDIZE JICRAIBEA
= AATH BN | agas 53 Uiy AAEN BY | ipages 2 0y
axoy | veses | usey Camoy | uusey | uses
AMA~ BBB1 2006612 38,276,358 3,769,254 - eerms|  eomsew 913,384 -
BB ~O0C 5,108,112 1,943,066 3112816 20| 9me|  asws3|  aeees 1,348,064
cc o3t - - - - 12,110 - 154 11,956
& 173724 021940 6.902.070 220| 16707250 10606875 4740364 1,360,020
<A67(H)71>
(et o).
LEYS S Asd 4 N225(2825 B8
e 120Hg HEDIZ Ol SEd 1204 EHDI2 DAL
b AATH Y | jagas i AN B | H|pjuged 53 e
aymy | vesey | uses 2z 0y | dusey | uses
AAA ~ BEBI F27670|  348287m 2,453,851 -1 eapas| - 5052 695,908 -
BB ~O0C 9,287,945 5,814,8%5 3,360,5% s355| 68098 3aaee| 3084210 522,854
c ofst - - - - 665,845 - - 665,845
21 46514675 40637714 5,823,446 s3515| 13963263 9,043 3,760,173 1,188,699
g 2>
<A 68(F)71>
(= el )
OiEd s 82 oUF
s 12908 HHPI12E DICHAI A
ALY SN It 8&A sE Uid
Sl | sy A&
1S=2~652 3,230 31,779 451 -
s2~882 20 - 20 -
9sS=~ 1053 - - - -
2Ll 32,250 31,779 471 -
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<AB7(A)71>

(St HEk)
IEAY S LS AF
Qo 12042 HHDI2H JIChAIR &AL
= oAmy 2 | JlIBA =3 i
=3 Ui CIINI=E NE=EN,
152 ~652 76,448 75,950 498 -
752 ~852 9 - 9 -
9S= ~ 1052 - - - -
& 76,457 . 75950 507 -

SAYHE 8%
R M = 49 dolest SH -4 FAWH o wet Agd23 S48
_}?—

® 244 (SA: Standardized Approach) ‘
EEUHE A4 972189377 B(ECAL External Credit Assessment Institution)
o g2 4F7MFXE 50 ~ 150%) & &3= gy}

HESE Jie =t 28
APA ~ AA- . 20.0% 0.0% 20.0%
At~ A- 50.0% 20.0% 30.0%
BBB+ ~ BBB— 75.0% 80.0% . 80.0%
BB+~ BB- 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
B+~B- 180.0% 100.0% 100.0%
B- OISt 180.0% 180.0% 180.0%
FS= 100.0% (%) 100.0% HAEE B8

() 2719 4+ 85.0%
3L OECDE7MIEEH)TH Aol 6759 AT HH40897718d &

=418%7t, NICEA8H7E, &=714% 71 A85H & AHEsta slsyt. 330l
e NEALTEE AT 9N R T AF AcH FEE Al 7= A &3
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2 AE E AFR ALFFY AISA FEE I22A 9 HEMER(100%)
Ho} 52 39 22 A9/ E &30, B 45539 4+ 22 2709 9%
MR F 58 P75 XE 28 (Second Best Criteria)@y .

®@ W5 FH(RB: Internal Rating-Based Approach)

YR TEHE ARz gte 232 853 Tl A 4208 55t 2
5G9 ALH $U& wolof Yt

olof we} FeP-& 2008'A 19HE Fuel A &F uhAlS} ##H st 2008d 7€ &
SHEQoRRE 7B YREFHY AR5 L 55300, F YL o] 4319

2008 69 o] F A AAFAAE St AU

® FPe) A& 23 YAEAL S

Frle dA) AL Y, 4719 2 AAH5E o 2E A0 thate] 7| BUYRS
FHoz AEYANEANE 23T dFUTh

AR, o3, 3B J2EAE 47H FEPHL FLe doH, H9 A4
2 XA o atds FFRELR AHPYE A B2 P oz A4 ANFA
e A& YEFUT

<J2EAY HYAFAN P>

SIS Al ‘ | QAR P2
HyPEZTg MR DD\ 28, FA UATN
oEuy
Tt R XISIAF L XIE, DIEHRHA, ADH/EHE FEHEHE/ ALY
HEEE SESH AATH
JIRUSS3Y | 1D, SAD|Y, RIIRSSHAIBSSY) AATH
CHIE YRsSaY X8 JIY QAT = E438, HIHELS

G AR & FA BRAG Age2T APAFTAN AEA B FH
meh 47 gR 2 B3L Ae Ageaa ARans wgdstn AFyh
FALEAG] NG AL GIAFAN 2N HHOB FET PR FA A ok 3}
o Y= Aol M= FAEAE TeiHA J2EAE AEFUT
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@ANLEFTHNEY ML 2 g8
NEH s B4 g7t AT A2Fol D2 FAYE A¥L J5A, = A
2zA o oSy AL NN A 222 THHo2 B . Yrletes A
o2 FARE S U2 FAH D &Y

e W2 AESF BRI B ASBATFE 1S
o), FATFANE AE Hol& FENY) do) REFTHL BEF F
Az A% BHe g

B9 7108387k A 18 ANE 9402 S0, Ao asez AW
o WoAo] YTk VAT E B3 FAT AR AN NEFF AT
& FA%D Yk .

P2 ANETFE AZd T qAEa AEE, AT E AA, AT 2, g
T3E AR, qAAETE 7E A, Agg2a 54 5 udd 4T g8tz
Ay

® A &HA A 28] 3 EATZ
Fge Ageaa Bd 71550 AA} 73 (Check & Balance)e ©] 0] 4143
AN Ee) AP0l AP 5 Qe ol e T EATEE BT A& YT

- AE4EF Rdo YA JYRFRMOZEE A 45T RARESRO) 5 Y

- SAYRY SYH: ALY 2H SAGEEHAL, $DE JYREY £
YA ¥E BAE2IBADAA 53

- AEQTY SYA: ALHAAN 2 ARAHL FHY] Ao SYHY HE B
AAR7 G2 A2 AZ AN

- WEZAL: AAR ] o8 2897 9F T2 A2 F7)8 37

- olAbs] B AR g AEHANN2E WA 5 BA F A0 B3t o]ALF
@A 93] ) 5 L A 7714 2 £
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< A4S HAFE AAA 71FA ] A ALEN A 87 E S @E
S Yo g, O A et 9R 2 BF S HESFAY AL e
ZEA T o= ZHil-Moﬂ e 2x= FHslxu YUtk

ge Br % B30 A2 ASA Guol A, B39 o Y5AH AU 34
S X E PEC IR EERSERE R LERERE ERPEEE FIE
o2 A AHAE AN,

—_

s8] n39 A4, qAHI/ T FHE AW &3
o] Al siAgel S 22U NEFFE ABTY

37123 A7 A A8l E4E SHATH BAst] HFSti s FHOG B
T TLE AT AEAEY #F2 A= dEH U
(Er9: BHokR))
g Xies(€)| H67(&)2|
JIEHEZE-BRIIK 58 RIS 72,739 . 71,688
ASR0 BT LB 3,345,216 3,849,967
DIER 14,221 26,488
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A2 EH A%
O 37134 H712 A AGE VY22 A %2 =23 dayn.

<A 68(F)7]>
(SH9): YHpHR)
282 aeie= 2 o311 1= X J=LI okl g9= o= Jlet =
G RIS U2YOIRI=2 ") 1,449,224 1,406,648 - 38,018 87,444 365514 536,418 3,329,355 1,081,286 8,242,908
JIEE S-SR BF
SIINSA
HUZDW M) 13,531,541 241,512 12,533 - - - 297,115 4,953,262 2,807,821 21,843,784
CHEHR 164,692,863 1,913,883 1,534,814 687,488 339,476 929,402 1,471,886 5,616,327 44,228,252 | 221,414,600
THEarETpat 108,797 3,572 - - - - 8,681 18,656 45,71 185,477
JIEFRIA 1,559,148 - - - - - - - 6,233,425 7,792,573
-y 181,341,573 3,564,715 1,547,347 725,517 426,920 1,294,916 2,314,199 13,817,600 54,346,565 | 259,479,342
ISEE(282S I8 16,226,813 - - - - 48,285 - 241,680 190,503 16,707,261
IS S A8 A4S 42,233,299 166,993 110,971 - 126,730 20,268 416,056 2,281,667 1,789,889 47,205,973
23 58,520,112 166,938 110,971 - 126,730 68,553 416,056 2,523,327 1,980,492 63913234
o} 239,861,685 3,731,708 1,658,318 725,517 563,650 1,363,469 2,730,25% 16,440,927 56,327,047 | 323,392,576
<A67(H)71>
- (E491: wioIR)
I Gee= &8s ol =Y =R &2 g3 02 JIE )
CIXIZHEL2HIRIZ RIS) 749525 | 1,402,014 - - 59,275 353,577 ®58| 28%8169 640,657 | 6,185745
JIEIEHE-DEIIR &F
RNBA
HHAZ3H HI) 8,108,726 302,189 21,711 - - - 266,248 3,862,898 2,297,025 14,859,797
| CHER 135,447,184 1,301,443 941,965 536,160 312,567 433,149 999,688 2,322,372 28,337,321 | 170,631,849
YA T A 174,859 45,847 - - - - 3,92 80,543 223,656 528,827
NEIROH 5,803,336 - - - - - - - 121,422 5,924,758
Ey | 150,284,630 3,051,483 963,676 536,160 371,842 786,726 1,352,386 9,163,982 31,620,081 | 198,130,976
ISeE(E28Ls 1) 13,270,467 - - - - 45,169 - 347,919 289,708 13,953,263
UEAE S SR o4F 39,836,375 85,880 148,185 - - 11,902 774,783 979,541 4,754,466 46,591,132
A 53,106,842 86,880 148,185 - - 57,071 774,783 1,327,460 5,044,174 60,544,395
P ] 203,391,472 3,137,373 1,111,861 536,160 371,842 843,797 2,127,168 10,491,442 36,664,255 | 258,675,371
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@ BN g A7)g ?ﬂZH A A g A¥A dae o Z2E5UT
<A 68(F)71>
(SHSY: BHOIRY)
= pESe Mu|AgS JIE B
CIXIZ(EYL2E0IXIZ RIS - 7,636,352 606,556 8,242,908
JIEIER20-BRIIR| SF

II=A

A2 ) 3,642,461 14,432,050 3,769,273 21,843,784
CHETH 84,698,134 117,538,177 19,178,289 221,414,600
THYARE XA - 185,477 | , - 185,477
JIEFRHAH 244,043 468,531 7,079,999 7.79,573
AN 88,584,638 140,260,587 30,634,117 259,479,342
12253825 18) 14,244,265 2,070,682 392,314 16,707,261
HEUE S (B2 XX 22,153,544 28,477,561 1,574,868 47,206,973
AN 36,397,809 25,548,243 1,967,182 63,913,234
B 124,982,447 165,808,830 32,601,299 323,392,576
<AB67(H)71>

_ (SH): eHoIRy)
2 HIxQ AHIAS JlE BH
GIXIEUSHNXIZ RIL)) - 5,529,904 655,841 6,185,745
JEtZHE-SHIIR &

CYIES]

HA(2BH ML) 2,597,917 9,614,360 2,647,520 14,850,797
WEJE 73,076,518 8,852,716 14,702,615 170,631,849
MHYARE X A - 528,807 - 508,807
JIEFRHAH 121,251 227,172 5,576,335 5,924,758
A 75,79,656 98,752,979 23,582,311 198,130,976

2252825 28 110,588,505 3,012,831 351,927 13,953,263
HEUE S AR o4F 21,238,777 2,162,715 3,189,640 46,591,132
AN 31,827,282 25,175,546 3,541,567 60,544,395
2 107,622,968 128,928,525 27,123,878 258,675,371
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@ B71% /1T @A COVID-19 F4tol wpe} P& g 5 gl

e

o<l

N2TA L AT 3 02T goul, FF 371930 B 9T we A
e W5l 4 gy
<A68(F)71>
(E51: wprR)
JEEZAe-
URS | 2mym am
PEENEEY (ir";ﬁ; B GENE | DUNBTN | JEm A% ags’:ien c?i:;fjg A% &
Hiel) M2
(23 1)
CAg0l - I iman - 5100 1me57 = ) Bow| 138510
X/ RS - 226,042 4,267,310 - 16,770 451012 152,023 1,564,613 1,716,63% 6,226,758
sx - 35,472 12191177 - 2,685 12,546,344 580,123 1,716,017 2,256,140 14,842,484
| A= FR/8t8H AILXI - 1,077,431 18,430,754 - 80,52 |« 19,568,737 201,296 6,408,868 6,611,164 26,179,901
Y/ 3% - 18,739 10,022,074 - 2,002 10,226,815 650,497 287342 3523918 13,750,733
JIERIEY - 1,830,777 38,497,3%6 - 109,924 40,438,047 12,660,944 9,556,061 22,216,005 62,654,052
EY | - 3,642,461 84,608,134 - 244,043 83,584,638 14,244,265 2,153,544 36,397,808 124,982,447
83225 - 5624 3,085,579 - 13,78 3,104,988 221,159 3,000 24,19 3,329,147
saes - - 2 - a08|  2zadm® e 705 @2X6|  29m7%
JEres - 166,659 8724288 - 2,36 8914,253 16,597 2,5983,35 2,538,983 11,514,206
e cIX/ o8yt - - 12.277 - 9 12,336 - 1,700 1,700 14,036
. a8 - 11,589 204352 - 4,873 205094 39,249 347,915 337,164 2,447,148
szt A - - 563,657 - 1,672 565,329 7127 112,490 119,567 684,806
SSERY S 7.6%,352 14,248,178 100,615,380 86477 38,78 123.079,204 1,708272 20,055,185 21,763,397 144,822,601
A 7,63%,352 14,432,050 117,538,177 188477 468,531 140,260,587 2,070,682 23,477,561 25,548,243 165,808,830
B <l - 285,970 4,067,048 - 8,889 4,361,908 348,557 1,561,312 1,908,868 8.2N.,777
JIE} JIERNS 606,566 3,483,308 15,111,290 - 7.0M,10 28.212.209 43757 13,586 57,313 26,3052
A 608,566 3,769,273 19,178,280 - 7,079,999 30,634,117 3,314 1,574,868 1,967,182 3,601,298
B 8,242,908 21,843,784 21,414,600 186477 7,772,573 258,479,342 16,707,261 47,205,973 63,913,234 323,3%,576

e COVID-199] &ato] AR R4 nxE JFL vdsle oA LAR
AN S U old] Wat 2FF(EIEA T3 220,618W L L F7) Zo

7 AP SR
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<ABTH)7]>

(S BipHR)

JIER @R~

UXB ) amyg ax

ABTNER (iil.‘? s OENE | LYNETY JIEFRHAH A% a;ls;ig) ;‘:\;‘;ii AN 2]
Ri2l) M

(22 M)
CIAZI0l - - - 70,29 - 2917 73,176 1,641 27,574 29.215 1,002,391
B/ ROIRS - 204,679 5,069,874 - 7.968 5,272,511 11521 365,07 480,282 572,73
NER - 231,343 10,721,8% - 1526 10,958,462 435,597 1,686,997 2,121,504 13,080,056
REY | HR/SRY X - 620,186 13,675,380 - Z7.904 14,523,450 150,371 5,520,913 5,671,284 20,194,734
TR - 146,239 9,985,811 - 13814 10,145,864 617,066 2,343,478 2,960,544 13,106,408
JIERIZY - 1,396,470 2,703,381 - 3,372 34,152,223 9,268,619 11,085,744 20,324,363 54,476,566
ES - 2,597,917 73,076,518 - 121,251 75,795,6% 10,588,505 21,2877 ez |  107.6298
gzes - 584 3,200,683 - 9,284 3215811 291,80 21,000 312,880 358,691
sa2s - - 2,083,090 - 21,383 2,104,452 74,721 751,613 86,34 290,786
JlEres - 140,164 6,261,108 - 12,886 6,414,162 9,110 3,576,5 3,566,642 9,999,804
AHlAS) D] - - 59,072 - 6 59,138 - 1,700 1,700 0,88

=T - 2,427 1,990,720 - 3651 2,066,808 36,674 318921 35,56 242,48 |,

XSkt 2 - - 513522 - 76 514,38 12,322 84,691 7,213 611,611
28282 & 5,529,904 9,356,925 68,744,507 sB87 179,047 84,378,210 2,588,124 17,408,088 199%,182 | 104,374,3%
A3 5,520,904 9,614,360 R.8652.716 seB&7 27,172 ®| 7,979 3,012,831 2182715 5,175516 | 12398525
A - 236,235 2,640,38 - 3,628 2,880,251 196,966 1,640,764 1,8%,720 4,716,981
b= JEIYE 655,841 ‘2.411.285 12.062,217 - 5,572,707 20,702,050 156,971 1,548,876 1,704,847 22,406,897
A7 656,841 2.647.50 14,702,615 - 5,576,356 B,5:2.311 351,927 3,169,600 3,541,567 27,123,878
581 14869797 | 170,631,840 52887 524758 | 1981097 13,963,263 46,501,122 ‘60,5436 | 258675371

6,186,745

GqL COVID=198] Bato] AAlesd] BAE FGe wdstel MY AFHRE
AAEs QS U old wel 2FF(EFEA X3 924,1769 A S A] Foll F
7 H gs g i,
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@ B71gs A71E A VEELFTE A4 dY tsdd T8 A89gxx
A gL e Esyn
<A68(F)71>

(St9): wiote)
12He HHDI2E JICHAIR 2
2z PSR pJ[sINE=E=N =3 Cha
=3 Uy HIAIS A g
AAA ~ BBBT 27,133,598 26,789,221 344,377 -
BBB2 ~0OC 37,359 14,927 2,43 -
aC olat - - - -
&) 27,170,967 26,804,148 366,809 -

<A67(H)7]>

(CH: eHotR)
12042 D2 ICHAI R4
-y K 20H pJ[uIINE=ESN =X [t
53 Ohat HiAl22At NERON

AAA ~ BBB1 21,929,738 21,600,109 329,629 -
BBB2 ~ CCC 33,800 . 33,800 - -
OC 0|5t - - - -
=] 21,963,538 21,633,909 329,629 -

- 162 -



(3) A2 )

D) AR A

Fae 20089 79 FEASPOTRE JEYREFHY AHE5
o, 5w o] £3le] 20089 62 o] F ANLPNFANE S0

2 95530
=
©ZA 2AE A9 /1 RRREFHA 9 BISVIE AV AR D ANAEE T
al
-

s
A=

L=}

30 i

AUt BIS7IZ A1z 2H & 2 A7) AAAFARE 7| F 02 A&t
9l&Uth 20139 12958 Aldg BAE 7)oz & LYYASTFH| Be
AR E 27 obehel 5 ERE FRYYL,

@ Tier 1 AHE 1 EAE: REFAE + 77| 2AHE) |

- REFAE: FAAE BRY REFE BEFHY) A% HFe 02 39 P4
A AFEsoln, Fae] £4¢ 7MY BA RAY £ A1, AN E ALstue 4
852 G AL gUFYT AEF, AEYAF, ol YA T, JIBEBE A
A Fo] REFAE ¥FPUTh |

- 7B RAE: FAAE BAY VAR R BRYY AR A eHoRE FE
Slolojo} a1, ul G E= oAb B R A H o)1 ABH A Fo] Fhssta WG A
g-59l0] glolok FUth. ol2@ ZEby| AR e Rayn BAH ARF, ARYAF
59 ol 7| RAE S TR

@ Tiér 2 AHE (LARHR) :
FARE BH4 ngREoz ERE] 4@ 4AgdeR

t2A%ARLAL 3
Z3ke, Wo)7k 56 oY FEAAAS EEPY L ULSFUOE HEY g

T3 Tol T¥EUH.
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v e,

F7193 H71E @A vpA M7)Eed 93 BISZ|E A7|AEu g 2 A7 REL o

&3} 2&Uh

- BIS7] & A7 A1)

Y

)

(49 wipt

28 Hies(&)1 Hi67(&) |

BIS XD IXH2 (A) 38,323,284 44,586,032
LN 35,125,348 41,131,484
2SFX= 35,125,348 41,131,484
JIERIZX= - -
g2 3,197,936 3,454,548
SIEIEEXHA (B) 286,063,303 299,680,858
LSS ISRt 277,265,026 291,238,386
ANEA IS 1,329,603 1,692,127
SIS 7,458,674 6,750,345
BIS XIX=2HI2 (A/ B) 13.40 14.88
JlExr2tliE (%9 12.28 13.73
SEFXEHIE (A 12.28 13.73
JIERIE2X2dIE (%9 - -
sax=tE (% 1.12 1.15

o~




- BIS7|& R} 7| A&

, (S49): wigi)
e HiBs(=) | © RI67(&)D]
XD XK (A+B) . 3B3BB 44,586,032
J|1=x1E (A 35,125,348 41,131,484
HE=IH= 35,125,348 41,131,484
xe2 23,151,559 21,886,559
=oi= 748,121 738,802
oln= = 7,355,027 14,206,652
JIEHERECIET | S 4,185,537 5,289,110 |
HS=THEe (314,8%) (1,009,639)
HHR (B) 3,197,936 3,454,548
Uesg=2 s 972,578 924,935
HAN=ER 2,244,000 2,312,000
HIRA =S - 258,060
PRAT=THE2 (18,642) (40,447)
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DA FE 23

D7 :

AR EaIE F71 22, 88, AF T ARVMEY EYF HFOR ) 4L ¢
S F e P23 g FYY. EFold EXH(Trading Position)2 & 7| o] uf 2}
o] EX o2 BAdle f71F5HE, dHEAM, FAFHFIE ol o] HH, F8,
F7t, 8& T3 BEE g 2T =2Fo] 91, | EFolgd XA (Non-trading
Position)& di#& s34 &5 JFUY I2E=E FP2 AFAES
Edolg XA v EYold EX M)A s 22T = Yol 2442z #Esta
Ay

2) Edolg. 2X M) A Fe 2T

@ By

G Ageca 2P EEPETY YREYNL BT AL T d&UTh B2
WS £QAIAE A2 5 FAZHOR YEEGY(VaR)S i@ BHoe
HegUg. gEuEe v dss F8ETo] ANG WPoln, YREYPL
ol o] AEAlgtoln 20074 7YY 99% A FH5E stelA HA 2502 A AL H
OJHE o] &3 IALH A& °Mﬂ(l—ﬁstorlc%1 Simulation) WY &8 Al£3}49 1 day

VaR 71202 g 381 A&, —

Fge A7 ALAY, 9IHG 5L wdste] AFelra FIES AR F E
goly 24 VaR $ES uj2atd UE Beldm gyt |

°
T
3

@ 37123 A7|D A A 23 2827 AR S g ZEUT

(SH9): otel)

= HIB8() 7| H67(&) |
=X 62,386 87,830
=0 B 3
sis 17,285 21,964
= 11,249 20,262
H 90,963 130,059
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) HIEH Y EXAY A AT

O &% : A

H Ego|dg -ﬁ‘-x]*'qq]’ﬂ FAsE 7 Fod AFHELe 29 g23494d. 249
g2 347t ‘:”53-4 AFgefel BstA H5E o AT 5 A= 474
< 9Ju] 3}y, IRRBB(nterest Rate Risk in Banking Book) ¥ 8l 2% AEVE

(change in Economic Value of Equity) 2 ANII(éhange in Net Interest Income)=

=R FY.
AEVES 29 WSl A, %4 2 2992 Ak 982 o4 24T 5
A= A7IRES AAH 742 AF S s, ANIE 2] MEBOE s FF

195 BAY & e Soltol] WES THYT

FPL wid 23U E T3l :‘Elﬂ’\i F=E ’E—Ll"éo}@] w5t ,\l"
o. Y F238 S8 2UEHIFYh

@ 97123 A7) A v EF oY XM AEVE 2 ANIE o3 &Y

(S HOHR)

(2)
= Hie3()2] HI67(F)2|
ABE 4 1,484,769 . 792,049
AN | ~ 389,249 | | 135,018
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-

4) SPAA ] g2

718 A7E A FYAU =EAHE e T Yt gL o5 2
F4t
<A168(3)71>
(S): BHokR)
e 5} UsD EUR JY GBP JlE 2
=N '
S 3980664 | 7,358,901 24,870 52,003 14,083 108,265 | 11,538,806
S|22-BHIIX| &F 11,206,799 691,367 - 2,218 - 51,52 | 11,951,906
Cy S
J|EHEZEQ-REIIX] 28500211 | 8,016,390 25 376,506 - 701,767 | 37,684,919
25 QJI5A
A2 &Y S5 6,355,884 = = - = -| 63584
SI|2-DEIIX| EF 541,811 - - - - - 541,811
WESE
AASRL EF BN | 138,177,034 | 51,883,126 | 3573847 | 1,62518| 1,051,281 | 1,677,797 | 198,045,603
THYAMZT 6,804,262 | 2,674,562 64,348 2,321 175,820 53,142 | 9,794,455
JIER28 R 5194841 | 2,330,511 45,3% 51,070 16,868 76| 7676612
AN 200,851,506 | 72,954,857 | 3708486 2,186676| 1,258052| 2,630,419| 283,589,996
28%x
S)|2U-DEIIX| &F 1,089,717 180,007 - - - - 1469724
=L
Oll<s2 55,270,353 | 12,572,982 34,059 448,063 78 1,101 | 68,326,656
NEILD 4,600,133 | 18,257,698 62,662 | 1,101,058 -| 13869 25429244
A, 120,509,021 | 27,774,042 | 2,752,363 181,000 97,197 | 7,388,273 | 158,711,8%
THAE SR 7858410 | = 3,05,3% 114,369 8,662 218,257 60,922 | 11,317,002
JIErR8Ex 4197192 2,264,017 34,930 31,419 16,883 173280 | 6,717,731
A% 196,733,826 | 64,105,128 | 2998383 | 1,770,222 332,425| 9,082,269 | 271,972,253
& 28IXd 7117680 | 884,729 710,108 416,454 925627 | (6,401,850)| 11,617,743
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<A67(4)71>

2 i3} USD EUR JPY aaP JIEH 2l

28X

B3 2 0XI2 6,046,803 | 5,652,467 30,847 52,579 17370 175611 | 11,975,767

DE-BHIIX BT 9,080,109  6%B,919 - 1,101 - wew| 9818811

s

JIEHE BB IR 30609818 | 6,639,366 25| 311,88 -] s4089| 37875136

23 Q153

NABOI BF QVIEH | 2968877 - - - - -| 2988m

IE-TEIIX BF 644,412 - - - - -1 eaa2

CHERHR

ABROL = GENR | 128311,272| 40714606| 3108077| 1,457,553  789280| 1,387,606 | 170,7633%4

THYAE T 4092080 | 1,117,750 44,940 2,464 30,077 18,291 | 5306572

JIERRS X 3500931 | 180512]  2900% 25,864 8011 41,635 | 58%,048
a3 180206362 | 56,698,620 | 3468984 | 1851,309| 8a738| 200,914 | 245,183,017
e

PIE-BEIIX B 1,811,241 256,908 - - - -1 2067144

s .

045 sa090| 1090208  aeu| 7145 9 1,106 | 52,792,121

el 5,637,556 | 14,700,344 20683 | 1,087,799 -l e83%| 2083777

AL 100615300 | 26463222 | 1,704147|  259501|  791815| 6,531,336 | 145,365,330

THYAESR 3988813 728275 4,569 4,29 16,166 15722 | 4,757,841

JlEr2 g 4458807 | 2,214,186 13,208 18,308 1119] - 111,87 681760

27 166,961,688 | 55,30133| 1,787.36| 1647.139|  809191| 7318366 | 233863843
& IZEX 13,311,674 1,681,658 204,260 35547 | (5,287,450 11,324,174

1,378,487
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5) o4& SR e
Fde A2e olAeAE2e ARS Bt GFTF AP AR 159 H2EFH
Nge B3 RUEDT glon, 7)o BOR FAGZo] $E WES ¥
G5 YFUTH FALTL 20219, AHlE o o]4 LS BORE A
FES AEAY 2254 RS AUL B9 St ol g T E g3t
o e gaaBREAL TF JUFO T 3o A3t TRA diA2e) 24, A
AR, H9 2 na ARUAA Bel, dBe, AT, AT, HE, IA A2
8 7% 5o QB52 0% TATE LIBOR ASALS +UsgiSUth i Ao
me WL Alete] et Ao Rustn on, oA ojAlsdE RuY
% 9&UTh TR 25& ALy ol IBORS) tat o] ojtjo]q WASEX)
AES T, A AFo|AEE 4B ABE 5 JYEES AYL +gstn ol P
AQUTH FHE 20219 Y @A) 1 L A =YL d=stgod, st
2 A%kg 72 3 ATt 20239 69 o)l Alokel] s3] 202349 68 A7}
A gAFE =Ye $E}E AL BHE Su YFUTh |
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71% @A) LIBOR #d tiAl A E ol A&z el Ado] $25A ¥ F4FY
oed 2EUth MG AFEAEY FAe FRF Ao, FYFET} oY 2

K
—
FRZ FAL F2IFAYYh

o 18 off

(E9): wHorel)
= usD
HITHY 2 S Rt at
JIEFE B & I G RHA : . 6,342
AASAIZ R | | | 10,932,787
AFR AFRH 19,010
A | 10,958,139
HIDHA 2 85 3 | |
A2 RIS | 781,924
THAH AHE ‘
Ol Xt S22 (0HOK) | 76,158,628
< 5h 242 (OHOH) 42,669,517
OS2 (AR SIT) | 16,209,017
Ssiza(es ) 5,025,604
AN | 140,062,766
N o IZEE 75,022
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G) 54823
D g

SEHUAATD A2 2Y - &4 7|70 BUX EE o)X L A2 §52 5
o2 ANH ATRE FEr} BAFAY, ATEE A2 93 12 28, B
4712 Re) B iz 02 &40 BAY F23 S YT}

2) B2

YL ot} ZLS WO FEAHLAE B YU

o

frEdesa 5 edE 44
- 588 %= LCR, NSFR, 337]9siatgz g &¢ 44
- 8RR tid VTS FEAFUY AEVIT A7 FANESE FFEL
ARAL /5B E A8 FAN &R Zhd W) SR0]EE 3o &2

<.7;‘~.;§ v >

- LCR: (/T4 At/ FF 3043 €dFFEH) X 100

- NSFR: QF8AE71H859 / dAATZEE T Y) X 100

- 527198 axEn] S (B 19 23 stz / A3 13 ol ¢ F)
%) X 100

® %7173 B A E (Early Warning Indicator) A &

- FrEAE =AY o5 4 27]) A 9 HA g X vtA S 8 B A CDS
zu|d' T F 15709 A RE HA, FUHEYLE FH5A frsAde2a 5§
gt Bardos 8

® A7 3FE A (Stress-Test) AA| B v 42522 A & (Contingency-Plan) &4
- e aad WX ¥ Bt Ak E wetetn ddA X A%
5897 BN E T XFFY FRE FXOFE 2Pu{$7], AFH7],
EE97143E /1A 7182 EN S Er|E= AAE 3 gl2a3de9s By

- ZF 719 AE FEAH71 d3s] Y FAH Az W vdREE
GA8E THd 2§
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3) 2¢AA L Bxjo] dEA ety B

© B71%} A% @A WA T §FE

AEAey] BAL e 2EUY

<A168(F)71>
' (SH): o)
= N OIBH | 1~3MB | 3~120H8 | 1~540l5h | 54 XDt 8
28X
832 U X2 9,025,666 430,095 | 1,081,942 930,574 -1 11,418,277
E|E0-DRIIX| &F 117,102 99,673 184,468 412498 | 11157484 | 11,971,225
SIIEN A ' :
BB -BHIIX 188333 |  1,164081| 4422088 | 12510195| 15487979 | 33,772,596
23 QII=H , '
ARIBRDL & S5 249,997 500011 | 1,777,966| 3828118 -l 63%,02
v ES 15068406 | 21,63385 | 68144918( 7745152 1580283 198,169,055
pl[5=10 6,344,790 - - - 147354 77144
8 0,904,204 | 28877.666| 75561,352| 95,132,977 | 43913100| 269,479,389
28%x
S|2-BEIIX| BH. 60,946 123,271 383,312 290,408 88,371 951,308
s , ’
Y 0,564,386 | 12664843 | 20632157 | 4,364,976 126939 |" 68,353,301
XS 3632,166| 5829318| 11,367549| 3,528,097 967,088 | 25,324,198
AR 484,503 | 11,647,424 | 54655580 83,734,150 | 4,151,709 | 159,030,375
(=1L 3,837,948 | 2,057,141 - - 6270 6,841,359
&) 296949| 32321997 | 87043607 | 91.917.606| 6,280,357 | 260,500,536
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<Al67(HA)71>

2 N8 OIBH | 1~3k8 | 3~1248 | 1~5u005H | S &M 22l

ST

B2 % RIS 9,612,371 515,608 550,680 | 1,009,287 -1 11,707,946

S|&2-BEDIX| &5 46,621 25023| 1,080,540 | 1,149972| 7506684 9,778,840

KIS

DBt EO-Z Rt B1611| 1,207430 | 413B9%5| 10816960 | 15003228 | 31,613,203

23 QIS

2B BF RIS 10,000 340486 | 1,113529| 1,505,020 -| 29908

CHETH2 10,042,137 | 14.241,774| 61,8%0,065| 67,500212| 15813164 169,477,353

JIERSERHY 5,097,270 - - - 808,773|  5901,043
&1 25170010 | 16,330,330 | 68728780 | 82,001,451 | 39,216,849 | 231,447,420
285

YIIE-BEIIX &5 8,854 125,618 682,882 348,104 214802 1,380,260

2s=4

Ol 25608016 | 8124580 | 16519769 | 2418409 118943 | 52,789,717

R 3140265 | 4398427 | 10504484 | 28R717| 1.02531| 22,001,214

AR 4648419 | 11,607,802 | 47,013584| 76083647 | 6,148,738 | 145,602,280

JIE28RE 5008883 | 157265 - - 39118|  6940.657
| BA4437 | 25919173 | 74720719| 81792877 | 7.866922| 228,714,128

1
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@ I FHAE
@-1. B/} A7 A« A FPFE FEAFDY) AL 2T 2

472,785

Fyth
<A68(F)71>
(E49): HOIRY)
g 142! Ol5t 1~348 | 3~1248 | 1~5006H | 549 =W =52
IHOHS = THIAE
OIXie 2@l 14,310 56,466 123,397 (231,289) 329,021 291,906
FA B 1 - - - - 1
SIS MAE ,
oIxE 23 (43,682) (20,611) 265,185 907,552 912,990 2,021,434
5 (29,371) 35,855 388,582 676,263 1,242,011 2,313,340
<A67(A)71>
' (S5} oI
o 174 0I5t 1~3M8 | 3~1248 | 1~50l6t | 5 =1 B
IHOHS = THAE '
S35t 22 201 - - - - 201
oIXiE 2 (11,805) (23,802) 8,326 (158,559) 535,474 349,640
(B3| MHYAE
olXig 2 33,8% 115,454 180,557 631,338 - 687,22 1,648,467
& 22,202 91,652 . 183,883 1,222,69 1,998,308
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RN

HER NE S I

@-2. 37123 A2 A S 2AA FAGF ZEA G 24 E 0% 2

F4Yr}.
<A168(F)7]>
(SHS: 2HDIR)
22 148 Olst 1~308 3~ 1272 1 ~54 Olot 54 R Al
OHOHSH OIYAE
S35t 2
= 52,226,487 31,340,410 63,562,432 77,160,037 7,031,148 231,320,514
RE 52,120,608 31,419,674 63,702,102 76,526,053 6,968,341 230,736,778
AE| | TAS
=351 22
e 382,466 331,653 8,692,048 15,738,325 3,653,029 28,797,521
FE 727,331 518,563 8,825,3°8 16,632,521 3,577,128 30,280,871
S A 52,608,953 31,672,063 72,254,480 92,898,362 10,684,177 260,118,035
RE A 52,847,939 31,938,237 72,527,430 93,158,574 10,545,469 261,017,649
<A67(H)71>
(B9 HHOHR)
- 2E 12 015t 1~Hg | 3~12H8 | 1~5 08 | 58 XD &
DHOHSH TMYAIE
£351 2
= 56,066,208 34,469,849 90,529,773 89,932,702 8,452,901 288,451,433
sE 56,009,986 34,338,644 99,195,857 90,326,262 8,476,594 288,347,343
HAES|| IYAS
=8 &
LS4l 16,920 76,028 4,791,344 14,245,183 4,727,452 23,856,927
RE 16,786 79,183 6,083,666 14,902,210 4,624,965 25,706,810
S 8Al 56,083,128 34,545,877 104,321,117 104,177,885 13,180,353 312,308,380
SE A 56,026,772 34,417,827 105,279,523 105,228,472 13,101,559 314,054,153
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@ WTn A A G AR BEA DY) BAL T3 FEUT

<#168(2)71>

(i51: eors)

=,

= P EE 1 ~3He 3~ 124 1~ 5t O[3} CEEY &
2= 1,004,990 1,568,345 3,8%,351 9,810,539 420,035 16,707,260
oryy 100,641 51,336 761,191 1,500,964 46,812,437 49,226,569
59| 1,105,631 1,639,681 4,644,542 11,311,508 47,230,472 65,933,829

<A67(H)71>

(SHy: waoR)

2= 142 oI5t 1~3He 3~ 12Hg 1 ~5 0l8H CEES =]
25 1,431,023 1,358,214 3,600,638 6,720,569 782,819 13,953,263
|2 227,768 21,982 715,958 2,765,040 44,880,979 48,611,727
& 1,658,791 1,380,196 4,376,506 9,485,609 45,663,798 62,564,990
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HERTE
WHRIABYAE FERIA = 34289 20229 129 31YAZE F5HE
JAAEY ATARS) WF FAATE FY5tn 249 W IABAAES HE

# A%e A¥aE AYU

HE L SHE 2 WR A BYAE HER A
2. P R IABRYAE SFLH B A
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SYE 2AY YR ABDAE AERDA

Ol

ENESELT
& ot 20234 38! 282

[

o

fo

S Frg F2AYP L 20229 12€ 31 Ao R ABHYATY] £
Ae) BuAe] date HES ANRGEUT W ARANEE 4A, $95 T
T hE S GAHEINE AT YJL FFAYLP e AFA A e, ¢
o AYe § Ruvgol tatd HES AN AEARES pusted AU
239 AGAe 5D WEIHABRAAE SFAH BuxoA "B 3 % fF3
ABRY WREIABHAE TIAH HrpEAF, 20229 1249 31 @A) 3
AR ATE WA HAE ZHTFE SASA & o, 249 B3
AN aZRARez AAHY £9H 1 vty wddrt'n 7Esa dFU

SelE WRAABYAE AEIFA B} FES AAHAEUT o] 7EL &
7t Z249] BN IR AN WRGABYA RS G B o] s}
o HAZARTE Fe 520 FUL AL 4 UES AELAES AYstn AN
AL 273T YUtk AEE 239 WRIABUAEES ot F AR
RoABYATY SALHET HEo] e AE L Wasitn #HBHE S A
3 WY NelA B A FA 5o A4S T YFYTh |

Lol YRIABHATE A & A= JARFRY A H FAE A5t &=
C AEAHA ) et AT ATAEY A HE FHHA FNL E 5
QA=Z AAF W Ad T ol 8 el - £Fske 24 L grg 2y
WEsAdeAzse WEARAES 2AZHA FAZ Aste] AFARN A&
T HFBAIE AL AY WA 28 F sy 2, WRIABIA =
o] LFAHET WEE 722 vefr|he] &S FAH Aole 43 b3 5S4
A o] FFEHA 2 2H WRIHABIA LT FHAHSA S v 73t
e P72 WLl detd HFd A 5 o= HE 2 st oF YTk
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A
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AR WRAABRAAE £948 wuMe] g $ele AEAD 4] F97
o $JAHRT 8ol T2 BHANN YRAABAAE BEFEY FH T
o A4 gehekn s sk Hol BHA oS E U

29 AEE 20229 12€ 31€ A WEIADIYAEE Ao Z stg o,

2022d 124 31 o] o) YR ABAAEE AESA SSUT)

L O <

golA 2AHANY 7] W
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S AU LD F, AT 2 YA A

2 3 9 yRsAfads 200249 129 319 €3 5 A=
FEshs AdE0] UF yyo IR Nee] 4 2 oo
AeF Hrkstgd 4o

Rl e A © g digh AYS £ 2 gyl
A YUY 230 A giich £ 87 9 S-SR
TR YINIPAATS A2 Uiz ARATY A 2 FAE dsll
AFANS] fEe 2 4 e 2 LPINE e 9w 4
NEE AANOE HA 9 LgsIn eAle] &liel) dlsie) HrislNigUk

CE R R URQA@che a4 8 add
HhE A8 wRRARYAE SYAasels SET WA RadE
ERTEE ARSI e Tk

& A% B wRHAdDAe GRsABAE $Ga8 Wrbaa,
222 129 1Y A B WRHALAAz: JYsAEYA
EHAEA A% & o, 849 oy Aoz wxsel
FEHT vk gAgy, .

¥ 33 9 uSATaAE Ballge] AR slAlsi A HA]EA]
chiBigin, 7IAakAY EAsok & Ahe mizca)it 1A) ofiiehe B9l
ARFHD B B Y R S PeARs waulgel)] Znie O
U2 g} ZlAEAY RARRK ohisielie Aas Felaizion,
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